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Date: 11-10-2023

The Secretary The Secretary

Listing Department Listing Department

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited

PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor,

Mumbai - 400 001 Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla

Script Code: 532696 Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051
Script Code: EDUCOMP

Sub: Intimation under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR’) - Annual Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 including
notice of the 28™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Dear Sir / Madam,

This is to inform that the 28" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of the Company will
be held on Tuesday, November 07, 2023 at 11:30 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) /
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM?”), in accordance with the relevant circulars issued by the ministry
of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

The details such as manner of (i) registering / updating email addresses, (ii) casting vote through remote
e-voting and (iii) attending the AGM through VC / OAVM has been set out in the Notice of the AGM.

The Annual Report for the Financial Year 2021-22, including the Notice convening Annual General
Meeting, being sent to the members through electronic mode, is enclosed for your record. The Company
has fixed Tuesday, October 31, 2023 as the “Cut-off Date” for the purpose of determining the members
eligible to vote through remote e-voting on the resolutions set out in the Notice of the AGM or to attend
the AGM and cast their vote thereat.

The Annual Report including Notice will also be available on the website of the Company,
http://www.educomp.com.

You are requested to acknowledge and update the same in your records.
Thanking You,

Yours Truly,

For Edu?,ﬂp Solutions Limited
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Ma‘ﬁ Garg . "‘:’/f"f“/

Chief Financial Officer

Educomp Solutions Limited
(CIN: L74999DL1994PLC061353)
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Tel.: 91-124-4529000.
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EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Educomp Solutions Limited
(“the Company”) will be held on Tuesday, November 07, 2023 at 11.30 A.M. IST through video conference / other
audio-visual means ("VC") to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
ITEMNO. 1:

Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including the consolidated Financial Statements) of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, together with the reports of the Resolution Professional
and Auditor thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
ITEMNO. 2:

TO APPROVE AND RATIFIED THE REMUNERATION OF M/S AHUJA SUNNY & CO., COST ACCOUNTANTS OF THE
COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as “the Act”) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any
amendments, statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, M/s. Ahuja Sunny & Co., Cost Accountants appointed as Cost Auditors by the Resolution
Professional (as the power of the Board is suspended and delegated to Resolution Professional, as appointed in
terms of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016) of the Company to audit the cost records of the Company for the
financial year 2021-22, be paid a remuneration of Rs. 40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) per annum (plus
applicable taxes) and out of pocket expenses that may be incurred.”

For Educomp Solutions Limited
(Under CIRP)

Sd/-

Mahender Khandelwal

Resolution Professional

Taken on record

IBBI Reg. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/ 10086

Date : 09/10/2023
Place : New Delhi
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NOTES:

1. Inview of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General
Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular
No.02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and General Circular
No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and, SEBI Circular No.
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 read with circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May13,
2022 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020. (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”)
and other applicable circulars, permitted holding of the Annual General Meeting (“the Meeting/ AGM”)
through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the
Members, Directors or other eligible persons at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company will be conducted through
VC/OAVM.

2. In accordance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in view of
the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company has engaged the services of Link Intime (India) Private
Limited (“LIIPL”) to provide the facility of voting by electronic voting system to all the Members to enable them
to cast their votes electronically during the AGM in respect of the business to be transacted at the aforesaid
Meeting. The facility of casting the votes by the Members using such electronic voting system from a place other
thanvenue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) is also being provided by LIIPL.

3. In accordance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. Since the AGM will be held
through VC / OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company.

4. The Company has enabled the Members to participate in the 28th AGM. The participation of members through
VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning quorum for the AGM under Section 103 of the Act.

5. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM.

6. Since this AGM will be held through Video Conferencing ('VC') / Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM'), (a)
Members will not be able to appoint proxies for the meeting, and (b) Attendance Slip & Route Map are not
annexed to this Notice.

7. Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at this Annual General Meeting ('AGM') is annexed.

8. Institutional /Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send a scanned
copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/Authorisation etc., authorising
its representative to attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through
remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through their
registered email address to ysaluja2005@gmail.com with copies marked to the Company at
mkipeducomp@bdo.in; ankit.bisht@educomp.com and toits RTA at swapann@linkintime.co.in.

9. Members who have not registered their E-mail address so far are requested to register their e-mail for receiving
all communication including Annual Report, Notices and Circulars etc. from the company electronically.
Members can do this by updating their email addresses with their depository participants.

Registration of email ID and Bank Account details:
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(a) In case the shareholder's email ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent “RTA”/Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being sent on the registered email address.

(b) In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/their email address with the Company/its
RTA/Depositories and or not updated the Bank Account mandate for receipt of dividend, the following
instructions to be followed:

(i) Kindly log in to the website of our RTA, Link Intime India Private Ltd., www.linkintime.co.in under
Investor Services > Email/Bank detail Registration - fill in the details and upload the required
documents and submit. OR

(ii) Inthe case of Shares held in Demat mode:

The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant (“DP”) and register the email address
and bank account details in the demat account as per the process followed and advised by the DP.

10. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank
details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch details, MICR Code and IFSC Code,
mandates, nomination, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact
numbers, etc to their depository participant (“DP”). Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
intimate such changes to Company's RTA, i.e. Link Intime Private Limited along with relevant evidences or
supporting.

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in electronic form are
therefore requested to submit PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to Company's RTA i.e.
Link Intime India Private Limited.

12. SEBI has also made amendment to Regulation 40 of SEBI LODR Regulations with respect to mandatory
dematerialization for transfer of securities. Pursuant to the aforesaid amendment to SEBI LODR Regulations,
Listed Companies and their Registrars and Transfer Agents (“RTAs”) are advised to ensure that shares which are
lodged for transfer are mandatory in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019. Therefore,
shareholders are requested to get their physical shareholding dematerialized for any further transfers.

13. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under and Regulation 42 (5) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Register of Members and
Share Transfer Books will not be closed for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

14. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders holding shares in physical form may file their
nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of
shares held in electric/demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository
Participant.

15. The AGM Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22 is being sent only by electronic
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories or the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent i.e. Link Intime India Private Limited or the Depository Participant(s) in accordance
with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI circulars. Members may note that the AGM Notice along with the
Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 will also be available on the Company's website
http://www.educomp.com/content/investors-home; websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd and BSE Limited at www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com respectively. Members
can attend and participate in the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only. The Notice shall also
be available on the e-voting website of the agency engaged for providing e-voting facility, i.e. Link Intime India
Private Limited, (LIIPL) viz., instavote.linkintime.co.in.

All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement/Annexure shall be made available for
inspection by the Members of the Company, without payment of fees upto the date of AGM. Members desirous
of inspecting the same may send their requests not later than November 4, 2023 at 11:00 A.M at
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mkipeducomp@bdo.in from their registered e-mail addresses mentioning their names and folio
numbers/demat account numbers.

In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their
shareholding maintained under section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements
in which directors are interested maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Relevant
documents referred to in this Notice of AGM and explanatory statement will be available for inspection on the
date of AGM in electronic mode and shall remain open and be accessible to any Member.

16. Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised forms as on Monday,
October9, 2023 will receive Annual Report and AGM Notice through electronic mode.

17. PROCEDURE FORREMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and administration)
Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015
(“Listing Regulations”), the Company is pleased to provide members, the facility to exercise their vote at the
28th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting
services. The facility of casting the votes by the eligible members using an electronic voting system from a place
other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) and e voting during Annual General Meeting will be provided
by the Link Intime India Private Limited. The instructions to cast votes through remote e-voting and through e-
voting system during the AGM are annexed separately and form part of this Notice.

The Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of member/beneficial
owners (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, October 31, 2023. The remote-e-
voting period commences on Saturday, November 4, 2023 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Monday, November 6,
2023 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members of the Company holding shares either in physical from or in
dematerialized form as on the cut off date i.e Tuesday, October 31, 2023 (hereinafter called as “Cut-off Date”),
may cast their vote electronically. The remote E-voting module shall be forthwith blocked by Link Intime for
voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is casted by the Member, he shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently as well as a person who is not a member as on the Cut-off date should treat this Notice for
information purpose only.

Only those Members who are present in the Meeting through VC or OAVM facility and have not cast their votes
on resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be allowed to vote
through e-Voting system during the AGM. However, Members who would have cast their votes by remote e-
Voting may attend the Meeting, but shall neither be allowed to change it subsequently nor cast votes again
during the Meeting and accordingly, their presence shall also be counted for the purpose of quorum under
Section 103 of the Act. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial
Owners as on cut off date Tuesday, October 31, 2023 are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in the
Notice. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their share(s) of the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.

The resolution Professional has appointed CS Yogesh Saluja (C.O.P. N0.22676) of M/s Yogesh Saluja &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (FRN : S2020DE718100) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e- voting
atthe meetingand remote e-voting processin a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall,immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the
AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any.
Thereafter, the Results of e-Voting shall be declared forthwith by the Chairman or a person authorised by him, in
writing, in this regard. The Results along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company (www.educomp.com) and on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited
(https://instavote.linkintime.co.in) immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

[4]
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Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the businesses mentioned in the Notice / the resolution(s)
forming part of the Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, i.e., Tuesday, November 07,
2023.

18. Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders post change in the Login mechanism for Individual shareholders
holding securitiesin demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020:

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-
Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below:

Type of Login Method

shareholders

Individual . If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services
Shareholders website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
i Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new
with NSDL screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.

holding securities
in demat mode

. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
duringthe meeting.

. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or
click athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

o Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.
Individual . Existing user of who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their
Shareholders user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page

without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com
and clickon New System Myeasi.

holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL
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Type of Login Method
shareholders

. After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provideri.e. NSDL,
KARVY, LINK INTIME, CDSL. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast
your vote.

3 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a linkin www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email asrecorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be provided links for the respective ESP where the E Votingisin progress.

Individual Share e You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through

holders (holding your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

securities in demat

mode) & login e Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting

through their option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful

depository authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name

participants or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual 1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL:

Shareholders https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

holding securities

in Physical mode P Click on “Sign Up” under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your

& evoﬁng service following details: -

Provider is A. UserID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall

LINKINTIME

provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company.

B. PAN:Enteryour 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members
who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/
Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if
applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI)
(Asrecorded with your DP / Company -in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four
digits), as recorded with your DP/Company.

Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not
recorded 'C'and'D', shall provide their Folionumberin 'D'above

P Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8
characters, at least one special Character (@ #$&*), at least one numeral, at
least one alphabetand at least one capital letter).

(6]
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Type of Login Method

shareholders

»  Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).
2. Clickon'Login'under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab.

3.  Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and
clickon 'Submit'.

4.  After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting.
Select 'View'icon for Educomp Solutions Limited.

5. E-votingpage will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your
desired option 'Favour / Against' (If you wish to view the entire Resolution
details, click on the 'View Resolution' file link).

7.  After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on 'Submit'. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
'Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your
vote.

Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-
voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as 'Custodian / Mutual Fund /
Corporate Body'. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority
letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in
PDF formatin the 'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME, have
forgotten the password:

o Clickon'Login'under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click 'forgot password?'
o EnterUserlID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on 'Submit'.

. In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail
address.

e Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as
mentioned above.

e The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@ #5&*), at least one
numeral, atleast one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password:

Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

» Itisstrongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

» For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

» During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the
resolution(s) fora particular “Event”.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related to login through
Depositoryi.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below:

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holding securities in sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990
demat mode with NSDL and 18002244 30

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
holding securities in sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
demat mode with CDSL 23058738 or 22-23058542-43.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders &
evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME.

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries
regarding e-voting, they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs') and InstaVote e-Voting manual
available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 -4918 6000.

19. Processand manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

For a smooth experience of AGM proceedings, shareholders who are registered for the event are requested to
download and install the Webex application in advance on the device that you would be using to attend the
meeting by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/.Shareholders also have an option to
click on the URL provided to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the
meeting. For any support, shareholders may also call the RTA on the dedicated number provided in the
instructions. Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting,
shareholders/ members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as
under:

1. Opentheinternetbrowserandlaunch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in
»  Selectthe “Company” and 'Event Date' and register with your following details: -
A. DematAccount No. orFolio No : Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No
e  Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

e  Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed
by 8 Digit Client ID

e Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the
Company
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B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with
the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.
D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.
» Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting).

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on
the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in
the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number
provided toyouin the instruction/ InstaMEET website.

2. Members can log in and join 15 minutes prior to the schedule time of the AGM and window for joining the
meeting shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time. The Company shall provide
VC/OAVM facility to Members to attend the AGM. The said facility will be available for 1000 Members on first
come first served basis. This will not include large Members (i.e. Members with 2% or more shareholding),
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, chairpersons of the audit committee,
nomination & remuneration committee and stakeholders' relationship committee, auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

20. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 7 days in advance
with the company by sending their request on the e-mailid at mkipeducomp@bdo.in.

2. Speakers will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions on first come first served basis during
the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the
availability of time for the AGM.

3. Shareholders who would like to ask questions, may send the same in advance mentioning their name,
demataccount number/folio number, email id, mobile number at mkipeducomp@bdo.in, atleast 48 hours
prior to the date of AGM i.e. on or before 10.00 a.m. (IST) on Sunday, November 05, 2023. The same will be
replied by the Company suitably.

4.  Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the
client.

5. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.
6. Othershareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

7. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video
mode and audio of your device.

8. Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce
the name and serial number for speaking.
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9. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

21. InstructionsforShareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/moderator during the meeting, shareholders/
members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1. OntheShareholdersVCpage, click onthe link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”.

2. Enter Demat Account No./ Folio No.and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email
Id) received during registration for InstaMeet and click on 'Submit'.

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/
Against” for voting.

4. Castyourvote by selecting appropriate optioni.e. “Favour/Against” as desired.
Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour/Against'.

5. Afterselectingthe appropriate optioni.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on
“Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to
change yourvote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote
subsequently.

Note:

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
fromdoing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting
will be eligible to attend/participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will
not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/Laptops connected through
broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case the shareholders/members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you can write an email to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel : 011 — 49411000 InstaMeet Support Desk, Link Intime India
Private Limited
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Annexure to the Notice (Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special Businesses to be transacted at the AGM
and set out under Item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice of AGM pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended)

ITEMNO. 2

Section 148 of the Act, inter-alia, provides that the Central Government may direct audit of cost records of class of
Companies. Further, as you are aware that w.e.f. 30th May 2017 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under
Section 10 of the Code. Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood
suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional.

In pursuance of Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board shall appoint an individual who
is a cost accountant in practice or a firm of cost accountants in practice, as cost auditor, which shall also recommend
remuneration for such cost auditor. The remuneration recommended shall be considered and approved by the Board
and ratified subsequently by the shareholders.

In terms of the same, as specified above that post the initiation of the CIRP the powers of the Board stood suspended
and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Accordingly,
Resolution Professional has, considered and approved the appointment of M/s Ahuja Sunny & Co., Cost Accountants
as the cost auditor for the financial year 2021-22 at a remuneration of Rs. 40,000/- per annum plus applicable taxes
and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The resolution mentioned in Item no. 2 of the Notice is recommended for your approval.

For Educomp Solutions Limited
(Under CIRP)

Sd/-

Mahender Khandelwal

Resolution Professional

Taken on record

IBBI Reg. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/ 10086

Date : 09/10/2023
Place : New Delhi
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RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL'S REPORT ON WORKING & AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
(As approved by Resolution Professional appointed pursuant to order dated 12 September 2017 by the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at New Delhi in Company Petition (IB) No. 101(PB) of 2017)

Dear Shareholders

Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC)

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Educomp Solutions Limited (“Company/ Corporate
Debtor”) was initiated by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at New Delhi (“Adjudicating
Authority”) under Section 10 of the Code vide its order dated 30th May 2017. The Adjudicating Authority vide the order
of the same date appointed Dr. Sanjeev Aggarwal as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to conduct the CIRP of
the Corporate Debtor. Later, in the third CoC Meeting of the Corporate Debtor held on 12th September 2017, Mr.
Mahender Kumar Khandelwal was appointed as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) to run the CIRP of the Corporate
Debtor.

Pursuant to the appointment, the RP published an Expression of Interest (“Eol”) in terms of the code and applicable
Regulations thereby inviting resolution plans for the revival and restructuring of the Corporate Debtor. Further to the
issuance of the Eol, the resolution plans were received from one Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“Ebix”) and one Boundary
Holdings SARL SPF. Pursuant to the discussions and deliberations with the CoC, the Resolution plan submitted by Ebix
was put to vote. Ebix's resolution plan, in terms of Section 30( 4) of the Code, was finally approved by the CoC with
75.35% majority voting share on 22nd February 2018 including vote of Chhattisgarh State Electricity Board (“CSEB”)
whose vote was received subsequently due to a technical glitch. Pursuant thereto, the Resolution Professional
submitted Ebix's Resolution Plan for the approval of the Adjudicating Authority by way of an application under Section
30(6)and 31 of the Code (CA 195 of 2018) (“Plan Approval Application”).

AroundJuly 2019, while the Plan Approval Application was pending adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority, Ebix
filed its first application seeking withdrawal of the Resolution Plan on account of the purported inordinate delay in
approval of resolution plan by the Adjudicating Authority, and ongoing investigations into the affairs of the Corporate
Debtor. The said application was dismissed by the Adjudicating Authority. Thereafter, Ebix filed another withdrawal
applicationin August 2019 on the similar cause of action. The second application was also dismissed by the Adjudicating
Authority. However, the third withdrawal application filed by Ebix (1A 1816 of 2019) after having been heard at length on
25th November 2019 was allowed by the Adjudicating Authority vide its order dated 02nd January 2020 ('Order dated
02 January 2020”). Thereby Ebix was permitted to withdraw its plan despite the same having been approved by the
Committee of Creditors of Educomp (“CoC”). The Adjudicating Authority also imposed a cost of Rs. 1 lakh on Ebix and
extended the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor by 90 days to begin from 16th November 2019. The Adjudicating Authority
directed the Resolution Professional to expedite the possibility of achieving the resolution of the stressed assets within
such extended period.

As a consequence of the Order dated 02 January 2020 passed by the Adjudicating Authority in third withdrawal
application filed by Ebix (IA 1816 of 2019), the Adjudicating Authority dismissed the Plan Approval Application filed by
the Resolution Professional vide its another order dated 3" January 2020(“Order dated 03 January 2020”).

Thereafter, the Committee of Creditors of Educomp (“CoC”) challenged the order dated 02 January 2020 passed by the
Adjudicating Authority allowing the withdrawal before the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal
(“NCLAT”) on 28 January 2020 by way of an Appeal bearing number Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 203 of 2020
(“First Appeal”). The First Appeal was listed for consideration before the NCLAT on 03 February 2020 wherein, the
Appellate Tribunal was pleased to issue notice in the appeal and further stayed the operation of the order dated 2nd
January 2020.

On 22nd June 2020, the CoC filed another Appeal i.e. Company Appeal (AT)(Ins) No. 587 of 2020 (“Second Appeal”)
before the NCLAT against the Order dated 3rd January 2020 passed by the Adjudicating Authority thereby dismissing
the application of the RP seeking approval of the Resolution Plan filed by Ebix. It may be noted that the CoC gained
knowledge of the order dated 3rd January 2020 only during the hearing in the First Appeal and therefore, could not
challenge the same atan earlier date.
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The NCLAT allowed the First Appeal filed by the CoCvide its judgment dated 29th July 2020 and set aside the order dated
2nd January 2020 passed by the Adjudicating Authority inter alia holding that the Adjudicating Authority did not have
the power to allow Ebix (RA) to withdraw its resolution plan after it was approved by the CoC.

Thereafter Ebix filed a Civil Appeal No. 3224 of 2020 (“Ebix Appeal/Appeal”) before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India
(“Hon'ble Supreme Court”) challenging the NCLAT Judgment dated 29 July 2020 passed in the First Appeal on the
ground that (a) Ebix is not bound by the Resolution Plan until the same is approved by the Adjudicating Authority; (b)
inordinate delay in the approval of the application under Section 31 and (c) pending SFIO and CBl investigations into the
affairs of Educomp called for withdrawal.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court was pleased to issue notice in the Ebix Appeal on 07th October 2020 and vide the same
order stayed the proceedings under Second Appeal before the NCLAT. The question of law involved in Ebix's Appeal was
“Whether the withdrawal of Resolution Plan is permitted after it has been approved by the CoC”.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court after hearing the parties vide its judgment dated 13th September 2021 dismissed the
Appeal on the ground that “The existing insolvency framework in India provides no scope for effecting further
modifications or withdrawals of CoC-approved Resolution Plans, at the behest of the Successful Resolution Applicant,
once the plan has been submitted to the Adjudicating Authority. The Hon'ble Court further held that “A submitted
Resolution Plan is binding and irrevocable as between the CoC and the successful Resolution Applicant in terms of the
provisions of the IBCand the CIRP Regulations.”

Accordingly, the Hon'ble Supreme Court dismissed Ebix's Appeal.

Consequent to the Supreme Court's order the NCLT allowed the Second appeal, on 12th November 2021, dated against
the NCLT Order dated 3rd January 2020, and immediately thereafter the certified copy of NCLAT order dated 12th
November 2021 along with the certified copy of Hon'ble Supreme Court Order were filed with the Registry of the NCLT.
However, despite filing the said orders with the NCLT, the NCLT did not list the matter in time. Therefore, to escalate the
matter an application for restoration was (RA 39 of 2021) filed. Finally, the RA 39 of 2021 came up before the NCLT on 3rd
December 2021, where the Hon'ble NCLT remarked that 'it's a shame that this matter couldn't be taken up on its own'
and vide its order dated 03rd December 2021it was said that there was no requirement of filing restoration application,
nevertheless this application has been filed in the deference of the Hon'ble Supreme Court and NCLT Order. The NCLT
thereafter listed the Plan Approval Application for hearing on 22nd December 2021.

On 22nd December 2021, the matter was listed for hearing and part argument took place. The matter was then
adjourned to 25th January 2022. However, before the matter could be taken up on the said adjourned date i.e., 25th
January 2022, an application (IA 187 of 2022) Ex-Director's Application was filed by the Ex-Director- Mr Shantanu
Prakash, also the promoter of Corporate Debtor, seeking direction from the NCLT to direct Resolution Professional to
take action w.r.t the transaction which concerns the insolvency of Corporate Debtor's subsidiary based out of
Singapore. The NCLT has notissued any notice in this application so far.

Thereafter, the application for plan approval was listed for 25th January 2022, but was simpliciter adjourned to 15th
March 2022. Meanwhile, the Resolution Applicant filed another application IA 397/2022, which came up for hearing on
27th January 2022, and in the said application the Resolution Applicant sought certain information from the Resolution
Professional regarding the annual returns, financial statement and status of affairs of the Corporate Debtor. RP's
Counsel opposed1A397 of 2022 and also filed a reply to IA397 of 2022.

On 14th February 2022, IA 397/2022 was listed before the NCLT, however, the reply filed by RP was not available on
record. The NCLT on that date granted liberty to RA to file Rejoinder to 1A 397 of 2022 and adjourned it to 28th February
2022. On 28th February 2022, 1A 397 of 2022 got listed before the Special Bench, therefore, again it was adjourned to
08th March 2022 for it to be heard by the Regular Bench, the matter was adjourned to 8th March 2022. The IA 397 of
2022 was finally taken up on 8th March 2022, where the RP Counsel opposed the application extensively and the same
was dismissed on the ground of being premature.

On 11th April 2022, fresh application IA 1611 of 2022 was filed by the Resolution Applicant seeking issuance of a
direction to the Resolution Professional to take steps to protect the assets owned by Corporate Debtor's Wholly Owned
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Subsidiary (“EPEL”) attached by the Enforcement Directorate which was dismissed by the Adjudicating Authority the
same day since the attached asset(s) were owned by EPEL and not the Corporate Debtor. The Adjudicating Authority
adjourned the Plan Approval Application for hearing on 19 April 2022.

On 19th April 2022, the Adjudicating Authority directed the Resolution Professional to file the soft copy of the complete
order sheets along with the list of dates of events in the form of an Additional Affidavit along with the soft copy of the
Order(s) dated 02 January 2020 and 03rd January 2020 as also the judgments passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court and
Hon'ble NCLAT dated 12 November 2021. Thereafter, the matter was adjourned to 06 May 2022 for further hearing.

On 06 May 2022, the NCLAT heard the Co. Appeal (Ins.) No. 507 of 2022 filed by the Resolution Applicant challenging the
order dated 08 March 2022 passed by the NCLT dismissing IA 397 of 2022. The NCLAT dismissed the appeal on the
direction to RP that on the approval of the Resolution Plan, all of the required information which is available with the
Resolution Professional shall be provided to the Resolution Applicant.

On 06 May 2022, the Plan Approval Application was also listed before the Adjudicating Authority for hearing, however,
the same could not be taken up due to non-availability of Technical Member constituting the Bench hearing the matter.
The matter was adjourned to 24.05.2022 accordingly.

Thereafter on 19 May 2022, Co. Appeal (Ins.) No. 550 of 2022 preferred by Resolution Applicant against order dated
11.04.2022 passed by the Adjudicating Authority n IA 1611 of 2022 was listed. The Hon'ble NCLAT pursuant to the
submissions made by respective parties disposed of the appeal by directing the Resolution Professional to share the
Provisional Attachment Order passed by Directorate of Enforcement with the Resolution Applicant.

On 24 May 2022, the Plan Approval Application was again listed for hearing before the Adjudicating Authority however,
the matter could not be taken up due to non-availability of the Bench to hear the matter post the lunch hours.
Accordingly, matter was adjourned to 01 June 2022.

On01June 2022, when the Plan Approval Application was taken up, the Judicial Member stated that since both him and
the technical member constituting the present Bench are retiring in June 2022, all pending matters would only now be
heard in the month of July. Accordingly, a short date of 08 July 2022 was given by the Registry for listing the Plan
Approval Application.

On 05 September 2022, the following applications were listed- C.A No. 195(PB) of 2018 — Plan Approval Application, I.A
No. 187 of 2022 — Application by Mr. Shantanu Prakash seeking directions and I.A. No. 3112 of 2022- Application filed by
Sri Guru trust claiming to be an Operational Creditor. However, the matter could not be taken up since the Judicial
Member had to sitin another Bench post-lunch and the matter was adjourned to 29 September 2022.

In order to ensure hearing of the Plan Approval Application on 29.09.2022, I.A 4377 of 2022 (listed on 14 September
2022) was filed by the Resolution Professional, seeking listing of the Plan Approval Application high on board on the
scheduled date of listing i.e. 29 September 2022 or to have the matter set down for a fixed time on that date for
expeditious disposal. The Bench acknowledged the request and disposed of the application directing the Registry to list
the Plan Approval Application at the top of the Board for the matters listed on 29 September 2022, after the
supplementary and admission matters.

On 29 September 2022, the matter comprising the pending applications before the Adjudicating Authority were listed
before a Special Bench rather than the usual Bench to which the matter is assigned. The Bench stated that since the
Regular Bench was not available, the Bench adjourned the matter to 03 October 2022.

On 03 October 2022, the Senior Counsel representing the Resolution Professional submitted before the Bench that
apart from the Plan Approval Application, there are two applications pending, one filed by the ex -promoter and the
second by an operational creditor, both of which do not have any bearing on the Plan Approval Application. Further, a
request was also made to the Bench to decide the Plan Approval Application. The Bench noted the submissions but
expressed its inability to take up the matter as the Judicial Member had to take up the matters of another Bench after
lunch hours and accordingly adjourned the matter to 09 November 2022.

On 09 November 2022, the Bench again expressed its inability to take up the matter as the Judicial Member had to take
up the matters of another Bench and accordingly adjourned the matter to 06 December 2022.
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On 06 December 2022, the Bench considered the Plan Approval Application at length and heard the submissions made
by Senior Counsel representing Resolution Professional up till 2 pm. Thereafter, the Bench adjourned the matter to 07
December 2022 (the next day) for the resumption of arguments on the Plan Approval Application.

On 07 December 2022, the Bench directed the Resolution Professional's Counsel to resume arguments on the Plan
Approval Application. The Senior Counsel representing RP presented submissions on the contents of the Resolution
Plan while simultaneously taking the Bench through the relevant clauses of the Plan. On this date, the Bench for its
understanding and reference directed the RP to file the Compliance Certificate dated 26.09.2018 in the form of FORM-
H. The matter was accordingly adjourned to 14 December 2022 for the purpose of bringing Form H on record.

On 14 December 2022, in compliance with the order dated 07 December 2022, Form H was filed by the Resolution
Professional by way of an Additional Affidavit. However, the Bench stated that since the Ld. Technical Member has to
preside in another Bench after lunch and the Additional Affidavit so filed is also not yet reflecting on the DMS (online
portal) of the NCLT, the matter (all the pending applications) was accordingly adjourned to 03.01.2023.

On 03 January 2023, the following applications were listed:

. LLANo.1950f2018—Plan Approval Application by RP

II.  I.LANo200f2023—Application tofile Revised Form H by RP
IIl. ILANo.3112 of 2022-Sri Guru Trust Application

IV.  I.LANo. 187 0f 2022- Ex- Director Application

At first, the Bench took up (I.A. 20 of 2023) filed by the Resolution Professional to bring on record the revised Form H to
bring out greater clarity in respect of certain issues/ provisions under the Resolution Plan. The NCLT allowed I. A 20 of
2023 and took the revised Form Hon record.

Thereafter, the Bench called out I.A 3112 of 2022 (Sri Guru Trust Application). The Bench took a brief overview of the Sri
Guru Trust Application filed by Sri Guru Trust claiming to be an Operational Creditor of the Corporate Debtor. The Senior
Counsel appearing for the Resolution Professional vehemently denied the maintainability of the present application.
The Bench then noted that they will take up the application after hearing the Plan Approval application.

Thereafter, the Bench took up I.A. 187 of 2022 (Ex-Directors Application) and enquired about the issue involved in the
Application. After much elucidation on the Application by the Counsels representing respective parties, the NCLT
directed the Applicant and the RP Counsels to file a detailed chart of the entities involved and the transaction under the
Ex-Directors' Application for its understanding. Thereafter, all applications including the Plan Approval Application were
adjourned to 06 February 2022.

On 06 February 2023, the Bench took I.A 187 of 2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash gave
background about the application filed by Mr. Shantanu Prakash and issues involved. In response, the counsel
appearing on behalf of the RP inter alia challenged the maintainability of the application filed by Mr. Shantanu Prakash
under Section 45 and 47 of the Code. After hearing the submissions, the Hon'ble Bench determined six questions and
directed all parties to file short written synopsis. All the applications were directed to be listed on 01 March 2023
including.A 195 of 2018 (Plan Approval Application) and I.ANo. 3112 0of 2022 (Sri Guru Trust Application).

Thereafter, all the three applications were listed on 01 March 2023. When the matter was called out, the Bench took I.A
187 of 2022. The Bench enquired about the status of the written synopsis as directed by the Bench by its order dated 06
February 2023. The counsel appearing on behalf of the RP, Mr. Shantanu Prakash and SBI Singapore informed the Bench
that they have filed the written synopsis. The counsel appearing on behalf of the COCinformed that they could not e-file
the written synopsis because of a technical fault in the filing system. Meanwhile, Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate
appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash in IA No. 187/2022 joined the hearing via video conference. The bench
was not inclined to hear Mr. Kirpal on video conference and directed him to appear in person. Mr. Kirpal sought
accommodation to appear and make submissions in IA No. 187/2022 after a week. After hearing the brief submissions
of all parties, the Bench listed IANo. 187 on 22 March 2023.

The Bench then took I.A No. 3112 of 2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Shri Guru Trust gave a background of the
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application. The counsel informed the Bench that the RP has admitted and acknowledged to pay INR 31,26,000 to the
Applicant. Counsel appearing on behalf of the RP in response submitted that no claim form was filed by the Applicant
during the corporate insolvency resolution process and secondly no bifurcation is provided by the Applicant to show
which part of the claim belongs to post-CIRP and pre-CIRP period. The counsel also submitted that any dues for post-
CIRP period will become part of the CIRP and the dues pertaining to pre-CIRP period cannot be accepted by the RP at
this stage as the resolution planis already pending approval before the bench. After hearing the submissions, the Bench
directed that upon the Applicant furnishing a break-up of its claim INR 31,26,000, the RP would examine and verifying
the sameinaccordance with the provisions of the Code.

Thereafter, C.A 195 (Plan approval application) was mentioned by Mr. P Nagesh. He submitted that there is great
urgency in the matter as also the long wait through which the lenders have been put through on account of the delay. He
also traced the background of the matter and prayed that the application be taken up and disposed of at the earliest.
Pursuantto his request, the Bench listed CA 195 along with IANo. 187/2022 on 22 March 2023.

Thereafter, the matter was listed on 22 March 2023. However, due to paucity of time, the two remaining applications
i.e.,IAN0.187/2022 and C.A 195 (Plan approval application) were adjourned to 24 April 2023.

On 24 April 2023, both the applications were listed. When the matter was called out, the Bench took IA No. 187/2022.
During the hearing, the counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash sought for a pass over since Mr. Saurabh
Kirpal, Senior Advocate leading them in the matter was held up in a constitution bench matter before the Supreme
Court. The Bench expressed its inability to pass over the matter and intended to give a short date. The counsel
appearing on behalf of the COC and the RP pressed listing of CA 195 (Plan Approval Application). Upon the request, the
Bench have a short date and now listed the matter on 08 May 2023.

On 08 May 2023, the Bench first called out I.A 187/2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
sought for a pass over on the ground that Mr. Saurabh Kirpal was on his legs before another court. The Bench expressed
its inability to pass over the matter and requested Mr. P Nagesh to proceed with his submissions on C.A No. 195 (PB) of
2018. The Bench accordingly took C.A No. 195 (PB) of 2018. Mr. P Nagesh, appearing on behalf of the RP took the Bench
through Form H and explained the amount payable to various creditors under the Resolution Plan along with relevant
clauses. Mr. P Nagesh also took the Bench through various compliances of the Resolution Plan with the provisions of
Code and CIRP Regulations. During the hearing, the Bench enquired about fair value, Section 29A affidavit by the
Successful Resolution Applicant, performance bank guarantee etc. In response, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that the
concept of fair value was inserted by IBBI by its notification dated 06.02.2018 and therefore, the same was not
applicable. Further, P Nagesh referred to the referred to the undertaking dated 28.11.2017 by the Successful Resolution
Applicant giving its declaration cum undertaking that there is no violation of Section 29A. The Bench on observing the
multiplicity of pleadings that have been filed in C.A No. 195 (PB) of 2018, directed the RP and the COC to comply with the
following directions, within 1 (One) week:

(i)  Filing of the Resolution Plan along with all the annexures and addendums;

(i) Since the proposed Resolution Plan did not contain any provision for the Performance Bank Guarantee
("PBG”), the RP was directed to place the same on record. The Bench also stated that in case the same has not
been deposited, then the Successful Resolution Applicant must take steps to file the PBG;

(iii) Filing of a detailed table indicating the size of the plan and distribution of funds; The RP and COC were
directed tofile this as a joint affidavit with reconciled figures, dates, pages etc.

(iv) To point out source of funds and implementation of the Resolution Plan duly approved by the COC

Mr. P Nagesh, on the direction of the Bench with respect to submission of PBG point, submitted that the RP cannot place
on record the PBG. Mr. P Nagesh referred to  Regulation 36B of the CIRP Regulations and submitted that the
requirement of submitting a PBG in terms of Section 36B of CIRP Regulations came into effect only on 24.01.2019,
whereas the plan was approved on 22.02.2018. The Bench noted the observations of Mr. Nagesh and stated that they
will lookinto thisissue on the next date of hearing.
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Thereafter, I.A 187 was once taken up by the Bench. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash informed
the Bench that Mr. Saurabh Kirpal is still on his legs and will be unable to appear before the Bench today and accordingly
requested for a date. In response, the Bench noted that an adjournment is being sought for the second time on the
ground of unavailability of Mr. Saurabh Kirpal and stated that they are of the opinion that the Application by ex-director
should be dismissed on the grounds of non-prosecution. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
requested for a last opportunity. The Bench allowed the request with the remark that last opportunity is given to the ex-
director to make submissions in support of his application, failing which the application of the ex-director will be
dismissed on grounds of non-prosecution on the next date of hearing. After hearing the submissions, the Bench posted
the matteron 25.05.2023.

In compliance of the directions given by the Bench, the RP filed its affidavit on 23.05.2023. On the next date of the
hearingi.e., 25.05.2023, both the applications were listed i.e., I.A 187/2022 and C.A 195 (PB)/2019. The Bench took I.A
187/2022 first. Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash proceeded with his
arguments. Mr.Saurabh Kirpalinter alia submitted that: -

e valuation of the shares that have been sold amounts to USD 250 Million and that it has been sold at a highly
undervalued price and in a non-transparent way.

e exception under explanation to Section 18 (i.e. assets of the Corporate Debtor shall not include assets of its
Indian or foreign subsidiary) has no bearing on the moratorium imposed under Section 14 of the IBC and that
the value of the shares of Educomp Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd. should have been protected by the RP in light of
Section 20 of IBC.

Thereafter, Mr. P Nagesh inter alia made the following submissions: -

e shares of Educomp Asia could not have been part of the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor first because they are
notowned by the Corporate Debtor and second in light of the exception under Section 18 of the IBC.

e shares have been sold under the liquidation proceedings pursuant to order of the High Court of Singapore
andthat no suchissue was raised by the ex-director before the liquidator of Educomp Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd.

e there are various judicial precedents on this position of the NCLT and the NCLAT that the assets of the
subsidiary cannot be made part of the CIRP proceedings of the holding company.

The counsel appearing on behalf of SBI Singapore, and COC supplemented and supported the submissions of Mr. P
Nagesh. In response, the Bench enquired about the difference and definition of asset and property. In response, the
counsel for SBI Singapore submitted that property has been defined under Section 3(27) of the IBC. The counsel for SBI
Singapore by way of relying on the provisions of the Income Tax Act and stated that property forms part of asset, which
isabiggergenus, and both the definitions cannot be distinguished and read independently in IBC.

The Bench after hearing the submissions, reserved the orders in I.A 187/2022 with the direction to the counsel of Mr.
Shantanu Prakash, to file a written synopsis regarding the alleged valuation of the shares on 03.09.2021(date on which
the shares of Educomp Asia were sold). The Bench also directed the counsel of SBI Singapore to file a written synopsis
regarding the valuation of the shares of the Educomp Asia (Pte) Ltd. The Bench also directed the counsel for SBI
Singapore and ex-Director to submit the details regarding all the valuation of shares carried out by both parties. RP was
also directed to file compilation of judgements distinguishing definition of asset and property under the law. After
hearing the submissions, the Bench posted the matter on 08 June 2023.

On 08 June 2023, a special bench comprising of Sh. Mahendra Khandelwal (J) and Sh. L.N. Gupta (T) presided in Court
No. 2. P. Nagesh appearing on behalf of the RP apprised the special bench that IA 195/2019 is already part heard before
the Regular Bench comprising of Shri Ashok Bhardwaj (J) and Sh. L.N. Gupta (T) and therefore requested that IA
195/2019 be immediately posted after the vacations. The counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant also
requested the Special Bench that the matter be posted on the top of the board on the next date of hearing.

Thereafter, the Plan Approval Application - CA 195(PB) of 2018 filed by the Resolution Professional was listed on 05 July
2023. On that date, the matter could not be heard and the same was posted for 10 July 2023. On the next date i.e., 10
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July 2023, due to torrential rains, the basement of the NCLT building was waterlogged and was inspected by CPWD for
civil and electric faults. Accordingly, the NCLT officials informed that the Bench would preside at 12 Noon to hear the
matters through video conference. However, at 12 Noon, the NCLT issued another notice informing that the hearing for
allthe matters listed on 10.07.2023 stands suspended.

The Plan Approval Application - CA 195(PB) of 2018 was then listed on 31 July 2023. During the hearing, Mr. Abhishek
Sharma informed and submitted to the Bench that in compliance of the order dated 08 May 2023, an affidavit has
already been filed by the RP responding to the queries raised by the Bench. However, it was informed by the court
master that the same is not showing on record (DMS). In response, Mr. Abhishek Sharma informed the Bench that we
had checked with the registry and noted that the affidavit was showing on the DMS and is on record. However, since the
court master could not locate the affidavit filed by the RP, the Bench directed the counsel of the RP to ensure that the
same is showing on the DMS (on record) and listed the matter at a short date on 07 August 2023.

On the next date i.e., 07 August 2023, Mr. P Nagesh Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of the RP made the following
submissions:

e Intermsofthe orderdated 08 May 2023, the Bench raised certain queries with respect to the Resolution Plan
and directed the RP to respond to the queries by way of an affidavit. in compliance of the order, an affidavit
was filed by the RP on 23 May 2023.

e Mr. P Nagesh took the Bench through the queries and the responses. First, he referred to query no. 1 and
submitted that a copy of the entire Resolution Plan has been annexed as Annexure- 2 to the affidavit.

e He referred to query no. 2 with respect to non-submission of performance bank guarantee by Resolution
Applicant and submitted that Regulation 36B (4A) of the CIRP Regulations which requires the successful
resolution applicant to submit the performance bank guarantee cameinto force on 24.01.2019. However, the
request for resolution plan and the resolution plan was approved by the Committee of Creditors prior to the
amendmenti.e.,intheyear 2017 and 2018. Therefore, Regulation 36B (4A) was not applicable.

. Hu further submitted that the NCLT, Chandigarh Bench in Phoenix ARC Pvt. Ltd. v. Sarbat Cotfab Private
Limited having similar facts asin our case, approved the resolution plan.

The counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant by referring to the order dated 13 September 2021
submitted that that in terms of the RFRP, SRA/Resolution Applicant was required to replace its EMD with a PBG
equivalent to 10% of the Resolution Plan value, if it were to declared as the successful resolution applicant which is also
recorded in the said order. Accordingly, the counsel submitted that the RP did not seek any PBG from the Resolution
Applicant. On an inquiry by the Bench as to what remedies are available in case the Resolution Applicant fails to
implement the Resolution Plan, Mr. P Nagesh informed that a recourse is available under Section 74 of the Code. The
Bench noted the same, however, insisted that it is necessary to get the PBG from the Resolution Applicant to secure
implementation of the Resolution Plan as the Resolution Applicant had filed three applications in the past for
withdrawal of the Resolution Plan. Thereafter, the counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant submitted
the other objections to the Resolution Plan. The counsel submitted that the RP has unilaterally modified the Resolution
Plan by inserting Para No. 19 in the Plan Approval Application. The Bench enquired whether such modification was
placed before the COC for their approval and consideration. In response, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that there is no
modification in the Resolution Plan and Para No. 19 stated in the Plan Approval Application is nothing but a clarification
in terms of the addendum dated 21 February 2018 issued by the Resolution Applicant. Mr. P Nagesh further took the
Bench through various key dates and submitted that after the addendum was received from the Resolution Applicant,
the RP re-opened the e-voting and accordingly the Resolution Plan along with the addendum was approved by the COC.
Since, Para No. 19 was inserted only for clarification, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that the same is not pressed by the RP and
may be disregarded in order to avoid confusion. The Bench allowed the request of Mr. P Nagesh and considered the final
Resolution Plan dated 19 February 2018 along with addendum dated 21 February 2018.

Thereafter, the counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant referred and submitted other objections
including but not limited to going concern issue, financial statements not being prepared etc. In response, Mr. P Nagesh
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submitted that all these issues have already been dealt by the Hon'ble Supreme in its order dated 13 September 2021.
The Hon'ble Bench took note of the same.

After hearing the submissions, the Bench directed the Resolution Applicant to submit the PBG within 4 weeks. Further,
the Bench directed the RP to be present on the next date of hearing. Mr. P Nagesh and counsel of the COC submitted
that 4 weeks will further delay the adjudication of the Plan Approval Application and accordingly requested for a short
time period. In response, the Bench granted 3 weeks' period to the Resolution Applicant to submit the PBG. The Bench
also noted the submissions and undertaking of the Resolution Applicant that the Resolution Applicant will not withdraw
the Resolution Plan for any reason related to PBG and accordingly listed the mater on 29 August 2023.

Meanwhile, the application filed by the RP before the Hon'ble Supreme Court seeking expeditious disposal of the Plan
Approval Application was listed on 18 August 2023. Mr. Abhishek Sharma appeared on behalf of the RP and made
submissions. After hearing the submissions, the Hon'ble Supreme Court by its order dated 18.08.2023 directed the
NCLT to dispose of the Plan Approval Application as expeditiously as possible or within 2 months from the date of the
order.

Meanwhile, on 25.08.2023, the Hon'ble Bench passed the final orderin|.A 187 and directed as follows: -

e  RPtoapproach IBBI within one week for appointment of registered valuers to conduct the valuation of shares of
Learning Internet Inc. owned by Educomp Asia and pledged with SBI, Singapore as on 03.09.2021 subject to
payment of fees by Mr. Shantanu Prakash.

e Valuers to submit the report within one month of their appointment in accordance with internationally accepted
valuation standards.

. If the valuation is found more than the value of USD 7.1 million for which the shares were sold on 03.09.2021, the
claim of SBI Singapore against the Corporate Debtor would stand reduced to the equal or that extent.

e The CIRP qua the Corporate Debtor would continue unhindered and uninfluenced by the aforementioned
direction. The secured financial claim of the State Bank of India (Singapore) qua the Corporate Debtor would be
subject to the outcome of the valuation result/report.

0On 29.08.2023, Mr. Abhishek Sharma appearing on behalf of the RP made the following submissions: -

. Interms of the last order, SRA was required to submit PBG within a period of 3 weeks, however, the SRA has till date
not complied with the said directions.

e  Referred to the affidavit filed by the RP and took the bench through various queries raised by the Bench and RP's
response to the said queries.

e  SRA is eligible under Section 29A of the Code and in this an undertaking has also been submitted by the SRA.
Further, aletter has also been issued by the RP to the COC confirming the eligibility of SRA under Section 29A of the
Code.

. Referred and took the Hon'ble Bench to various clauses of the Resolution Plan such as terms, implementation,
distribution, waiver etc.

During the hearing, the counsel appearing on behalf of the SRA reiterated its objections to the Plan Approval
Application which were submitted on the last date of the hearing. In response, Mr. Abhishek Sharma submitted that the
issues regarding erosion of commercial substratum of the Corporate Debtor were already argued by the SRA before the
Supreme Court. In addition to the same he had also filed an application bearing IA 397/2022 praying for similar reliefs
which was dismissed by the Bench vide its Order dated 08.03.2022 and subsequently reaffirmed by the NCLAT vide its
Order dated 06.05.2022.

The Hon'ble Bench after hearing the submissions of the parties reserved the matter for orders and permitted
SRA/RP/COC o file brief written synopsis.
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1. FINANCIALPERFORMANCE:

The highlights of the consolidated and standalone audited financial results for the year ended 31" March 2022 are as

follows:
Rs. in Millions
Standalone Consolidated
Audited Audited

Particulars 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Total Income 40.16 14.73 40.16 14.73
Expenditure 426.53 471.08 426.53 471.08
Finance Cost 44.82 40.23 44.82 40.23
Depreciation 4,17 9.40 4.17 9.40
Profit / Loss for the year before (435.36) (505.98) (435.36) (505.98)
Exceptional Items & Tax
Share of profit/(loss) of associates (net of tax)

- - (8.49) (5.89)
Exceptional Items
Tax Expense - - - _
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year after Tax (435.36) (505.98) (435.36) (511.87)

1. DIVIDEND AND TRANSFERTO RESERVE:

In view of losses incurred during the period under review, the Company does not recommend any dividend on the
equity shares for the financial year ended as on March 31, 2022.

During the year under review, the Company has made no transfer to reserves.

2. OPERATING RESULTS AND BUSINESS:

On Standalone basis Company's total income stands at Rs. 40.16 million as on March 31, 2022 as compared to Rs.
14.73 million as on March 31, 2021, a increase of 172.64%. The loss before taxes is Rs. 435.36 million as on March
31,2022 as against loss before taxes of Rs. 505.98 million as on March 31, 2021.

On Consolidated basis Company's total income stands at Rs. 40.16 million as on March 31, 2022 as compared to
Rs. 14.73 million as on March 31, 2021, registering a increase of 172.64 %. The loss before tax and exceptional
items stands at Rs. 443.85 million as on March 31, 2022 as against loss of Rs. 511.87 million as on March 31, 2021.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review detailing economic scenario and outlook, as
stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
LODR Regulations”)is presented in a separate section and forms integral part of this Report.
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4. CHANGESIN CAPITALSTRUCTURE:
A. AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crores Only) divided into
20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crores) equity shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two Only) each.

B. ISSUED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company has not issued and allotted any equity shares and the paid up
share capital stood at Rs. 24,49,34,336/- consisting of 12,24,67,168 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 2/-
eachason 31st March, 2022 and as on the date of report.

5. FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In Year 2012-13, the Company had raised USS 10 million, Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(“FCCB”) for redemption of outstanding Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds. The Bond holders, as
per the agreement, have the option to convert these bonds into Equity Shares, at a price of Rs.188.62 per share
within 5 years and 1 day from the date of disbursement. The FCCB are redeemable at a premium of 33.15 % on
principal after 5 years and 1 day. The FCCB were raised for the purposes of redemption of earlier FCCB of the
Company. As on March, 31, 2017 USS 10 million (previous year US$ 10 million) FCCB were outstanding for
conversion into equity shares of Rs. 2 each. The bonds were convertible latest by July 24, 2017. The Company was
not able to redeem these FCCB and thus has defaulted on redemption. In this regard, please note that the
Company is CIRP since May 30, 2017 and a moratorium period is in effect since 30th May 2017 wherein no judicial
proceedings for recovery, enforcement of security interest, sale or transfer of assets, or termination of essential
contracts can be instituted or continued against the Company.

6. SECURED,REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES & EXTERNAL COMMERCIALBORROWINGS
Non-Convertible Debentures

As on 31" March 2022, the Company has outstanding Secured Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) for an
aggregate value of Rs. 45 Crores comprising 350, 13.5% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures (Listed on Bombay
Stock exchange) of the face value of Rs.10,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs.35 Crores and 100, 13.25% Secured
Non-Convertible Debentures of the face value of Rs.10,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs.10 Crores.

The debenture trustee of these debentures is Axis Trustee Services Limited having its registered office at Axis
House, 2" Floor, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai, Maharashtra-
400025. Ph:-022-24255215/5216; email:-complaints@axistrustee.com; debenturetrustee @axistrustee.com.

The Company has defaulted on interest and redemption of these NCDs. In this regard, please note that the
Company is under CIRP since May 30, 2017 and a moratorium period is in effect since 30" May 2017 wherein no
judicial proceedings for recovery, enforcement of security interest, sale or transfer of assets, or termination of
essential contracts can be instituted or continued against the Company.

External Commercial Borrowings

In Year 2012-13, the Company has raised USS 70 million through External Commercial Borrowing (“ECB”)
comprising USS 30 million from International Financial Corporation (“IFC”) a member of the World Bank Group
and USS 40 million from Société De Promotion Et De Participation Pour La Coopération Economique (PROPARCO),
a French development financial institution. The ECB has a term of 8.5 years with a 3 years moratorium and the
coupon rate is LIBOR +4.5%. The ECB has been raised for purposes of redemption of existing FCCB. The said ECB is
outstanding at the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2020. The Company has made a default in payment of
interest and repayment of these ECBs. In this regard, please note that the Company is under CIRP from May 30,
2017 and a moratorium period is effective since 30" May 2017 wherein no judicial proceedings for recovery,
enforcement of security interest, sale or transfer of assets, or termination of essential contracts can be instituted
or continued against the Company.
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7. MATERIALCHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Material Changes affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the F.Y.2017-2023
and the date of thisreport:

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Educomp Solutions Limited (“Corporate Debtor”)
was initiated by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at New Delhi (“Adjudicating
Authority”) under Section 10 of the Code vide its order dated 30" May 2017. The Adjudicating Authority vide its
order, appointed Dr. Sanjeev Aggarwal as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to conduct the CIRP of the
Corporate Debtor. Thereafter, in the third CoC Meeting held on 12" September 2017, the IRP was replaced and Mr.
Mahender Kumar Khandelwal was appointed as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) to run the CIRP of the
Corporate Debtor.

Subsequently, the RP published Expression of Interest (“Eol”) \ inviting resolution plans for the revival and
restructuring of the Corporate Debtor. Further to the issuance of the Eol, the resolution plans were received from
one Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“Ebix”) and one Boundary Holdings SARL SPF. Pursuant to the discussions and
deliberations with the CoC, the Resolution plan submitted by the Ebix was put to vote. Ebix's resolution plan, in
terms of Section 30(4) of the Code, was finally approved by the CoC with 75.35% majority voting share on 22™
February 2018 including vote of Chhattisgarh State Electricity Board (“CSEB”) whose vote was received
subsequently due to a technical glitch. Pursuant thereto, the Resolution Professional submitted the Ebix's
Resolution Plan for the approval of the Adjudicating Authority by way of an application under Section 30(6) and 31
ofthe Code (CA 195 of 2018) (“Plan Approval Application”).

Around July 2019, while the Plan Approval Application was pending adjudication before the Adjudicating
Authority, Ebix filed its first application seeking withdrawal of the Resolution Plan on account of the purported
inordinate delay in approval of the resolution plan by the Adjudicating Authority, and ongoing investigations into
the affairs of the Corporate Debtor. The said application was dismissed by the Adjudicating Authority. Thereafter,
Ebix filed another withdrawal application in August 2019 on the similar cause of action. The second application was
also dismissed by the Adjudicating Authority. However, the third withdrawal application filed by Ebix (1A 1816 of
2019) after having been heard at length on 25" November 2019 was allowed by the Adjudicating Authority vide its
order dated 02™ January 2020 ('2™ January Order”). Thereby Ebix was permitted to withdraw its plan despite the
same having been approved by the Committee of Creditors of Educomp (“CoC”). The Adjudicating Authority also
imposed a cost of Rs. 1 lakh on Ebix and extended the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor by 90 days to begin from 16"
November 2019. The Adjudicating Authority directed the Resolution Professional to expedite the possibility of
achieving resolution of the stressed assets within such extended period.

As a consequence of the 2™ January Order passed by the Adjudicating Authority in third withdrawal application for
filed by Ebix (/A 1816 of 2019)., the Adjudicating Authority dismissed the Plan Approval Application filed by the
Resolution Professional vide its further order dated 3" January 2020.

Thereafter, the Committee of Creditors of Educomp (“CoC”) challenged the 2™ January Order passed by the
Adjudicating Authority allowing the withdrawal before the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (“NCLAT”)
on 28.01.2020 by way of an Appeal bearing number Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 203 of 2020 (“First
Appeal”). The First Appeal was listed for consideration before the NCLAT on 03.02.2020 wherein, the Appellate
Tribunal was pleased to issue notice in the appeal and further stayed the operation of the 2™ January order.

On 22 June 2020, the CoC filed another Appeal i.e. Company Appeal (AT)(Ins) No. 587 of 2020 (“Second Appeal”)
before the NCLAT against the 3 January order passed by the Adjudicating Authority thereby dismissing the
application of the RP seeking approval of the Resolution Plan filed by Ebix. It may be noted that the CoC gained the
knowledge of the 3“ January order only during the hearing in the First Appeal and therefore, could not challenge
the same atan earlier date.

The NCLAT allowed the First Appeal filed by the CoC vide its judgment dated 29" July 2020 and set aside the 2™
January order passed by the Adjudicating Authority inter alia holding that the Adjudicating Authority did not have
the power to allow Ebix (RA) to withdraw its resolution plan after it was approved by the CoC.
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Thereafter Ebix filed a Civil Appeal No. 3224 of 2020 (“Ebix Appeal/Appeal”) before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of
India (“Hon'ble Supreme Court”) challenging the NCLAT Judgment dated 29.07.2020 passed in the First Appeal on
the ground that (a) Ebix is not bound by the Resolution Plan until the same is approved by the Adjudicating
Authority; (b) inordinate delay in approval of the application under Section 31 and (c) pending SFIO and CBI
investigations into the affairs of Educomp called for withdrawal.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court was pleased to issue notice in the Ebix Appeal on 07" October 2020 and vide the same
order stayed the proceedings under Second Appeal before the NCLAT. The question of law involved in Ebix's Appeal
was “Whether the withdrawal of Resolution Plan is permitted after it has been approved by the CoC”.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court after hearing the parties vide its judgment dated 13" September 2021 dismissed the
Appeal on the ground that “The existing insolvency framework in India provides no scope for effecting further
modifications or withdrawals of CoC-approved Resolution Plans, at the behest of the Successful Resolution
Applicant, once the plan has been submitted to the Adjudicating Authority. The Hon'ble Court further held that “A
submitted Resolution Plan is binding and irrevocable as between the CoC and the successful Resolution Applicant in
terms of the provisions of the IBC and the CIRP Regulations.”

Accordingly, the Hon'ble Supreme Court dismissed Ebix's Appeal.

Consequent to the Supreme Court's order the NCLAT allowed the Second appeal, on 12th November 2021, dated
against the NCLT Order dated 3rd January 2020, and immediately thereafter the certified copy of the NCLAT order
dated 12th November 2021 along with the certified copy of Hon'ble Supreme Court Order were filed with the
Registry of the NCLT. However, despite filing the said orders before the Adjudicating Authority, the NCLT did not list
the matter in time. Therefore, to escalate the matter an application for restoration was (RA 39 of 2021) filed.
Finally, RA 39 of 2021 came up before the NCLT on 3rd December 2021, where the Adjudicating Authority
remarked that 'it's a shame that this matter couldn't be taken up on its own' and vide its order dated 03rd
December 2021it was said that there was no requirement of filing restoration application, nevertheless this
application has been filed in the deference of the Hon'ble Supreme Court and NCLT Order. The NCLT thereafter
listed the Plan Approval Application for hearing on 22nd December 2021.

On 22nd December 2021, the matter was listed for hearing and part argument took place. The matter was then
adjourned to 25th January 2022. However, before the matter could be taken up on the said adjourned date i.e.,
25th January 2022, an application (IA 187 of 2022) Ex-Director's Application was filed by the Ex-Director- Mr
Shantanu Prakash, also the promoter of Corporate Debtor, seeking direction from the Adjudicating Authority to
direct Resolution Professional to take action w.r.t the transaction which concerns the insolvency of Corporate
Debtor's subsidiary based out of Singapore. This application was also listed on 01.06.2022 along with Resolution
Professional's Plan Approval Application. However, the NCLT has not issued any notice in this application so far.

Thereafter, the Plan Approval Application was listed on 25 January 2022, but was simpliciter adjourned to 15
March 2022. Meanwhile, the Resolution Applicant filed another application 1A 397/2022, which came up for
hearing on 27 January 2022, and in the said application the Resolution Applicant sought certain information
irrespective of the Information Memorandum from the Resolution Professional regarding the annual returns,
financial statement and status of affairs of the Corporate Debtor. RP's Counsel opposed IA 397 of 2022 and also
filedareplytolA397 of 2022.

On 14 February 2022, 1A 397/2022 was listed before the NCLT, however, the reply filed by RP was not available on
record. The Adjudicating Authority on that date granted liberty to RA to file Rejoinder to IA 397 of 2022 and
adjourned it to 28 February 2022. On 28 February 2022, IA 397 of 2022 got listed before the Special Bench,
therefore, again it was adjourned to 08 March 2022 for it to be heard by the Regular Bench, the matter was
adjourned to 08 March 2022. The IA 397 of 2022 was finally taken up on 8th March 2022, where the RP Counsel
opposed the application extensively and the same was dismissed on the ground of being premature.

On 11th April 2022, fresh application IA 1611 of 2022 was filed by the Resolution Applicant seeking issuance of a
direction to the Resolution Professional to take steps to protect the assets owned by Corporate Debtor's Wholly
Owned Subsidiary (“EPEL”) attached by the Enforcement Directorate which was dismissed by the Adjudicating
authority the same day since the attached asset(s) were owned by EPEL and not the Corporate Debtor. The
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Adjudicating Authority adjourned the Plan Approval Application for hearing on 19 April 2022.

On 06 May 2022, the NCLAT heard the Co. Appeal (Ins.) No. 507 of 2022 filed by the Resolution Applicant
challenging the order dated 08 March 2022 passed by the NCLT dismissing IA 397 of 2022. The NCLAT dismissed the
appeal on the direction to RP that on the approval of the Resolution Plan, all of the required information which is
available with the Resolution Professional shall be provided to the Resolution Applicant.

On 06 May 2022, the Plan Approval Application was also listed before the Adjudicating Authority for hearing,
however, the same could not be taken up due to non-availability of Technical Member constituting the Bench
hearing the matter. The matter was adjourned to 24.05.2022 accordingly.

Thereafter on 19 May 2022, Co. Appeal (Ins.) No. 550 of 2022 preferred by Resolution Applicant against order
dated 11.04.2022 passed by NCLT in IA 1611 of 2022 was listed. The Hon'ble NCLAT pursuant to the submissions
made by respective parties disposed of the appeal by directing the Resolution Professional to share the Provisional
Attachment Order passed by Directorate of Enforcement with the Resolution Applicant.

On 24 May 2022, the Plan Approval Application was again listed for hearing before the Adjudicating Authority
however, the matter could not be taken up due to non-availability of the Bench to hear the matter post the lunch
hours. Accordingly, matter was adjourned to 01 June 2022.

On 01 June 2022, when the Plan Approval Application was taken up, the Judicial Member stated that since both
him and the technical member constituting the present Bench are retiring in June 2022, all pending matters would
only now be heard in the month of July. Accordingly, a short date of 08 July 2022 was given by the Registry for listing
the Plan Approval Application.

On 05 September 2022, the following applications were listed- C.A No. 195(PB) of 2018 — Plan Approval
Application, I.A No. 187 of 2022 — Application by Mr. Shantanu Prakash seeking directions and I.A. No. 3112 of
2022- Application filed by Sri Guru trust claiming to be an Operational Creditor. However, the matter could not be
taken up since the Judicial Member had to sit in another Bench post-lunch and the matter was adjourned to 29
September 2022.

In order to ensure a hearing of the Plan Approval Application on 29.09.2022, I.A 4377 of 2022 (listed on 14
September 2022) was filed by the Resolution Professional, seeking listing of the Plan Approval Application high on
board on the scheduled date of listing i.e. 29 September 2022 or to have the matter set down for a fixed time on
that date for expeditious disposal. The Bench acknowledged the request and disposed of the application directing
the Registry to list the Plan Approval Application at the top of the Board for the matters listed on 29 September
2022, after the supplementary and admission matters.

On 29 September 2022, the matter comprising the pending applications before the Adjudicating Authority were
listed before a Special Bench rather than the usual Bench to which the matter is assigned. The Bench stated that
since the Regular Bench was not available, the Bench adjourned the matter to 03 October 2022.

On 03 October 2022, the Senior Counsel representing the Resolution Professional submitted before the Bench that
apart from the Plan Approval Application, there are two applications pending, one filed by the ex -promoter and
the second by an operational creditor, both of which do not have any bearing on the Plan Approval Application.
Further, a request was also made to the Bench to decide the Plan Approval Application. The Bench noted the
submissions but expressed its inability to take up the matter as the Judicial Member had to take up the matters of
another Bench after lunch hours and accordingly adjourned the matter to 09 November 2022.

On 09 November 2022, the Bench again expressed its inability to take up the matter as the Judicial Member had to
take up the matters of another Bench and accordingly adjourned the matter to 06 December 2022.

On 06 December 2022, the Bench considered the Plan Approval Application at length and heard the submissions
made by Senior Counsel representing Resolution Professional up till 2 pm. Thereafter, the Bench adjourned the
matter to 07 December 2022 (the next day) for the resumption of arguments on the Plan Approval Application.

On 07 December 2022, the Bench directed the Resolution Professional's Counsel to resume arguments on the Plan
Approval Application. The Senior Counsel representing RP presented submissions on the contents of the
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Resolution Plan while simultaneously taking the Bench through the relevant clauses of the Plan. On this date, the
Bench for its understanding and reference directed the RP to file the Compliance Certificate dated 26.09.2018 in
the form of FORM-H. The matter was accordingly adjourned to 14 December 2022 for the purpose of bringing
Form Honrecord.

On 14 December 2022, in compliance with the order dated 07 December 2022, Form H was filed by the Resolution
Professional by way of an Additional Affidavit. However, the Bench stated that since the Ld. Technical Member has
to preside in another Bench after lunch and the AdditionalAffidavit so filed is also not yet reflecting on the DMS
(online portal) of the NCLT, the matter (all the pending applications) was accordingly adjourned to 03.01.2023.

On03January 2023, the following applications were listed:

I.  1LANo.195 of 2018 —Plan Approval Application by RP

Il.  1.ANo200f2023-Applicationto file Revised Form H by RP
. 1LANo.3112 0f2022-SriGurutrust Application

IV. LLANo.187 of 2022- Ex- Director Application

At first, the Bench took up (I.A. 20 of 2023) filed by the Resolution Professional to bring on record the revised Form
H to bring out greater clarity in respect of certain issues/ provisions under the Resolution Plan. The NCLT allowed I.
A200f2023 and took the revised Form H on record.

Thereafter, the Bench called out I.A 3112 of 2022 (Sri Gurutrust Application). The Bench took a brief overview of
the Sri Gurutrust Application filed by Sri Gurutrust claiming to be an Operational Creditor of the Corporate Debtor.
The Senior Counsel appearing for the Resolution Professional vehemently denied the maintainability of the
present application. The Bench then noted that they will take up the application after hearing the Plan Approval
application.

Thereafter, the Bench took up I.A. 187 of 2022 (Ex-Directors Application) and enquired about the issue involved in
the Application. After much elucidation on the Application by the Counsels representing respective parties, the
NCLT directed the Applicant and the RP Counsels to file a detailed chart of the entities involved and the transaction
under the Ex-Directors' Application for its understanding. Thereafter, all applications including the Plan Approval
Application were adjourned to 06 February 2023.

Itis pertinent to state that at present along with the pending Plan Approval Application- CA 195(PB) of 2018 filed by
the Resolution Professional, 1A 187 of 2022 filed by suspended Director Mr. Shantanu Prakash, IA3112 of 2022 filed
by Srigurutrust under Section 60(5) claiming to be an Operational Creditor, CA 160(PB) of 2018-Clarification
Application are also pending adjudication before the Adjudicating Authority and are next listed for consideration
on 06 February 2023.

On 06 February 2023, the Bench took I.A 187 of 2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
gave background about the application filed by Mr. Shantanu Prakash and issues involved. In response, the counsel
appearing on behalf of the RP inter alia challenged the maintainability of the application filed by Mr. Shantanu
Prakash under Section 45 and 47 of the Code. After hearing the submissions, the Hon'ble Bench determined six
questions and directed all parties to file short written synopsis. All the applications were directed to be listed on 01
March 2023 including I.A 195 of 2018 (Plan Approval Application) and I.A No. 3112 of 2022 (Sri Guru Trust
Application).

Thereafter, all the three applications were listed on 01 March 2023. When the matter was called out, the Bench
took I.A 187 of 2022. The Bench enquired about the status of the written synopsis as directed by the Bench by its
order dated 06 February 2023. The counsel appearing on behalf of the RP, Mr. Shantanu Prakash and SBI Singapore
informed the Bench that they have filed the written synopsis. The counsel appearing on behalf of the COC
informed that they could not e-file the written synopsis because of a technical fault in the filing system.
Meanwhile, Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash in IA No. 187/2022
joined the hearing via video conference. The bench was not inclined to hear Mr. Kirpal on video conference and
directed him to appear in person. Mr. Kirpal sought accommodation to appear and make submissions in IA No.
187/2022 after a week. After hearing the brief submissions of all parties, the Bench listed IA No. 187 on 22 March
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2023.

The Bench then took.ANo.3112 of 2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Shri Guru Trust gave a background of
the application. The counsel informed the Bench that the RP has admitted and acknowledged to pay INR
31,26,000 to the Applicant. Counsel appearing on behalf of the RP in response submitted that no claim form was
filed by the Applicant during the corporate insolvency resolution process and secondly no bifurcation is provided
by the Applicant to show which part of the claim belongs to post-CIRP and pre-CIRP period. The counsel also
submitted that any dues for post-CIRP period will become part of the CIRP and the dues pertaining to pre-CIRP
period cannot be accepted by the RP at this stage as the resolution plan is already pending approval before the
bench. After hearing the submissions, the Bench directed that upon the Applicant furnishing a break-up of its claim
INR 31,26,000, the RP would examine and verifying the same in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

Thereafter, C.A 195 (Plan approval application) was mentioned by Mr. P Nagesh. He submitted that there is great
urgency in the matter as also the long wait through which the lenders have been put through on account of the
delay. He also traced the background of the matter and prayed that the application be taken up and disposed of at
the earliest. Pursuant to his request, the Bench listed CA 195 along with IANo.187/2022 on 22 March 2023.

Thereafter, the matter was listed on 22 March 2023. However, due to paucity of time, the two remaining
applicationsi.e.,IANo.187/2022 and C.A 195 (Plan approval application) were adjourned to 24 April 2023.

On 24 April 2023, both the applications were listed. When the matter was called out, the Bench took IA No.
187/2022. During the hearing, the counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash sought for a pass over
since Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate leading them in the matter was held up in a constitution bench matter
before the Supreme Court. The Bench expressed its inability to pass over the matter and intended to give a short
date. The counsel appearing on behalf of the COCand the RP pressed listing of CA 195 (Plan Approval Application).
Uponthe request, the Bench have a short date and now listed the matter on 08 May 2023.

On 08 May 2023, the Bench first called out I.A 187/2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
sought for a pass over on the ground that Mr. Saurabh Kirpal was on his legs before another court. The Bench
expressed its inability to pass over the matter and requested Mr. P Nagesh to proceed with his submissions on C.A
No. 195 (PB) of 2018. The Bench accordingly took C.A No. 195 (PB) of 2018. Mr. P Nagesh, appearing on behalf of
the RP took the Bench through Form H and explained the amount payable to various creditors under the
Resolution Plan along with relevant clauses. Mr. P Nagesh also took the Bench through various compliances of the
Resolution Plan with the provisions of Code and CIRP Regulations. During the hearing, the Bench enquired about
fair value, Section 29A affidavit by the Successful Resolution Applicant, performance bank guarantee etc. In
response, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that the concept of fair value was inserted by IBBI by its notification dated
06.02.2018 and therefore, the same was not applicable. Further, P Nagesh referred to the referred to the
undertaking dated 28.11.2017 by the Successful Resolution Applicant giving its declaration cum undertaking that
thereis noviolation of Section 29A. The Bench on observing the multiplicity of pleadings that have been filed in C.A
No. 195 (PB) of 2018, directed the RP and the COC to comply with the following directions, within 1 (One) week:

(i)  Filingof the Resolution Plan along with all the annexures and addendums;

(i) Since the proposed Resolution Plan did not contain any provision for the Performance Bank Guarantee
("PBG”), the RP was directed to place the same on record. The Bench also stated that in case the same has not
been deposited, then the Successful Resolution Applicant must take steps to file the PBG;

(iii) Filing of a detailed table indicating the size of the plan and distribution of funds; The RP and COC were directed
tofile this as ajoint affidavit with reconciled figures, dates, pages etc.

(iv) Topointoutsource of funds andimplementation of the Resolution Plan duly approved by the COC

Mr. P Nagesh, on the direction of the Bench with respect to submission of PBG point, submitted that the RP cannot
place onrecord the PBG. Mr. P Nagesh referred to Regulation 36B of the CIRP Regulations and submitted that the
requirement of submitting a PBG in terms of Section 36B of CIRP Regulations came into effect only on 24.01.2019,
whereas the plan was approved on 22.02.2018. The Bench noted the observations of Mr. Nagesh and stated that
they will look into thisissue on the next date of hearing.
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Thereafter, I.A 187 was once taken up by the Bench. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
informed the Bench that Mr. Saurabh Kirpal is still on his legs and will be unable to appear before the Bench today
and accordingly requested for a date. In response, the Bench noted that an adjournment is being sought for the
second time on the ground of unavailability of Mr. Saurabh Kirpal and stated that they are of the opinion that the
Application by ex-director should be dismissed on the grounds of non-prosecution. The counsel appearing on
behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash requested for a last opportunity. The Bench allowed the request with the remark
that last opportunity is given to the ex-director to make submissions in support of his application, failing which the
application of the ex-director will be dismissed on grounds of non-prosecution on the next date of hearing. After
hearing the submissions, the Bench posted the matter on 25.05.2023.

In compliance of the directions given by the Bench, the RP filed its affidavit on 23.05.2023. On the next date of the
hearing i.e., 25.05.2023, both the applications were listed i.e., |.A 187/2022 and C.A 195 (PB)/2019. The Bench
took LA 187/2022 first. Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
proceeded with hisarguments. Mr. Saurabh Kirpalinter alia submitted that: -

. actual valuation of the shares that have been sold amounts to USD 250 Million and that it has been sold at a
highly undervalued price and in a non-transparent way.

. exception under explanation to Section 18 (i.e. assets of the Corporate Debtor shall not include assets of its
Indian or foreign subsidiary) has no bearing on the moratorium imposed under Section 14 of the IBCand that
the value of the shares of Educomp Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd. should have been protected by the RP in light of
Section 20 of IBC.

Thereafter, Mr. P Nagesh inter alia made the following submissions: -

. shares of Educomp Asia could not have been part of the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor first because they are
not owned by the Corporate Debtor and second in light of the exception under Section 18 of the IBC.

. shares have been sold under the liquidation proceedings pursuant to order of the High Court of Singapore
andthat no suchissue was raised by the ex-director before the liquidator of Educomp Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd.

3 there are various judicial precedents on this position of the NCLT and the NCLAT that the assets of the
subsidiary cannot be made part of the CIRP proceedings of the holding company.

The counsel appearing on behalf of SBI Singapore, and COC supplemented and supported the submissions of Mr. P
Nagesh. Inresponse, the Bench enquired about the difference and definition of asset and property. In response,
the counsel for SBI Singapore submitted that property has been defined under Section 3(27) of the IBC. The
counsel for SBI Singapore by way of relying on the provisions of the Income Tax Act and stated that property forms
part of asset, which is a bigger genus, and both the definitions cannot be distinguished and read independently in
IBC.

The Bench after hearing the submissions, reserved the orders in I.A 187/2022 with the direction to the counsel of
Mr. Shantanu Prakash, to file a written synopsis regarding the alleged valuation of the shares on 03.09.2021(date
on which the shares of Educomp Asia were sold). The Bench also directed the counsel of SBI Singapore to file a
written synopsis regarding the valuation of the shares of the Educomp Asia (Pte) Ltd. The Bench also directed the
counsel for SBI Singapore and ex-Director to submit the details regarding all the valuation of shares carried out by
both parties. RP was also directed to file compilation of judgements distinguishing definition of asset and property
under the law. After hearing the submissions, the Bench posted the matter on 08 June 2023.

On 08 June 2023, a special bench comprising of Sh. Mahendra Khandelwal (J) and Sh. L.N. Gupta (T) presided in
Court No. 2. P. Nagesh appearing on behalf of the RP apprised the special bench that IA 195/2019 is already part
heard before the Regular Bench comprising of Shri Ashok Bhardwaj (J) and Sh. L.N. Gupta (T) and therefore
requested that IA 195/2019 be immediately posted after the vacations. The counsel appearing on behalf of the
Resolution Applicant also requested the Special Bench that the matter be posted on the top of the board on the
next date of hearing.

Thereafter, the Plan Approval Application - CA 195(PB) of 2018 filed by the Resolution Professional was listed on 05
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July 2023. On that date, the matter could not be heard and the same was posted for 10 July 2023. On the next date
i.e.,10July 2023, due to torrential rains, the basement of the NCLT building was waterlogged and was inspected by
CPWD for civil and electric faults. Accordingly, the NCLT officials informed that the Bench would preside at 12 Noon
to hear the matters through video conference. However, at 12 Noon, the NCLT issued another notice informing
that the hearing for all the matters listed on 10.07.2023 stands suspended.

The Plan Approval Application - CA 195(PB) of 2018 was then listed on 31 July 2023. During the hearing, Mr.
Abhishek Sharma informed and submitted to the Bench that in compliance of the order dated 08 May 2023, an
affidavit has already been filed by the RP responding to the queries raised by the Bench. However, it was informed
by the court master that the same is not showing on record (DMS). In response, Mr. Abhishek Sharmainformed the
Bench that we had checked with the registry and noted that the affidavit was showing on the DMS and is on record.
However, since the court master could not locate the affidavit filed by the RP, the Bench directed the counsel of the
RP to ensure that the same is showing on the DMS (on record) and listed the matter at a short date on 07 August
2023.

On the next date i.e., 07 August 2023, Mr. P Nagesh Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of the RP made the
following submissions:

. In terms of the order dated 08 May 2023, the Bench raised certain queries with respect to the Resolution
Plan and directed the RP to respond to the queries by way of an affidavit. in compliance of the order, an
affidavit was filed by the RP on 23 May 2023.

. Mr. P Nagesh took the Bench through the queries and the responses. First, he referred to query no. 1 and
submitted that a copy of the entire Resolution Plan has been annexed as Annexure- 2 to the affidavit.

. He referred to query no. 2 with respect to non-submission of performance bank guarantee by Resolution
Applicant and submitted that Regulation 36B (4A) of the CIRP Regulations which requires the successful
resolution applicant to submit the performance bank guarantee came into force on 24.01.2019. However,
the request for resolution plan and the resolution plan was approved by the Committee of Creditors prior to
theamendmenti.e.,intheyear 2017 and 2018. Therefore, Regulation 36B (4A) was not applicable.

. Hu further submitted that the NCLT, Chandigarh Bench in Phoenix ARC Pvt. Ltd. v. Sarbat Cotfab Private
Limited having similar facts asin our case, approved the resolution plan.

The counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant by referring to the order dated 13 September 2021
submitted that that in terms of the RFRP, SRA/Resolution Applicant was required to replace its EMD with a PBG
equivalent to 10% of the Resolution Plan value, if it were to declared as the successful resolution applicant which is
also recorded in the said order. Accordingly, the counsel submitted that the RP did not seek any PBG from the
Resolution Applicant. On being enquired by the Bench as to what remedies are available in case the Resolution
Applicant fails to implement the Resolution Plan, Mr. P Nagesh informed that a recourse is available under Section
74 of the Code. The Bench noted the same, however, insisted that it is necessary to get the PBG from the Resolution
Applicant to secure implementation of the Resolution Plan as the Resolution Applicant had filed three applications
in the past for withdrawal of the Resolution Plan. Thereafter, the counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution
Applicant submitted the other objections to the Resolution Plan. The counsel submitted that the RP has
unilaterally modified the Resolution Plan by inserting Para No. 19 in the Plan Approval Application. The Bench
enquired whether such modification was placed before the COC for their approval and consideration. In response,
Mr. P Nagesh submitted that there is no modification in the Resolution Plan and Para No. 19 stated in the Plan
Approval Application is nothing but a clarification in terms of the addendum dated 21 February 2018 issued by the
Resolution Applicant. Mr. P Nagesh further took the Bench through various key dates and submitted that after the
addendum was received from the Resolution Applicant, the RP re-opened the e-voting and accordingly the
Resolution Plan along with the addendum was approved by the COC. Since, Para No. 19 was inserted only for
clarification, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that the same is not pressed by the RP and may be disregarded in order to
avoid confusion. The Bench allowed the request of Mr. P Nagesh and considered the final Resolution Plan dated 19
February 2018 along with addendum dated 21 February 2018.
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Thereafter, the counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant referred and submitted other objections
including but not limited to going concern issue, financial statements not being prepared etc. In response, Mr. P
Nagesh submitted that all these issues have already been dealt by the Hon'ble Supreme in its order dated 13
September 2021. The Hon'ble Bench took note of the same.

After hearing the submissions, the Bench directed the Resolution Applicant to submit the PBG within 4 weeks.
Further, the Bench directed the RP to be present on the next date of hearing. Mr. P Nagesh and counsel of the COC
submitted that 4 weeks will further delay the adjudication of the Plan Approval Application and accordingly
requested for a short time period. In response, the Bench granted 3 weeks' period to the Resolution Applicant to
submit the PBG. The Bench also noted the submissions and undertaking of the Resolution Applicant that the
Resolution Applicant will not withdraw the Resolution Plan for any reason related to PBG and accordingly listed the
matter on 29 August 2023.

Meanwhile, the application filed by the RP before the Hon'ble Supreme Court seeking expeditious disposal of the
Plan Approval Application was listed on 18 August 2023. Mr. Abhishek Sharma appeared on behalf of the RP and
made submissions. After hearing the submissions, the Hon'ble Supreme Court by its order dated 18 August 2023
directed the NCLT to dispose of the Plan Approval Application as expeditiously as possible or within 2 months from
the date of the order.

Meanwhile, on 25 August 2023, the Hon'ble Bench passed the final orderin |.A 187 and directed as follows: -

. RP to approach IBBI within one week for appointment of registered valuers to conduct the valuation of
shares of Learning Internet Inc. owned by Educomp Asia and pledged with SBI, Singapore as on 03.09.2021
subject to payment of fees by Mr. Shantanu Prakash.

o Valuers to submit the report within one month of their appointment in accordance with internationally
accepted valuation standards.

. If the valuation is found more than the value of USD 7.1 million for which the shares were sold on
03.09.2021, the claim of SBI Singapore against the Corporate Debtor would stand reduced to the equal or
thatextent.

. The CIRP qua the Corporate Debtor would continue unhindered and uninfluenced by the aforementioned

direction. The secured financial claim of the State Bank of India (Singapore) qua the Corporate Debtor would
be subject to the outcome of the valuation result/report.

On 29 August 2023, Mr. Abhishek Sharma appearing on behalf of the RP made the following submissions: -

. In terms of the last order, SRA was required to submit PBG within a period of 3 weeks, however, the SRA has
till date not complied with the said directions.

o Referred to the affidavit filed by the RP and took the bench through various queries raised by the Bench and
RP's response to the said queries.

o SRA s eligible under Section 29A of the Code and in this an undertaking has also been submitted by the SRA.
Further, a letter has also been issued by the RP to the COC confirming the eligibility of SRA under Section 29A
ofthe Code.

. Referred and took the Hon'ble Bench to various clauses of the Resolution Plan such as terms,
implementation, distribution, waiver etc.

During the hearing, the counsel appearing on behalf of the SRA reiterated its objections to the Plan Approval
Application which were submitted on the last date of the hearing. In response, Mr. Abhishek Sharma submitted
that the issues regarding erosion of commercial substratum of the Corporate Debtor were already argued by the
SRA before the Supreme Court. In addition to the same he had also filed an application bearing IA 397/2022
praying for similar reliefs which was dismissed by the Bench vide its Order dated 08.03.2022 and subsequently
reaffirmed by the NCLAT vide its Order dated 06 May 2022.
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The Hon'ble Bench after hearing the submissions of the parties reserved the matter for orders and permitted
SRA/RP/COCto file brief written synopsis.

As per Section 17 of the Code, on the commencement of CIRP against the Corporate Debtor,
(a) the management of the affairs of the company shall vest in the Resolution Professional.

(b) the powers of the Board of Directors of the company shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Resolution
Professional.

(c) the officers and managers of the company shall report to the resolution professional and provide access to such
documents and records of the company as may be required by the Resolution Professional.

(d) the financial institutions maintaining accounts of the company shall act on the instructions of the Resolution
Professional in relating to such accounts furnish all information relating to the company available with them to the
Resolution Professional.

The Company has received a letter dated October 12, 2018 from the Serious Fraud Investigation Office (“SFIO”),
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), Government of India, intimating the Company that the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has ordered an investigation into the affairs of the Company by the SFIO.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its Order No. 32/2018/SFIO/CL-1l dated 01.08.2018 has ordered an
investigation into the affairs of the Corporate Debtor by SFIO. The first communication requisitioning documents/
information was received from SFIO by the RP in October 2018. Since then, SFIO on numerous occasions has
requisitioned various documents/ information which were duly provided to them and the requisite information is
being provided to them as and when required. The last communication received from SFIO was on 28.09.2022.

There was no proper composition of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel. Most of the senior employees and
other staff had also resigned.

The Company has not complied with the various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR), 2015.
Due to this reason the authorities have imposed penalties on the Company. The overall working of the Company
has been affected.

The CBI had conducted search at the corporate office of the Corporate Debtor situated at 514, Udyog Vihar, Phase-
I, Gurugram on 11th February, 2020, the Registered office situated at 1211, Padma Tower |, 5, Rajendra Place,
New Delhi-110008 as well as the residences of the Promoters. . The raid was based on the complaint lodged by SBI
on behalf of itself and various consortium banks. During the search, the CBI team had taken various documents
from the corporate office. The list/ details of documents seized by CBI were also shared with the members of the
CoC. Subsequently, the CBI team has visited the corporate office on various occasions and were there for almost 15
days and had requisitioned various customer agreements mostly pertaining to the financial year 2011-12. Majority
of the customer agreements have been provided to them. Almost all the documents have been provided to the
CBI, some of them are pending since CBI has specifically asked for the original agreements however, photocopies
have been provided to them. The last communication received from CBI was on 29.12.2022.

SEBI Investigation matter against Educomp Solutions Limited: SEBI issued show cause notice dated 20.05.2021
bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/IVD/ID-16/VS/SS/2021/0532/1 u/s 11(1), 11(4), 11(4A), 11B(1) and 11B(2) r/w
15HA of Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”), and u/s 12A(2) read with section 23E and
23H of Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 and Rule 4 of SEBI (Procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing
Penalties) Rules, 1995 in the matter of investigation into the alleged manipulation of books of accounts of
Educomp Solutions Limited (“Show Cause Notice”).

In reference to the Show Cause Notice issued by SEBI, the RP on behalf of the Company filed its Reply on
12.07.2021. Thereafter, on 03.08. 2022, the RP also filed a Compilation of Judgments in support of the grounds
raised inits Reply. On 03.08. 2022, the matter was also listed before the Whole Time Member, SEBI and arguments
on behalf of the RP/Company were heard by the Whole Time Member, SEBI. After the hearing, on 18.08. 2022,
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Written Submissions were also filed by the RP on behalf of the Company. The other parties to the Show Cause
Notice also concluded theirarguments. On 19.04.2023, a notice was sent by the office of the SEBI calling for further
submissions as the matter would be listed for passing of orders. Accordingly, the RP on 25.04.2023 filed additional
written submissions. Thereafter, SEBI vide its email dated 22.05.2023 had sought certain information regarding
the Company from the RP. The same was duly provided by the RP on 24.05.2023. On 30.05.2023, SEBI passed order
in the Show Cause Notice. SEBI via the said order held that present proceedings initiated by SEBI against the
Company cannot be continued in light of the fact that the Company is undergoing CIRP vide order dated
31.05.2017 and that RP has been appointed vide order dated 12.09.2017 of the NCLT, New Delhi. Further, SEBI
imposed penalty on Shantanu Prakash and Jagdish Prakash. With the above holding, SEBI disposed off the Show
Cause Notice.

8. EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to the provision of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Return in Form
No. MGT-9 is presented in a separate section and is annexed herewith as “Annexure- I” to this report. Form No.
MGT-9 has been prepared on the basis of best efforts and information to the extent available. The same is also
available onthe Company's website www.educomp.com.

9. PUBLICDEPOSITS:
During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
10. SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATES

The Company has 40 subsidiaries and 1 associate Company as on March 31, 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of financial statements of the Company's
subsidiaries in Form No. AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the Company and marked as
Annexure |l.

I.  Duringtheyearended March 31,2019, 1 subsidiary namely Educomp infrastructure and school management
limited (EISML) has filed for insolvency on January 11, 2018 and on April 25, 2018 consequent to which
Resolution Professionals (RP) have been appointed in the company and all the powers to direct the state of
affairs of the company rests with the RP. Further, CoC of the EISML in September, 2019 approved a Resolution
Plan submitted by Mr. Paramjit Gandhi. Accordingly, the Resolution Professional of EISML on October 10,
2019filed an application for the approval of Resolution Plan at NCLT, Chandigarh which has been approved on
December 14, 2020. Accordingly, by virtue of provisions of Ind AS 110 Consolidated Financial Statement, the
Holding Company has lost its controlling power over the EISML and its 24 step-down subsidiaries (EISML
group) and have not been consolidated in the current year.

Il.  In absence of financial or other information from the overseas subsidiaries since beginning of CIRP period
despite best efforts, it has been determined by holding company, that the Group has lost control over 5
overseas subsidiaries namely Edumatics Corporation Inc. USA, Savvica Inc., Canada, Educomp IntelProp
Ventures Pte Limited, Educomp Global Holding FZE and Educomp Global WLL, during the year.

IIl.  EduSmart Services Private Limited (ESSPL) (a subsidiary through potential voting rights), Educomp Asia Pacific
Pte Limited. (EAPL), The Learning Internet Inc (L.com) and 1 step down subsidiary, Educomp Learning Hour
Private Limited have filed for insolvency on June 27, 2017, June 30, 2017, June 30, 2017 and December 11,
2017 respectively consequent to which Resolution Professionals (RP) have been appointed in the respective
companies and all the powers to direct the state of affairs of these companies rests with the respective RP's.
Accordingly, by virtue of provisions of Ind AS 110 Consolidated Financial Statement, the Holding Company has
lost its controlling power over the above mentioned subsidiaries and have not been consolidated in the
currentyear.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the
consolidated fidnancial statements will be available on our website
http://www.educomp.com/content/investors-home.
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11. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Ason 31st March 2022, thereis no director on the Board of the company.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders.

On May 05, 2021 the company has appointed Mr. Manoj Garg as Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Ankit Bisht as
Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 1st September, 2022. The Previous Company Secretary Mr. Lakshay Vaid
has resigned from the company w.ef. 31st August, 2022. Moreover, as on date of the report, the Company does not
have the Managing Director/CEQO/WTD.

Board Evaluation

As specified the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code w.e.f 30th May 2017.
Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised
by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Accordingly, due to the
suspension of the powers of the board no Board evaluation has been carried out during the year under review.

12. BOARD MEETINGS

On May 30, 2017, the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code. Thereafter, in accordance
with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution
Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Therefore, no board meeting was convened during the
reporting period.

13. COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The details regarding committees of the Board of Directors of the Company viz. composition, terms of reference,
and other information, as required, have been provided in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms
integral part of Annual Report.

14. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

As specified above that w.e.f May 30, 2017 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code.
Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised
by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Accordingly, the Company does
not have the necessary declaration, for period under review, from the Independent Director as required in
accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as
laid outin sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 16(1)(b) and 25 of the Listing
Regulations, 2015.

15. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has put in place a structured induction and familiarization programme for Independent Directors.
The Company through such programme familiarizes Independent Directors with a brief background of the
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company
operates, business model, operations of the Company, etc. Details on familiarization programme for Independent
Directors is posted on the Company's website and can be accessed at
http://www.educomp.com/content/familiarisationprogramme. No Familiarization program has been carried out
by the company during the period under review as the company is under CIRP w.e.f. May 30, 2017.

16. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed nomination
and remuneration Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their
remuneration as well as policy on the appointment and remuneration of other employees. The Remuneration
Policyis stated in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report.
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17. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of knowledge and beliefs and according to the information and explanations obtained by the RP of the
Company, the RP makes the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013::

a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) That the RP has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit/loss of the Company for the period ended on March
31,2022;

c¢) That RP has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) Thattheannualaccounts have been prepared on agoing concern basis; and

e) That properinternal financial controls were laid down and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively.

f)  Thatthe RP has devised the proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

18. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

The Company is having no new operations and servicing only to old customers and hence comprises of very limited
staff. Educomp had total employee strength of 38 ason 31" March, 2022as compared to43 ason 31" March, 2021.

19. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES:

As specified above that w.e.f May 30", 2017 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code.
Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised
by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. The Company does not have the
written declaration, for period under review, in Form DIR-8 from all Directors as required under the provisions of
Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014.

20. CORPORATESOCIALRESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and CSR Policy, as per the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules
2014. For other details regarding the CSR Committee, please refer to the corporate governance report, which
forms part of this report. Further, the Annual Report on CSR Activities in format prescribed in Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility) Rules, 2014 including the brief outline of the corporate social responsibility (CSR)
policy of the Company annexed to this report Annexure lll.

The Company has losses in the past periods and has no amount attributable to Corporate Social Responsibility as
per the Companies Act and the company is currently undergoing Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process,
Hence, no expenses towards the Corporate Social Responsibility is required.

21. AUDITORS & AUDITOR'S REPORT:

Itis to be noted that Committee of Creditors has power to appoint the statutory auditor of the Corporate Debtor
and its through Committee of Creditors' approval only that the appointment can be done. Further, under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”), the Resolution Professional, during the CIRP, cannot make
changesin the appointment or terms of contract of statutory auditors or internal auditors of the Corporate Debtor
without the prior approval of the Committee of Creditors of the Corporate Debtor.

In view of above, subject to the approval of the members of the Company, the Members of the Committee of
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Creditors approved the appointment of M/s Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co. Chartered Accountants as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25 by 84.75 per cent of voting share of the financial
creditors on the recommendation of the Resolution Professional in the 28" CoC meeting held on 24" January, 2023.

Further, the members of the Company also approved the appointment of M/s Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co. Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25 in the 26" Annual General
Meeting held on 27" March, 2023.

The Company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co, Chartered
Accountants of the Company, along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within the
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be
appointed as the Statutory Auditors in terms of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

1,189.21 million (net of accumulated loss
allowance of Rs. 14,684.11 million) as on March
31,2022, the managementis of the view that the
same are good and fully recoverable in due
course and hence no further loss allowance is
required. Out of the above, trade receivables
only to the extent of Rs. 7.64 million have
subsequently been realized/adjusted by the
Company till March 31, 2023. In absence of
appropriate audit evidences including balance
confirmations, correspondences from parties
and details of subsequent realization post
March 31, 2023, we are unable to comment on
the recoverability of balance outstanding trade
receivables of Rs. 1,181.57 million and the
possible impact of the same on the loss for the
year ended March 31,2022, and on the equity as
onthatdate.

NS(; Audit Observation Our Remarks

1. [ Asmentioned in Note 3.1 to the Standalone Ind The management has physically verified the
AS Financial Statements, the Management did fixed assets lying only at Corporate Office
not conduct physical verification of Property, Gurgaon on October 23, 2020. The offices at
plant and equipment at certain locations having other locations of the company have been shut
a net carrying value of Rs. 5.20 million as at down due to liquidity and business constraints
March 31, 2022.In absence of the same, we are and the assets lying at these locations, carrying
unable to comment over existence, valuation, value of Rs. 5.20 million, have been shifted to the
and the extent of the adjustment, if any, required warehouses based out at Mahipalpur (New
in respect of these assets as at March 31, 2022 Delhi) and Chennai which could not be
and the resultant possible impact of the same on physically verified during the year.
the loss for the year ended on that date and on
the equity as on thatdate.

2 | As regards trade receivable amounting Rs. The Provision has been created on smartclass

customers against whom legal action has been
initiated and on remaining Customers including
ICT (Govt. customers) and retail customers on
case to case basis. We are regularly collecting
money from these customers. The receivables of
Rs. 1,189.21 million are good and recoverable.
However due to company being in IBC the
auditor had given this qualification. The fact
that an amount of Rs. 8 million has been
recovered upto March 31, 2023 from these
receivables demonstrates that the receivables
are good and recoverable. The balance
receivables will be collected in the next two
years subject to their service commitments with
the customers under these contracts.
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As mentioned in Note 24.2 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Company follows
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measuring
impairment loss allowance of its trade receivables.
The ECL allowance or loss rate is computed based
on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience. However, for the
computed loss rate as mentioned in Note 24.2 to
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, we
have not been provided with any underlying
workings of such loss rate computed by the
Company.

Further, the Company has not taken effect of
aforesaid loss rate in computation of impairment
loss allowance, if any on trade receivables over and
above the existing provision in the books of
account. In absence of relevant workings and other
details, we are unable to comment on the
appropriateness of the loss rate and the possible
impact of not considering the effect of the loss rate
in impairment loss allowance on the trade
receivables balance as at March 31, 2022 and the
loss for the year ended on that date and on the
equity ason that date.

NS(; Audit Observation Our Remarks

3. As mentioned in Note 12.4 to the Standalone Ind AS As the CIRP initiated, financial creditors has filed

Financial Statements, the Company has not their claims which are crystallized and admitted
accrued interest on borrowing post May 30, 2017, claims are already filed with NCLT, post approval of
being Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process resolution plan by COC. Since post admission of
("CIRP") commencement date. The amount of such claim, no liability can accrue on account of
interest not accrued is estimated to be Rs. 3,643.95 interest, therefore same is not provided.
million for the reporting financial year and Rs.
14,987.48 million till March 31, 2022. This has
resulted in understatement of financial liabilities by
Rs. 14,987.48 million as at March 31, 2022;
understatement of loss for the year by Rs. 3,643.95
million and overstatement of equity by Rs.
14,987.48 million as on that date.

4. As disclosed in Note 14 to the Standalone Ind AS The Company had received advances from
Financial Statements, the advance from customers customers, which are outstanding for more than
includes amount received from non-corporate one year and still lying in the books as on March 31,
entities of Rs. 80.47 million which is deemed to be 2022.These advances main|y pertain tothe pre CIRP
deposit u/s 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read | period and includes amount of Rs. 80.47 million
with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules received from non corporate entities. The advances
2014 and thereby in violation of section 73 to 76 of cannot be repaid after initiation of CIRP and the
the Cqmpanles Act, 2013. The !mpact of the non- same will be settled, if any, in accordance with the
compliance on the accompanying Standalone Ind . f the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
AS Financial Statements is presently not provision o L v ptey

) 2016 and regulationsissued there under
ascertainable.

5.

The Company following the provisioning method
based on the legal recovery status initiated against
the customer. Historically we are following norms
asunder.

1. For the cases closed/ cancelled 100%
provision.

2.  Forthe cases arbitration award passed in our
favour 60% provision.

3.  For the cases under arbitration (award not
yet passed) 100% provision.

4.  For the cases arbitration award passed but
setaside 100% provision.

5. For the cases amount over due more than
five-year 100% provision.

The same clarified in note # 25.2 of our Financial
Statement.

It is technical qualification based on different view
ontheadoption of Ind AS.
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No.

Audit Observation

Our Remarks

We have neither got the direct confirmations nor
provided with the statements for borrowings from
banks and financial institutions amounting to Rs.
12,918.05 million as at March 31, 2022. Further, in
case of bank borrowings amounting to Rs.
5,241.32 million wherein we have received the
confirmations or bank statements, the amount
recorded in the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements is short by Rs. 1,835.92 million in
comparison to amounts reported in the
confirmations or bank statements. In the absence
of reconciliations and other alternative audit
evidence, we are unable to determine any possible
impact thereof on the loss for the year ended 31st
March 2022 and on balance of borrowings and
equityasatMarch 31,2022.

All the loan accounts with lenders were NPA and
lenders did not share loan statements with the
Company.

As audit procedure, auditor had sent letters to
confirm the balance of loan but lenders hadn't
provided balance confirmations.

Since the company admitted in IBC on May 30,
2017, lenders had filed their claims. After that date
no statement provided by lenders.

In some of the cases where the lenders provided
the confirmation directly to the auditors without
complete loan statement, we are unable to
reconcile and comment upon the difference
between balance as per books and balance as per
confirmations.

Balance in borrowings other than bank
borrowings mentioned in paragraph 6 above,
amounting to Rs. 7,492.17 million as at March 31,
2022 are subject to confirmation. Borrowings
other than bank borrowings amounting to Rs. 10
million wherein we have received the balance
confirmation, the amount recorded in the Ind AS
Financial Statements is short by Rs. 4.05 million. In
the absence of any alternative audit evidence, we
are unable to comment on any possible impact
thereof on the loss for the year ended 31st March
2022 and on balance of borrowings and equity as
atMarch 31,2022.

As audit procedure auditor had sent letters to
confirm the balance of loan accounts but bankers
hadn't provided balance confirmation.

Since the company admitted in IBC on May 30,
2017, lenders had filed their claims. After that date
no statement provided by lenders.

In some of the cases where the lenders provided
the confirmation directly to the auditors without
complete loan statement, we are unable to
reconcile and comment upon the difference
between balance as per books and balance as per
confirmations.

As disclosed in Note 28 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, financial guarantees
aggregating Rs. 13,215.60 million were issued to
banks on behalf of its erstwhile subsidiaries. As per
Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments"”, the said
financial guarantees are required to be initially
measured at fair value and subsequently
measured at the higher of (i) the amount of loss
allowance in accordance with Expected Credit Loss
("ECL") method and (ii) amount initially recognized
less cumulative amount of income recognized in
income statement. However, no measurement of
financial guarantees at fair value and estimation of
loss allowances in accordance with ECL method
were performed during the year. In absence of
such measurement, we are unable to comment on
the resultant impact thereof on the loss for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and corresponding
liability and equity as on that date.

It is technical qualification on adoption of Ind AS
and the liability against corporate guarantees
provided by the company towards borrowings of
subsidiaries shall only be crystallized upon default
and invocation by the lenders. It doesn't have any
impact on profit and loss account of the company.

Financial guarantees are part of the claims
submitted by the lenders, so no provision made
duringyear.
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Nsc; Audit Observation Our Remarks

9. | The Company has not determined the provision for In FY 2017, the Company has requested to all its
penal interest for defaults on borrowings as per the lenders to waive penal interest as company is
contractual terms of the underlying agreements. In facing liquidity crunch and not able to generate
absence of such assessment, we are unable to adequate cash flows to meet its normal debt
comment on the possible impact thereof on the loss obligation. Hence company has not computed and
for the year ended March 31, 2022 and on the provided for penalinterest.
balance of borrowings and equity as on that date. Post CRP admission, financial creditors has filed

their claims which are crystallized and admitted
claims are already filed with NCLT, post approval of
resolution plan by COC. Since post admission of
claim no liability can accrue on account of interest,
therefore same is not provided.

10.| As disclosed in Note 6.5 to the Standalone Ind AS The balance with banks in current account of Rs.
Financial Statements, the balance with banks in 7.45 million is not reflected in the bank statement
current account amounting to Rs. 7.45 million is not as the bank have adjusted the same against Term
verifiable as the same is not reflected in the bank Loan during CIRP period. The bank was not
statement. As per the bank statement available, the supposed to recover any amount during the
bank has already debited this amount in October, moratorium under section 14 of the Insolvency
2017 i.e. during the CIRP period where moratorium and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Since the company
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 has taken up the matter with the concerned bank,
was in force prohibiting such actions. The company the amount is shown in balance with banks in
has not recorded this transaction in its books of currentaccount.
accounts and therefore, the cash and bank balance
as on March 31, 2022 is overstated by said amount
along with overstatement of equity for the
equivalentamount on that date.

11 | We have neither got the direct confirmation nor Company has requested for bank statement but
provided with the bank statements for balance with bank had not provided with statement of current
banks in current accounts, term deposit and margin account, term deposit and balance of margin
money with aggregate amount of Rs. 0.20 million. In money maintained with them.
the absence of any alternatlve. ewFIence, we are As audit procedure, auditor had sent letters to
unable to comment on any possible impact thereof . .
on the loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 and conﬁrr.n the balan'ce In current accounts, term
on the balance with banks as at March 31,2022 and deposit and . marg!n money to aII. banl_<ers but

. bankers hadn't provided balance confirmation.
on equity ason that date.
We don't have any control over bankers to provide
such confirmations to auditors.
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Nsc; Audit Observation Our Remarks

12.1 As mentioned in Note 4(ii) to the Standalone Ind AS | The intangible assets (which contains knowledge
Financial Statements, the Company has fully | based content) have been fully amortized ftill the
amortized its intangible assets (which contains | previous year FY 2020-21 in accordance with the
software and knowledge based content) as per it's accounting policy of the company. However, the
accounting policy but the same continues to generate | 4onoiple assets are still in use and continue to
revenue forthe company. In gbsence of re-assessment generate revenue.
of the useful life of the intangible assets, we are unable
to comment on the resultant impact of amortization
on the loss for the year ended on March 31, 2022,
carrying value of intangible assets and on the equity as
onthatdate.

13.| The Company's investment in its subsidiary | Despite the regular follow-ups, we have not been able
companies viz. Educomp Learning Private Limited, | to get the financial of these subsidiaries, hence we
Educomp School Management Limited, and | unable to get fair valuation of investments for further
Educomp Professional Education Limited | impairment.
aggregating to Rs. 701.73 million (net of provision for
impairment of Rs. 2,581.30 million) has not been
evaluated for any further impairment during the
year. These subsidiary companies have not furnished
their audited financial statements nor latest
valuation reports of these companies have been
made available. In absence of appropriate audit
evidence, we are unable to comment upon
appropriateness of carrying amount of investments
and possible impact of the same on the loss for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and equity as on that
date.

14.1 s explained in Note 36 to the Standalone Ind AS | Due to inadequacy of the profits, managerial
Financial Statements regarding managerial | remuneration paid by the Company to one of its
remuneration paid to one of the whole time directors | Whole Time Director during the quarter ended June
of the Company during the quarter ended June 30, | 30, 2015 and year ended March 31, 2015, was in
2015 and during the year ended March 31, 2015 in | excess of limits prescribed under Section 197 and
non-compliance with the requirements of Section 198 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
197 and Section 198 read with Schedule V to the | 2013. Similarly, managerial remuneration paid
Companies Act, 2013, and paid during the year | during the financial year ended March 31, 2014 to
ended March 31, 2014 in non-compliance with the | one of its Whole Time Director was also in excess of
requirements of Section 198, Section 269 and limits prescribed under Section 198, 269 and 309
Section 309 read with Schedule Xlll to the Companies | read with Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956.
Act, 1956, for which the Central Government's [ The management of the Company had filed an
approvalisyetto be obtained. applications to the Central Government to obtain its

approval for the waiver/approval of the
remuneration so paidin years ended March 31,2014,
March 31,2015 and quarter ended June 30, 2015.

Since the Company had not received any response
from the Central Government approving or granting
any waiver for the said excess remuneration,
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pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(9) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company (through its
resolution professional) has sought a refund via
email dated December 28, 2020, for the entire
excess remuneration paid. The amount is
however, yet to be refunded by the Whole Time
Director.

Further the company had not paid any
remuneration to whole time directors after June
30, 2015.

15.

As disclosed in Note 39 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, as per the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code and Regulations issued there
under, the RP has received, verified, and admitted
the claims submitted by the creditors (Operational
and Financial), employees and workmen of the
Company aggregating to Rs. 30,437.72 million as
on May 30, 2017. These claims have been taken
into cognizance by Committee of the Creditors
(CoC) in its 12th meeting held on February 17,
2018, while approving the Resolution Plan of the
Company. The details of such claims have been
disclosed in the said note. As represented by the
Management/RP, a reconciliation of the admitted
claims vis-a-vis liabilities outstanding as at March
31, 2022 as per books of accounts has not been
prepared and any impact thereof has not been
considered in the preparation of these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2022.

In absence of the above, we are unable to
comment upon appropriateness of carrying value
of such liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and any
possible impact of the same on the loss for the
yearended on that date and equity as at that date.

As per the Insolvency Code, the RP has received,
verified and admitted the claims submitted by the
creditors (Operational and Financial), employees
and workmen of the Company till the approval of
resolution plan by the CoC. The RP has received
claims of Rs. 31,378.12 millions, verified and
admitted claims of Rs. 30,437.72 millions and
claims of Rs. 940.41 millions not admitted by RP.
These claims have been taken into cognizance by
CoCinits 12th meeting held on February 17, 2018,
while approving the Resolution Plan of the
Company. As represented by the Management/RP,
pending approval of the Resolution Plan by
Hon'ble NCLT, a reconciliation of the admitted
claims vis-a-vis liabilities outstanding as at March
31, 2022 has not been prepared and any impact
thereof has not been considered in the
preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,
2022.

16.

As disclosed in Note 40 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Company is currently
subjected to the investigations by Serious Fraud
Investigation Office (SFIO) and the Central Bureau
of Investigation (CBI). As further explained to us,
certain information has been requested by them
from the Company and the investigations are
currently underway and the Company is yet to get
any orders or directions in this respect from the
said Authorities till the date of signing this report.
In absence of pending final outcome of the
investigations, we are unable to comment on th
consequential impact of these matters on these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and
forthe year ended March 31, 2022.

The Company is currently subjected to the
investigations by Serious Fraud Investigation
Office (SFIO) and the Central Bureau of
Investigation (CBI). Certain information have been
requested by them from the Company and the
investigations are currently underway. The
Company is yet to get any orders or directions in
this respect from the said Authorities till the date
of signing these financial statements.
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17.

As disclosed in Note 41 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Company did not have
any internal audit conducted during the year as
required under section 138 of the Act. The impact
of the non-compliance on the accompanying
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is
presently notascertainable.

Due to the limited bandwidth the Company has
not carried out any internal audit during the year
asrequired under sections 138 of the Act.

18.

As disclosed in Note 42 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements are not authenticated by the
Company Secretary of the Company whichis notin
compliance applicable provisions of the Act. Also,
the impact of these non-compliances on the
accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements is presently not ascertainable.

The Company has filed the IBC on dated May 30,
2017, there after the powers of the board has been
suspended and the company secretary signed the
Financial Statements on behalf of the board as per
companies act 2013. As the board is not in place
so company secretary has not signed the financial
statements.

19.

As disclosed in Note 43 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements are not approved by the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company which is not in
compliance with section 134 (1) of the Act. The
impact of this noncompliance on the
accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statementsis presently not ascertainable.

The Company has filed the IBC on dated May 30,
2017, there after the powers of the board has been
suspended and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
signed the Financial Statements on behalf of the
board as per companies act 2013. As the board is
not in place so CFO has not signed the financial
statements.

20.

As disclosed in Note 44 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Company has not beenin
compliance with various other provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015,
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017. The financial or
other impact of these non-compliances on these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is
presently notascertainable.

As the company is under IBC, we don't have
control and information regarding foreign
subsidiary companies to comply the RBI
requirement. Further regular compliances are
made based on available information. Similarly,
SEBI and ROC compliances are not complied with
due to non finalization of audited accounts.

Audit Observations and management response for the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended

on 31.03.2022

S .
No.

Audit Observation

Our Remarks

1.

As fully explained in Note 49.1 of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements, and as represented
by the RP, the financial statements and other
financial information for the year ended March 31,
2022 relating to 7 subsidiaries namely Whitestone
Production Private Limited, Educomp Learning
Private Limited, Educomp Online Supplemental
Service Limited, Educomp School Management
Limited, Educomp Professional Education Limited,
Educomp Investment Management Limited and
Educomp Software Limited are not available with
the management/RP of the holding company. In

Despite the regular follow-ups, we have not been
able to get the financials of these subsidiary
companies as explained in audit observation, we
are consolidating the financials of these subsidiary
companies based on last available financial
statementi.e for the year 2019-20.
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absence of the same, the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements are prepared using the last
available financial information with the RP.
Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared based on the
unaudited financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2020 in respect of these subsidiaries,
which is not in compliance with the requirements
of Ind AS-110 “Consolidated Financial
Statements". Therefore, in absence of availability
of financial information for the year ended March
31, 2022 in respect of these subsidiaries, we are
unable to comment on any possible impact of the
same on the consolidated statement of Profit &
Loss for the year ended March 31,2022 and on the
financial position and Equity, including various
mandatory disclosures of the Group and its
associates and jointly controlled entity as on that
date

As fully explained in Note 40A.2(ii) of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial Statements, the
Group Management, on the basis of their
assessment, has concluded that the Group no
longer controls 5 of the subsidiaries, incorporated
outside India, namely Edumatics Corporation Inc.
USA, Savicca Inc., Canada, Educomp Intelli Prop
Ventures Pte Ltd, Educomp Global Holding WLL,
Bahrain and Educomp Global FZE and accordingly,
has not consolidated financial statements of these
subsidiaries as at and for the year ended March 31,
2022. We have not however, been provided with
the management's assessment of loss of control in
respect of these subsidiaries. In absence of such
assessment, we are unable to comment on the
appropriateness of the assessment of loss of
control and consequential impact of non-
consolidation of financial statement of these 5
subsidiaries on the consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, if any.

Despite the regular follow-ups, we have not been
able to get the financials from last 3-4 years and in
absence of no communication, we are unable to
control the subsidiaries located outside india. We
are unable to consolidate the financials of these
subsidiaries.
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3.

We draw attention to Note 40A.2 to the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, which
explains that as per Ind AS 110 "Consolidated
Financial Statements", the Group was required to
derecognize assets and liabilities of the
subsidiaries on the date when the control was lost.
As represented by the management of the Holding
Company, since the financial statements of above
5 subsidiaries as on the date of loss of control are
not prepared/available with the management,
loss of control accounting has been done on the
basis of last available unaudited financial
statements i.e. for the year ended March 31, 2016
in respect of 1 subsidiary namely Savicca Inc.,
Canada; and based on the last available audited
financial information i.e. for the year ended March
31, 2017 in respect of 4 subsidiaries namely
Edumatics Corporation Inc. USA, Educomp Intelli
Prop Ventures Pte Ltd, Educomp Global Holding
WLL- Bahrain and Educomp Global FZE. In absence
of the financial statements on the date of loss of
control, we are unable to comment upon any
possible impact of the same on the consolidated
statement of profit & loss for the year ended
March 31, 2022 and on the consolidated financial
position and the equity as on that date.

Despite the regular follow-ups, we have not been
able to get the financials from last 3-4 years and in
absence of no communication, we are unable to
control the subsidiaries located outside india. We
are unable to consolidate the financials of these
subsidiaries

We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of
7 subsidiaries (Including one step down subsidiary
company), whose Ind AS financial statements
reflects total assets of Rs. 949.55 million and net
assets of Rs. 643.25 million as at March 31, 2022,
total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash outflow
amounting to Rs. Nil million for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2022. As disclosed in Note 49.1, the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements as at March 31, 2022
are prepared based on last unaudited and
unapproved financial statements as at March 31,
2020, therefore, we are unable to comment on
their correctness and completeness and whether
any adjustment or disclosure is required in the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement. We also
could not comment whether financial statements

Despite the regular follow-ups, we have not been
able to get the financials of these subsidiaries,
hence we consolidate the unaudited financials of
these subsidiaries based on last available financial
statements provided by management of
respective company.
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of these subsidiary companies (including one step
down subsidiary) are in compliance with the
Indian Accounting Standards as specified under
section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued there under.

Inthe absence of availability of financial statement
of subsidiary companies as stated in para 1 above,
we are unable to obtain the sufficient appropriate
audit evidence as required under SA 600 “Using
the work of another Auditor” with respect to
scope and timing of their work on financial
information and their findings, if any; and also, not
able to ensure compliance of SA 560 “Subsequent
events”. Therefore, we are unable to comment
whether this may lead to any possible adjustment
or disclosure in these consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements had this procedure been
performed.

Despite the regular follow-ups, we have not been
able to get the audited financials of these
subsidiaries.

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements, which states that the
Directorate of Enforcement vide its order dated
March 28, 2022 has provisionally attached the
land of EPEL measuring 23 acres and 18 guntas
situated at district Ranga Reddy, Andhra Pradesh
under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act,
2002, along with rent of Rs. 0.19 million and
Rs.2.12 million available in a Bank account and
deposited with Delhi High Court respectively. The
carrying value of the said land as at March 31, 2022
is Rs. 891.10 million after revaluation (Increase) by
Rs. 659.90 million in the financial year 2019-20. No
adjustment has been made in these Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statement in respect of this
provisional attachment made by the Directorate of
Enforcement. As the further investigation is still
under progress, we are unable to comment on the
consequential impact of the said attachment on
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
atand for the year ended March 31, 2022.

As per Order of Directorate of Enforcement vide its
order dated March 28.2022 has provisionally
attached the land of EPEL.
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On review of the financial statements of the
Educomp Software Limited, a step-down
Subsidiary, as considered in these Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements and enquiries with the
Management of the Holding Company, we noted
that the Subsidiary has a bank borrowing of Rs.
170.81 million outstanding for last several years, in
respect of which the management of the Holding
Company neither have any underlying documents
like bank statement nor they provided any
satisfactory explanation to us regarding
completeness of this balance. In absence of that,
we are unable to determine any possible impact
thereof on these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as at for the year ended March 31,
2022and on the loss for the year ended March 31,
2022 and on the balance of borrowings and equity
asonthatdate.

Based on unaudited financials provided by
respective company, these financials has been
clubbed.

We draw attention to Note 12, Inventories which
include Rs. 17.80 million pertaining to Educomp
School Management Ltd, in respect of which the
management of the Holding Company neither has
any underlying documents like physical
verification report nor they provided any
satisfactory explanation to us regarding
completeness of this balance. In absence of that,
we are unable to determine any possible impact
thereof on the loss for the year ended March 31,
2022 and on the balance of inventory and on the
equityasonthatdate.

Based on unaudited financials provided by
respective company, these financials has been
clubbed.

As disclosed in Note 59 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Educomp Solutions
Limited, a step-down subsidiary didn't have any
director on board and rest of the subsidiary
Companies didn't have requisite number of
directors on the board resulting in non-
compliance with section 149 of the Companies Act
2013. Further the subsidiary companies are in non
compliance with various other provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and other statutes. The
financial or other impact of these non-
compliances on these Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements is presently not
ascertainable.

The Subsidiary companies are non compliance
with Section 149 of Companies Act 2013.
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10.

As mentioned in Note 3.2 to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, the Management of the
Holding Company did not conduct physical
verification of property, plant and equipment at
certain locations having a net carrying value of Rs.
5.20 million as at March 31, 2022. In absence of
the same, we are unable to comment over
existence, valuation and the extent of the
adjustment, if any, required in respect of these
assets as at March 31, 2022 and the resultant
possible impact of the same on the loss for the
year ended on that date and on the equity as on
thatdate.

The management has physically verified the fixed
assets lying only at Corporate Office Gurgaon on
October 23, 2020. The offices at other locations of
the company have been shut down due to liquidity
and business constraints and the assets lying at
these locations, carrying value of Rs. 5..83 million,
have been shifted to the warehouses based out at
Mabhipalpur (New Delhi) and Chennai which could
not be physically verified during the year.

11.

We draw attention to trade receivable at Note 13 of
Rs. 1,190.35 million (net of accumulated loss
allowance of Rs. 14,697.57 million) as on March 31,
2022, the management of the Holding Company is
of the view that the same are good and fully
recoverable in due course and hence no further
loss allowance is required. Out of the above, trade
receivables only to the extent of Rs. 7.64 million
have subsequently been realized by the holding
Company till March 31, 2023, being the date of
subsequent realization testing for the purpose of
audit of standalone financial statements. In
absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidences
including balance confirmations, correspondences
from parties and details of subsequent realization
post March 31, 2023, we are unable to comment
on the recoverability of balance outstanding trade
receivables of Rs. 1,182.71 million and the possible
impact of the same on the carrying value of trade
receivables, loss for the year ended March 31,
2022 and, onthe equity, as on that date.

The Provision has been created on smartclass
customers against whom legal action has been
initiated and on remaining Customers including
ICT (Govt. customers) and retail customers on case
to case basis. We are regularly collecting money
from these customers. The receivables of Rs.
1,234.49 million are good and recoverable.
However due to company being in IBC the auditor
had given this qualification. The fact that an
amount of Rs. 38 million has been recovered upto
December 31, 2022 from these receivables
demonstrates that the receivables are good and
recoverable. The balance receivables will be
collected in the next two years subject to their
service commitments with the customers under
these contracts.

12,

As mentioned in Note 33.2 to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, the Group follows
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measuring
impairment loss allowance of its trade receivables.
The ECL allowance or loss rate is computed based
on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience. However, for the
computed loss rate as mentioned in Note 33.2 to
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, we
have not been provided with any underlying

The Company following the provisioning method
based on the legal recovery status initiated against
the customer. Historically we are following norms
asunder.

Forthe cases closed/ cancelled 100% provision.

For the cases arbitration award passed in our
favour 60% provision.
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workings of such loss rate computed.

Further, the Group has not taken effect of
aforesaid loss rate in computation of impairment
loss allowance, if any on trade receivables over
and above the existing provision in the books of
account. In absence of relevant workings and
other details, we are unable to comment on the
appropriateness of the loss rate and the possible
impact of not considering the effect of the loss rate
in impairment loss allowance on the trade
receivables balance as at March 31, 2022 and the
loss for the year ended on that date and on the
equity ason that date.

For the cases under arbitration (award not yet
passed) 100% provision.

For the cases arbitration award passed but set
aside 100% provision.

For the cases amount over due more than five-
year 100% provision.

The same clarified in note # 25.2 of our Financial
Statement.

Itis technical qualification based on different view
onthe adoption of Ind AS.

13.

We draw attention to Note 14.1 of Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements, “Balance with banks
in current accounts” includes Rs. 28.84 million
pertaining to subsidiaries companies in which we
have neither received bank confirmation nor bank
statements. In absence of sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to
comment upon any possible impact thereof on
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
at for the year ended March 31, 2022 and of the
same on the carrying value of the bank balance,
loss for the year ended on that date and equity as
atthat date.

Despite regular follow-ups with the subsidiary
companies, we unable to get the bank statements
from them.

14.

We have neither got any direct confirmations nor
we been provided with the statements for
borrowings from banks and financial institutions
by the Holding Company amounting to Rs.
12,918.05 million as at March 31, 2022. Further, in
case of bank borrowings amounting to Rs.
5,241.32 million wherein we have received the
confirmations or bank statement, the amount
recorded in the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements is short by Rs. 1,835.92 million in
comparison to amounts reported in the
confirmations or bank statement. In the absence
of reconciliation and other alternative audit
evidence, we are unable to determine any possible
impact thereof on the loss for the year ended
March 31, 2022 and on the balance of borrowings
and equity asat March 31, 2022.

All the loan accounts with lenders were NPA and
lenders did not share loan statements with the
Company.

As audit procedure, auditor had sent letters to
confirm the balance of loan but lenders hadn't
provided balance confirmations.

Since the company admitted in IBC on May 30,
2017, lenders had filed their claims. After that date
no statement provided by lenders.

In some of the cases where the lenders provided
the confirmation directly to the auditors without
complete loan statement, we are unable to
reconcile and comment upon the difference
between balance as per books and balance as per
confirmations.
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15.

Balance in borrowings other than bank
borrowings mentioned in paragraph 16 above,
amounting to Rs.7,492.17 million as at March 31,
2022 are subject to confirmation. Borrowings
other than bank borrowings amounting to Rs. 10
million wherein we have received the balance
confirmation, the amount recorded in the Ind AS
Financial Statements is short by Rs. 4.05 million. In
the absence of any alternative audit evidence, we
are unable to comment on any possible impact
thereof on the loss for the year ended 31st March,
2022 and on balance of borrowings and equity as
atMarch 31,2022.

As audit procedure auditor had sent letters to
confirm the balance of loan accounts but bankers
hadn't provided balance confirmation.

Since the company admitted in IBC on May 30,
2017, lenders had filed their claims. After that date
no statement provided by lenders.

16.

As mentioned in Note 20.1 to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, the Holding Company has
not accrued interest on borrowing post May 30,
2017, being Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process (“CIRP”) commencement date. The
amount of such interest not accrued is estimated
to be Rs. 3,643.95 million for the year ended and
Rs. 14,987.48 million as at March 31, 2022. This
has resulted in understatement of financial
liabilities by Rs. 14,987.48 million as at March 31,
2022; understatement of loss for the year by Rs.
3,643.95 million and overstatement of equity by
Rs. 14,987.48 million as on that date.

As the CIRP initiated, financial creditors has filed
their claims which are crystallized and admitted
claims are already filed with NCLT, post approval of
resolution plan by COC. Since post admission of
claim, no liability can accrue on account of
interest, therefore same is not provided..

17.

As disclosed in Note 14.1 to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, the balance with banks in
current account amounting to Rs. 7.45 million is
not verifiable as the same is not reflected in the
bank statement. As per the bank statement
available, the bank has already debited this
amount in October, 2017 i.e. during the CIRP
period where moratorium under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 was in force
prohibiting such actions. The company has not
recorded this transaction in its books of accounts
and therefore, the cash and bank balance as on
March 31,2022 is overstated by said amount along
with overstatement of equity for the equivalent
amounton that date.

In FY 2017, the Company has requested to all its
lenders to waive penal interest as company is
facing liquidity crunch and not able to generate
adequate cash flows to meet its normal debt
obligation. Hence company has not computed and
provided for penalinterest.

Post CRP admission, financial creditors has filed
their claims which are crystallized and admitted
claims are already filed with NCLT, post approval of
resolution plan by COC. Since post admission of
claim no liability can accrue on account of interest,
therefore same is not provided. The balance with
banks in current account of Rs. 7.45 million is not
reflected in the bank statement as the bank have
adjusted the same against Term Loan during CIRP
period. The bank was not supposed to recover any
amount during the moratorium under section 14
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
Since the company has taken up the matter with
the concerned bank, the amount is shown in
balance with banksin currentaccount.
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18.

As mentioned in Note 6.2 to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, the Company has fully
amortized its intangible assets (which contains
software and knowledge based content) as perit's
accounting policy but the same continues to
generate revenue for the company. In absence of
re-assessment of the useful life of the intangible
assets, we are unable to comment on the resultant
impact of amortization on the loss for the year
ended on March 31, 2022, carrying value of
intangible assets and on the equity as on that date.

The intangible assets (which contains knowledge
based content) have been fully amortized during
the year in accordance with the accounting policy
of the company. However, the intangible assets
arestillin use and continue to generate revenue

19.

We have neither got the direct confirmation nor
provided with the bank statements for balance
with banks in current accounts, term deposit and
margin money of the holding company with
aggregate amount of Rs. 0.20 million. In the
absence of any alternative evidence, we are
unable to comment on any possible impact
thereof on the loss for the year ended March 31,
2022 and on the balance with banks as at March
31,2022.

Company has requested for bank statement but
bank had not provided with statement of current
account, term deposit and balance of margin
money maintained with them.

As audit procedure, auditor had sent letters to
confirm the balance in current accounts, term
deposit and margin money to all bankers but
bankers hadn't provided balance confirmation.

We don't have any control over bankers to provide
such confirmations to auditors.

20.

The Holding Company has not determined the
provision for penal interest for defaults on
borrowings as per the contractual terms of the
underlying agreements. In absence of such
assessment, we are unable to comment on the
possible impact thereof on the loss for the year
ended March 31, 2022 and on the balance of
borrowings and equity as on that date.

In FY 2017, the Company has requested to all its
lenders to waive penal interest as company is
facing liquidity crunch and not able to generate
adequate cash flows to meet its normal debt
obligation. Hence company has not computed and
provided for penalinterest.

Post CRP admission, financial creditors has filed
their claims which are crystallized and admitted
claims are already filed with NCLT, post approval of
resolution plan by COC. Since post admission of
claim no liability can accrue on account of interest,
therefore sameis not provided.

21.

As disclosed in Note 47 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, as per the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and Regulations issued
there under, the RP of the holding Company has
received, verified and admitted the claims
submitted by the creditors (Operational and
Financial), employees and workmen of the
Company aggregating to Rs. 30,437.72 million as
on May 30, 2017. These claims have been taken
into cognizance by Committee of the Creditors

As per the Insolvency Code, the RP has received,
verified and admitted the claims submitted by the
creditors (Operational and Financial), employees
and workmen of the Company till the approval of
resolution plan by the CoC. The RP has received
claims of Rs. 31,378.12 millions, verified and
admitted claims of Rs. 30,437.72 millions and
claims of Rs. 940.41 millions not admitted by RP.
These claims have been taken into cognizance by
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(“CoC”) in its 12th meeting held on February 17,
2018, while approving the Resolution Plan of the
Holding Company. The details of such claims have
been disclosed in the said note. As represented by
the Management/RP of the Holding Company, a
reconciliation of the admitted claims vis-a-vis
liabilities outstanding as at March 31, 2022 as per
books of accounts has not been prepared and any
impact thereof has not been considered in the
preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,
2022.

In absence of the above, we are unable to
comment on appropriateness of carrying value of
such liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and any
possible impact of the same on the loss for the
year ended on that date and equity as at that date.

CoCinits 12th meeting held on February 17, 2018,
while approving the Resolution Plan of the
Company. As represented by the Management/RP,
pending approval of the Resolution Plan by
Hon'ble NCLT, a reconciliation of the admitted
claims vis-a-vis liabilities outstanding as at March
31, 2021 has not been prepared and any impact
thereof has not been considered in the
preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,
2021.

22.

As disclosed in Note 37(ii) to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, financial guarantees
aggregating Rs. 13,215.60 million were issued to
banks on behalf of its erstwhile subsidiaries. As per
Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”, the said
financial guarantees are required to be initially
measured at fair value and subsequently
measured at the higher of (i) the amount of loss
allowance in accordance with Expected Credit Loss
(“ECL”) method and (ii) amount initially recognized
less cumulative amount of income recognized in
income statement. However, no measurement of
financial guarantees at fair value and estimation of
loss allowances in accordance with ECL method
were performed during the year. In absence of
such measurement, we are unable to comment on
the resultant impact thereof on the loss for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and on the
corresponding liability and equity as on that date.

It is technical qualification on adoption of Ind AS
and the liability against corporate guarantees
provided by the company towards borrowings of
subsidiaries shall only be crystallized upon default
and invocation by the lenders. It doesn't have any
impact on profitand loss account of the company.

Financial guarantees are part of the claims
submitted by the lenders, so no provision made
duringyear.

23.

As disclosed in Note 22.1 to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, the advance from
customers includes amount of Rs.80.47 million
received from non-corporate entities is deemed to
be deposit u/s 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules
2014 and thereby in violation of section 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The impact of the non-
compliance on the accompanying Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements is presently not
ascertainable.

The Company had received advances from
customers, which are outstanding for more than
one year and still lying in the books as on March 31,
2020. These advances mainly pertain to the pre
CIRP period and includes amount received from
non corporate entities. The advances cannot be
repaid after initiation of CIRP and the same will be
settled, if any, in accordance with the provision of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and
regulationsissued there under.
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24.

The Holding Company has not performed any
evaluation for impairment of goodwill on
consolidation in respect of its investment in
subsidiaries. In absence of such assessment, we
are unable to comment upon the appropriateness
of carrying amount of such goodwill as at March
31, 2022 and on the resultant impact of the same
on the loss for the year ended on that date and
equityasonthatdate.

We will make the impairment testing of goodwill
on consolidationin succeeding years.

25.

As explained in Note 46 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements regarding managerial
remuneration paid to one of the whole time
directors of the Holding Company during the
quarter ended June 30, 2015 and the year ended
March 31, 2015 in non-compliance with the
requirements of Section 197 and Section 198 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013; and
paid during the year ended March 31, 2014 in non-
compliance with the requirements of Section 198,
Section 269 and Section 309 read with Schedule
Xlll to the Companies Act, 1956, for which the
Central Government's approval is yet to be
obtained.

Due to inadequacy of the profits, managerial
remuneration paid by the Company to one of its
Whole Time Director during the quarter ended
June 30,2015 and year ended March 31,2015, was
in excess of limits prescribed under Section 197
and 198 read with Schedule V to the Companies
Act, 2013. Similarly, managerial remuneration
paid during the financial year ended March 31,
2014 to one of its Whole Time Director was also in
excess of limits prescribed under Section 198, 269
and 309 read with Schedule XlIl of the Companies
Act, 1956. The management of the Company had
filed an applications to the Central Government to
obtain its approval for the waiver/approval of the
remuneration so paid in years ended March 31,
2014, March 31, 2015 and quarter ended June 30,
2015.

Since the Company had not received any response
from the Central Government approving or
granting any waiver for the said excess
remuneration, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 197(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company (through its resolution professional) has
sought a refund via email dated December 28,
2020, for the entire excess remuneration paid. The
amount is however, yet to be refunded by the
Whole Time Director.

Further the company had not paid any
remuneration to whole time directors after June
30, 2015.
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26.

As disclosed in Note 53 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Holding Company is
currently subjected to the investigations by
Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO), the
Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI) and SEBI. As
explained by the Management of the Holding
Company, certain information has been requested
by them from the Holding Company and the
investigations are currently underway. As
explained further, the Management (the
Resolution Professional) is yet to get any orders or
directions in this respect from the said Authorities
till the date of signing this report. In absence of
pending final outcome of the investigations, we
are unable to comment on the consequential
impact of these matters on these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements as at and for the year
ended March 31,2022.

The Company is currently subjected to the
investigations by Serious Fraud Investigation
Office (SFIO) and the Central Bureau of
Investigation (CBI). Certain information have been
requested by them from the Company and the
investigations are currently underway. The
Company is yet to get any orders or directions in
this respect from the said Authorities till the date
of signing these financial statements

27.

As disclosed in Note 54 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, the Holding Company did
not have any internal audit conducted during the
year as required under sections 138 of the Act. The
impact of the non- compliance on the
accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial
statementsis presently not ascertainable.

Due to the limited bandwidth the Company has
not carried out any interna audit during the year as
required under sections 138 of the Act.

28.

As disclosed in Note 55 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, these Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements are not authenticated by the
Company Secretary of the Company which is notin
compliance applicable provisions of the Act. Also,
the impact of this non- compliance on the
accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements is presently not ascertainable.

The Company did not have the Company secretary
for the FY 20-21. However, the company has
appointed recently full-time company secretary
forthe FY 21-22 onwards.

29.

As disclosed in Note 56 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, these Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements are not approved by the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company which is not
in compliance with section 134 (1) of the Act. The
impact of this non-compliance on the
accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements is presently not ascertainable.

The Company did not have the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) for the FY 20-21. However, the
company has appointed recently CFO for the FY
21-22 onwards.
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Financial Statements, the Holding Company has
not been in compliance with various other
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015, Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and Goods and Service Tax
2017. The financial or other impact of these non-

NS' Audit Observation Our Remarks
o.
30.| Asdisclosed in Note 57 to the Consolidated Ind AS As the company is under IBC, we don't have

control and information regarding foreign
subsidiary companies to comply the RBI
requirement. Further regular compliances are
made based on available information. Similarly,
SEBI and ROC compliances are not complied with
due to non finalization of audited accounts.

compliances on these Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements is presently not
ascertainable.

22. SECRETARIALAUDITOR & SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed M/s. P.C. Jain & Co., Company
Secretaries, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
financial year 2021-22. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed herewith as Annexure- IV.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO THE OBSERVATIONS IN THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2022.

With reference to observations provided by the Secretarial Auditor, please note that the observations are related
to the non-compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI regulations. As the members are aware that the
Company is under CIRP and most of the officials of the company including the top management has left. The
Company is making its best efforts to make all compliances under all applicable laws to the extent possible.

23. COSTAUDITORAND COST AUDIT REPORT

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost records
conducted by a Cost Accountant in practice. In this connection, the Company appointed M/s Ahuja Sunny & Co.,
Cost Accountant, as the Auditor of the Cost records of the Company for the year ending 31st March, 2022. Further,
as specified above, as the powers of the board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution
Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. The Resolution professional further approved the
appointment of M/s Ahuja Sunny & Co., Cost Accountant, as the cost auditors of the Company for the year ending
31st March, 2022, at a remuneration, subject to approval and ratification by the shareholders, of Rs. 40,000
(Rupees Forty Thousand Only) plus out of pocket expenses.

The cost audit report of M/s Ahuja Sunny & Co., Cost Accountant, for the financial year 2021-22 does not contains
any adverse qualification or remarks.

24. SHARE REGISTRATION ACTIVITY:

The Company has appointed “LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED” a category-l Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent reregistered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) to handle the work related to Share Registry.

25. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, the
Company has a Vigil Mechanism Policy/ Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of unethical practices, fraud
and mismanagement or gross misconduct by the employees of the Company, if any, that can lead to financial loss
or reputational risk to the organization. The details of the vigil mechanism Policy/ Whistle Blower Policy are
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explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company. It can be accessed
on the following link http://www.educomp.com/content/policies.

26. RISKMANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Like any other business, the Company too is exposed to various uncertainties and risks such as changing customer
preferences and behavior, competition and economic uncertainties. Thus, with the objective of assessing and
addressing such business risks and their prioritization on regular basis, a comprehensive risk management policy
has been put in place, which describes the scope, objectives, processes as well as roles and responsibilities of
various functionsin risk management.

By way of a systematic risk assessment process, a detailed enterprise risk identification exercise is carried out every
year; and risks are evaluated for their likelihood of materialization, potential impact and mitigation efforts.
Management has assigned ownership of key risks to various risk owners who are responsible to monitor and
review these risks from time to time, and plan for their mitigation measures. Your Company's Risk Management
Policy is backed by strong internal control systems. The risk management framework consists of policies and
procedures framed at management level and strictly adhered to and monitored at all levels. The framework also
defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels. Risk management is embedded in
our critical business activities, functions and processes. The risks are reviewed for change in the nature and extent
of the major risks identified since the last assessment. It also provides control measures for risk and future action
plans.

In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is not
require to form Risk Management Committee.

As specified above the Company is present under CIRP w.e.f May 30, 2017 and all the powers of the management
are vested to the Interim Resolution Professional followed by the Resolution Professional. Resolution Professional,
in accordance with the provisions of the code, is performing his best to mitigate the all risk associated with the
company.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and
were in the ordinary course of business. Audit Committee Policy is also uploaded on the website of the Company &
can be accessed on http://www.educomp.com/content/policies .

Since all related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis
and were in the ordinary course of business and there was no material related party transactions entered into by
the Company during the financial year, accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not required.

The details of the transactions with related parties are provided in the notes to accompanying standalone financial
statements.

28. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

As required under the Companies Act, 2013 and also under the Listing Regulations, 2015 we have, prepared
consolidated financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries and Associates except during the year
ended March31, 2018,3 subsidiaries namely EduSmart Services Private Limited (ESSPL) (a subsidiary through
potential voting rights), Educomp Asia Pacific Pte Limited. (EAPL), The Learning Internet Inc (L.com) and 1 step
down subsidiary, Educomp Learning Hour Private Limited have filed forinsolvency on June 27,2017, June 30, 2017,
June 30, 2017 and December 11, 2017 respectively consequent to which Resolution Professionals (RP) have been
appointed in the respective companies and all the powers to direct the state of affairs of these companies rests
with the respective RP's. Accordingly, by virtue of provisions of Ind AS 110 Consolidated Financial Statement, the
Holding Company has lost its controlling power over the above mentioned subsidiaries and have not been
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consolidated in current year. Further, as per Ind AS110" Consolidated Financial Statements" ,Loss of Control
accounting is required to be done on the date on which control is lost by the parent entity. Since the financials on
the date of loss of control are not available with the management of the holding company, loss of control
accounting in preparing these consolidated Ind AS financial statements has been done on the basis of last
financials statements available for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Further, during the previous year ended March 31, 2017, the holding company had total investment of 41.82% in
Joint venture namely Educomp Raffles Higher Education Limited (ERHEL), through two of its wholly owned
subsidiaries i.e. 41.17% through Educomp Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. (EAPL) and 0.65% through Educomp Professional
Education Limited (EPEL). During current year, the High Court of the Republic of Singapore, on the grounds of
insolvency, vide its order dated June 30, 2017 has passed an order of compulsory winding up against EAPL pursuant
to which liquidators have been appointed in EAPL. Hence, by virtue of Ind AS110" Consolidated Financial
Statements" the holding company has lost its controlling power over EAPL leading to loss of significant influence in
ERHEL as the investment of the Holding company in ERHEL has reduced to 0.65% from 41.82% during the year.
Accordingly, ERHEL has ceased to be a Joint venture of the Holding Company as at March 31, 2019 and hence the
same has been disclosed as aninvestmentin others.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, 1 subsidiary namely Educomp infrastructure and school management
limited (EISML) has filed for insolvency on January 11, 2018 and on April 25, 2018 consequent to which Resolution
Professionals (RP) have been appointed in the company and all the powers to direct the state of affairs of the
company rests with the RP. Further, CoC of the EISML in September, 2019 approved a Resolution Plan submitted by
Mr. Paramjit Gandhi. Accordingly, the Resolution Professional of EISML on October 10, 2019 filed an application for
the approval of Resolution Plan at NCLT, Chandigarh which has been approved on December 14, 2020. Accordingly,
by virtue of provisions of Ind AS 110 Consolidated Financial Statement, the Holding Company has lost its
controlling power over the EISML and its 24 step-down subsidiaries (EISML group) and have not been consolidated
inthe currentyear.

The audited consolidated financial statements together with Auditor's Report form part of this Annual Report.
29. LISTING OF SHARES:

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited (BSE). The Listing fee for the financial year 2021-22 has not been paid to BSE and NSE.

30. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars are prescribed under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding the energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo are set outin 'Annexure—V"' attached to this report.

31. RATINGS, AWARDS, ACHIEVEMENTS & RECOGNITIONS:

As specified above the Company is present under CIRP w.e.f May 30, 2017 and all the powers of the management
are vested to the Interim Resolution Professional followed by the Resolution Professional. The Company has not
carried out any rating during the period under review. So we are reproducing the last ratings as allocated to the
company.

Ratings

Credit Analysis & Research Ltd, or CARE, has assigned the following ratings in relation to our long term and short
term financing facilities:

Bank facilities: 'CARE D' (Single D) to our bank facilities aggregating to Rs. 1921.80 Crore.
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Receivable assignment facilities: 'CARE D' (Single D) to our Receivable Assignment facilities, aggregating to Rs.
404.08 Crore.

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs): 'CARE D' (Single D) to our Non- Convertible Debenture issuance of Rs. 45
crore.

32. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate from M/s P.C. Jain & Co., Company
Secretaries, confirming compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Part C of
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, 2015 are annexed and forms part of this Annual Report.

33. CODEOFCONDUCT:

As per the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all the Board
members of the Company and Senior Management Personnel as well and the same has been posted on Website of
the Company which can be access by the following link http://www.educomp.com/content/code-conduct.

34. NOTESTOACCOUNTS:
They are self-explanatory and do not require any explanations.
35. INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROLS AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has established Internal Financial Control System for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
the business including adherence to Company's Policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable Financial Statements.

As specified above the Company is present under CIRP w.e.f May 30, 2017 and all the powers of the management
are vested to the Interim Resolution Professional followed by the Resolution Professional. Resolution Professional,
in accordance with the provisions of the code, is performing his best to mitigate the all risk associated with the
company along with the internal financial control and internal control system.

36. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are annexed to this report and Marked as Annexure VI

Further, the disclosure pursuant to Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of remuneration or
commission received from any holding or subsidiary company of the company by any Managing Director or Whole
Time Director whois also in receipt of commission from that company is not available with the company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 or any statutory modification
or amendment in these Rules, a statement showing the name of top ten employees in terms of Remuneration
drawn forms part of the Report and annexed to this report and marked as Annexure VII. Further, there was no
employee in the Company who drawn the remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules. Therefore,
the disclosure for the same is not required.

37. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEMES (ESOPs)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, inter alia, administers
and monitors the Employees' Stock Option Schemes of the Company in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999)
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hereinafter referred as the “SEBI Guidelines”.

The Details as required under the SEBI Guidelines, for Employees' Stock Option Schemes have been uploaded on
the website of the Company and can be accessed through the link http://www.educomp.com/content/employee-
stock-option-schemes. Thereis no material change in the ESOP schemes of the Company during the year.

38. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees given, security provided and investments made during the year as per Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes and schedules of the Financial Statements provided in this
Annual Report.

39. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS OR TRIBUNAL
Please refer point no. 7 - Material Changes and Comments of this report.

40. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.
The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Committee in term of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

The details of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given below:-

Number of Sexual Number of Sexual Number of Sexual Number of Sexual
Harassment Cases Harassment cases Harassment cases Harassment cases
pending in the beginning | received during the disposed off during the pending at the end of
of the Financial Year Financial year 2021-22 Financial year 2021-22 Financial year 2021-22
i.e.01.04.2021

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Note: The Company is undergoing CIRP and the powers of Board are suspended. Hence this report has been
initialed by RP in order to meet the compliance.

For Educomp Solutions Limited
(Under CIRP)

Sd/-

Mahender Khandelwal

Resolution Professional

Taken on record

IBBI Reg. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/ 10086

Date : 09/10/2023
Place : New Delhi
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Annexure-I
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN L74999DL1994PLC061353
ii) Registration Date 07th September, 1994
iii) Name of the Company Educomp Solutions Limited (Under CIRP)
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non-Government Company
V) Address of the Registered office and contact details 1211, Padma Tower - [, 5 Rajendra Place, New Delhi-110008

TEL: 91-11-25755920 Fax: 91-11-25766775

Email: investor.services@educomp.com

Website: www.educomp.com
vi) Whether listed company Yes
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Link Intime India Private Limited

Agent, if any Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd 44, Community Centre,

Phase-], Near PVR, Naraina Ind. Area,

New Delhi - 110028

TEL: 011-41410592-94 Fax: 011-41410591

Email: delhi@linkintime.co.in
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
S. No. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company

1. Educational Support Services 85500* 100%

*As per National Industrial Classification 2008
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. No. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares held | Applicable Section
Subsidiary/
Associate
1 Wheitstone Productions Private Limited U52599TN1998PTC041563 Subsidiary 51.00 2(87)(ii)
No.71/5 IV Main Road, Chennai-600004,
Tamil Nadu
2 Edumatics Corporation Inc., USA* Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
5701 W. Slaughter LN Suite A130-400,
Austin TX 78749
3 Educomp Learning Private Limited U72900KA2003PTC032674 Subsidiary 51.00 2(87)(ii)

CornicheAllatheef, NO. 25, Cunningham Road,
Banglore, Karnataka-560001
4 Educomp Infrastructure & School* U70104HR2006PLC045915 Subsidiary 83.61 2(87)(ii)
Management Limited

514, UdyogVihar, Phase-III,

Gurgaon, Haryana - 122001

5 Educomp School Management Limited UB80103DL2006PLC153405 Subsidiary 68.35 2(87)(ii)

1211 Padma Tower 1,L 5, Rajendra Place

New Delhi-110008

6 ELHPL Private Limited*(Formerly known U72200DL2005PTC142030 Subsidiary 95.15 2(87)(ii)

asEducomp Learning Hour Private Limited)
Second Floor, Kamal Theatre Building,
Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi-110029

7 Educomp Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.*, Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
8 Shenton Way
#47-01, AXA tower, Singapore (068811)
8 Educomp Software Limited* U72900DL2007PLC171509 Subsidiary 95.15 2(87)(ii)

1210, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

9 Educomp Infrastructure Services Private U45400DL2008PTC174712 Subsidiary 83.61 2(87)(ii)

Limited*

1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

10 Educomp Professional Education Limited* UB0300HR2008PLC037672 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

514, UdyogVihar, Phase-III,

Gurgaon, Haryana - 122001

11 Learning Internet Inc., U.S.A.* Foreign Company Subsidiary 56.85 2(87)(ii)

1620 SW Taylor Street
Suite 100Portland, Oregon 97205
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12 Educomp APAC Services Ltd., BVI * Foreign Company Subsidiary 83.61 2(87)(ii)
ATC Trustees (BVI) Limited, 2nd Floor, Abbott
Building, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin

Islands
13 Savvica Inc., Canada* Foreign Company Subsidiary 79.55 2(87)(ii)
110 Fourth Avenue, Courtice, Ontario, Canada
14 Educomp Online Supplemental Service U80301DL2010PLC200323 Subsidiary 95.15 2(87)(ii)
Limited*

1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

15 Educomp Intelliprop Ventures Pte. Ltd.,* Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Singapore (Formerly Educomp Intelprop
Ventures Pte. Ltd.)

8 Shenton Way,,#47 -01, AXA tower,
Singapore (068811)

16 Educomp Investment Management Limited U74140DL2010PLC206434 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

17 Falcate Builders Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159420 Subsidiary 83.43 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

18 Newzone Infrastructure Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159532 Subsidiary 83.31 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

19 RockstrongInfratech Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159426 Subsidiary 83.38 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

20 Reverie Infratech Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159846 Subsidiary 83.42 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

21 Herold Infra Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159533 Subsidiary 83.44 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

22 Growzone Infrastructure Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159428 Subsidiary 83.42 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

23 Hidream Constructions Private Limited* U80100DL2007PTC159764 Subsidiary 83.44 2(87)(ii)
L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037
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24

Leading Edge Infratech Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

U80100DL2007PTC159595

Subsidiary

83.34

2(87)(i1)

25

Strotech Infrastructure Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

U80100DL2007PTC159419

Subsidiary

83.44

2(87)(i1)

26

Markus Infrastructure Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

U80100DL2007PTC159417

Subsidiary

83.41

2(87)(i1)

27

Orlando Builders Private Limited*

U80100DL2007PTC159418

Subsidiary

83.53

2(87)(i1)

L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037

28

Crosshome Developers Private Limited*
L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037

UB80100DL2007PTC160056

Subsidiary

83.33

2(87)(i)

29

Good Luck Structure Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

UB80100DL2007PTC159526

Subsidiary

83.24

2(87)(i)

30

Evergreen Realtech Private Limited*
L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037

UB80100DL2010PTC197529

Subsidiary

83.29

2(87)(i)

31

Zeta Buildcon Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

U80100DL2010PTC197552

Subsidiary

83.44

2(87)(i)

32

Onega Infrastructure Private Limited*
L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037

U80100DL2009PTC197133

Subsidiary

83.37

2(87)(i)

33

GriderInfratech Private Limited*
L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037

U80100DL2010PTC197525

Subsidiary

83.41

2(87)(i)

34

Boston Realtech Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

U80100DL2009PTC197514

Subsidiary

83.31

2(87)(ii)

35

Modzex Infrastructure Private Limited*
L-74, Mahipalpur Extension
New Delhi-110037

U80100DL2007PTC159888

Subsidiary

83.27

2(87)(ii)

36

Virtual Buildtech Private Limited*
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

U80100DL2007PTC159525

Subsidiary

83.21

2(87)(ii)
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37 Laservision Estates Private Limited* U80100DL2010PTC197531 Subsidiary 83.26 2(87)(ii)
1211, Padma Tower 1, 5, Rajendra Place
New Delhi-110008

38 Knowledge Vistas Limited* U80301MH2009PLC190552 Subsidiary 40.31 2(87)(ii)
2nd Floor, Unit No. 9, Corporate Park V. N.
Purva Marg, Chembur Mumbai Mumbai City MH
400071

39 Educomp Global Holding WLL* Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
A1 MatrookBuildingRoad 1705, Diplomatic
Area
P.0 Box 11522, Manama 317
Kingdom of Bahrain

40 Educomp Global FZE.* Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
PO Box: 16111,RAS AL KHAIMAH
United Arab Emirates
41 Little Millennium Education Private Limited( U80100HR2008PTC045934 Associate 48.29 2(6)
Formerly known as Educomp Child Care
Private Limited) 502-506, M3M Cosmopolitan,
Golf Course Extn Road, Sector-66 Gurgaon-
122001

* ceased to be a subsidiary due to loss of control as per IND AS 110.
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

(0] Category wise shareholding
Category of Shareholding at the Shareholding at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year - 2020 end of the year - 2021 Change
during
the year
Demat Physical | Total % of Demat Physical | Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares

Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter
Group
Indian
Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 47553645 0 47553645 38.8297 47553645 0 47553645 38.8297 0
Central Government / State Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Any Other (Specify)
Bodies Corporate 7284600 0 7284600 5.95 7284600 0 7284600 5.95
Sub Total (A)(1) 54838245 0 54838245 44.78 54838245 0 54838245 44.78
Foreign
Individuals (Non-Resident Individuals / 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign Individuals)
Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Any Other (Specify)
Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Total Shareholding of Promoter and 54838245 0 54838245 44.78 54838245 0 54838245 44.78 0
Promoter Group(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

Public Shareholding

Institutions

Mutual Funds / UTI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Alternate Investment Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign Portfolio Investor 434981 0 434981 0.3552 434981 0 434981 0.3552 0
Financial Institutions / Banks 550 0 550 0.0004 0 0 0 0 -0.004
Insurance Companies 126664 0 126664 0.1034 126664 0 126664 0.1034 0
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Any Other (Specify)

Sub Total (B)(1) 562195 0 562195 0.4591 | 561645 0 561645 0.4586 | -0.0004
Central Government/ State Government(s)/

President of India

Central Government / State Government(s) 10168 0 10168 0.01 10168 0 10168 0.01

Sub Total (B)(2) 10168 0 10168 0.01 10168 0 10168 0.01 0
Non-Institutions

Individuals

Individual shareholders holding nominal 51747666 3860 51751526 42.2575 51268126 3854 51271980 41.8659 -0.3916
share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh.

Individual shareholders holding nominal 7243799 0 7243799 5.9149 8358312 0 8358312 6.8249 0.9100
share capital in excess of Rs. 1 lakh

NBFCs registered with RBI 7900 0 7900 0.0065 7900 0 7900 0.0065 -0.0016
Overseas Depositories(holding DRs) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(balancing figure)

Any Other (Specify)

IEPF 18204 0 18204 0.01 18204 0 18204 0.01 -0.00
Trusts 534 0 534 0.0004 434 0 434 0.0004 0
Hindu Undivided Family 2165745 0 2165745 1.7684 2253020 0 2253020 1.8397 0.0713
Foreign Companies 1823545 0 1823545 1.49 1823545 0 1823545 1.49 0.00
Non Resident Indians (Non Repat) 363368 0 363368 0.2967 352035 0 352035 0.2875 -0.0092
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Non Resident Indians (Repat) 1200528 0 1200528 0.9803 1172882 0 1172882 0.9577 -0.0226
Clearing Member 362731 0 362731 0.2962 24066 0 24066 0.0197 -0.2765
Bodies Corporate 1989505 0 1989505 1.6245 1699357 0 1699357 1.3876 -0.2369
Bodies Corporate- LLP 129175 0 129175 0.1055 75375 0 75375 0.0615 -0.0440
Sub Total (B)(3) 67052700 3860 67056560 54.7547 67053256 3854 67057110 54.7552 0.0005
Total Public 67625063 3860 67628923 55.2221 67625069 3854 67628923 55.2221 0
Shareholding(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3)
Total (A)+(B) 122463308 3860 122467168 100.00 122463314 3854 122467168 100.00 0
Non Promoter - Non Public
Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 0 0
Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI (Share 0 0 0 0 0
based Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014)
Total (A)+(B)+(C) 122463308 3860 122467168 | 100.00 122463308 3860 122467168 | 100.00
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr | Shareholder's Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No Name beginning of the year - 2021 end of the year - 2022
% of % of
total % of Shares total %of Shares | % change in
No. of Shares Pledged No. of Shares Pledged/ shareholding
Shares of the /encumbered Shares of the encumbered | during the
Held company to Held company to year
total shares total shares
1 | Shantanu Prakash 44315205 36.18 33.68 44315205 36.18 33.68 0.00
2 | Anjlee Prakash 7284600 5.94 5.94 7284600 5.94 5.94 0.00
A. P. Eduvision
3 | Pvt. Ltd. 3238440 2.64 2.64 3238440 2.64 2.64 0.00
Total 54838245 44.77 42.27 54838245 44.77 42.27 0.00

(iii) Change in promoter’s shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) : No change in promoter shareholding during the year
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(iv) Shareholding pattern of top 10 shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

S. No. Particulars of Shareholders* Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the
year
1. SOCIETE DE PROMOTION ET DE PARTICIPATION POUR LA No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
COOPERATION ECONOMIQUE SA (PROPARCO) company the company
At the beginning of the year 1823545 1.489 1823545 1.489

Bought during the Year - - R R

Sold during the Year - - - _

At the End of the year 1823545 1.489
2. Madan Doulatram Bahal No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 679452 0.5548 679452 0.5548

Bought during the Year - - R R

Sold during the Year - - - _

At the End of the year 679452 0.5548
3. Dinesh Kumar Verma No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 422509 0.3450 422509 0.3450

Bought during the Year R R

Sold during the Year - - R R

At the End of the year 422509 0.3450
4. SPDR Portfolio Emerging Markets Etf No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
Company the company
At the beginning of the year 432157 0.3529 432157 0.3529

Bought during the Year - R

Sold during the Year - - R R

At the End of the year 432157 0.3529
5. Mona Girish Poldiya No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 285857 0.2334 285857 0.2334

Bought during the Year - R

Sold during the Year - - R R

At the End of the year - - 285857 0.2334
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6. GOVIND VISHWANATH GADGIL No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
Company the company
At the beginning of the year 270948 0.2212 270948 0.2212
Bought during the Year - - -
Sold during the Year - - -
At the End of the year - - 270948 0.2212
7. Jatalia Finance Co. Ltd. No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 371212 0.3031 371212 0.3031
Bought during the Year - - -
Sold during the Year - - -
At the End of the year 371212 0.3031
8. Gopal Jain No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 365000 0.2980 365000 0.2980
Bought during the Year - - -
Sold during the Year - - -
At the End of the year 365000 0.2980
9. Gopal Jain No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 299900 0.2449 299900 0.2449
Bought during the Year - - - -
Sold during the Year - - -
At the End of the year - - 299900 0.2449
10. DHAVAL ARVIND SHAH No. of Shares % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of
company the company
At the beginning of the year 270900 0.2212 270900 0.2212
Bought during the Year - - -
Sold during the Year - - -
At the End of the year - - 270900 0.2212

* The above information is prepared on the basis of the limited data of the top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2022 available to us As the
Registrar of Transfer Agent of the company has informed us that they are unable to provide details as per our requirement due to non-receiving regular data from the depository.:
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(v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL*

S. No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

1.

No. of Shares

% of total shares of the company

No. of Shares

% of total shares of
the company

At the beginning of the year

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease

At the End of the year

* There is no director in the company as on 31.03.2022.

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amount in Rs. Millions)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the Financial year | Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
i) Principal Amount 24,880.99 683.89 - 25,564.88
ii) Interest due but not paid 3,591.94 55.68 - 3,647.62
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 28,472.93 739.57 - 29,212.50
Changes in Indebtedness during the financial year

Addition 266.79 44.64 - 311.43
Reduction - - - -

Net Change 266.79 44.64 - 311.43
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 25,108.79 728.53 - 25,837.32
ii) Interest due but not paid 3,630.93 55.68 - 3,686.61
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 28,739.72 784.21 - 29,523.93
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager : No remuneration has been paid to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager
during the year.

B. Remuneration to other Directors: No remuneration except sitting fees has been paid to non-executive directors.

Total Amount

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration -
(In Rupees)

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending Board / Committee - -
Meetings
(Amount in Rupees)

Commission

Others, please specify
Total (1) - -
Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending Board / Committee
Meetings

Commission

Others, please specify
Total (2) - -
Total (B)=(1+2) - N

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 1,00,000 per meeting of the Rs. 1,00,000 per meeting of the board and committee
board and committee




EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S.No.| Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Manoj Garg, Mr. Lakshay Vaid, Total
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
1. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 2,481,492 907,636 3,389,128
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) NIL NIL NIL
Income-Tax Act, 1961
I Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL NIL
17(3) Income tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Options (in number) NIL NIL NIL
Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission NIL NIL NIL

(a) as % of profit
(b) others, specify ...

(i) Particulars

(ii) Amount

5. Other, please specify NIL NIL NIL
(a) Particulars NIL NIL NIL
(b) Amount NIL NIL NIL
Total (amount in Rs.) 2,481,492 907,636 3,389,128

VIL. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : Nil

Date: 09/10/2023 For Educomp Solutions Limited
(Under CIRP)

Place : New Delhi
Sd/-
Mahender Khandelwal

Resolution Professional
Taken on record
IBBI Reg. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/ 10086
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Form No. AOC-1 Annexure -l
Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries / Associates / Joint Ventures
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub - section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
Part - "A" Subsidiaries

Name of the subsidiary Reporting | Exchange Share Reserves Total Total Investmentd Turnover Profit | Provision Profit |Proposed % of

currency | Rateasat capital & surplus assets Liabilities before for after | Dividend | shareholding

31.03.18 taxation taxation taxation

Educomp learning Pvt. Itd. INR | 1.00 10,50,000 7,71,599 86,77,625| 68,56,026 - - - - - 51.00%
Educomp School Management Ltd INR | 1.00 5,00,000 9,22,32,032 | 9,35,27,755 7,95,723 | 7,25,50,674 - - - - 68.35%
Wheitstone Productions Pvt. Ltd. INR | 1.00 16,84,290 (34,55,873) 16,824 17,88,407 - - - - - 51.00%
Edumatics Corporation, usa * usD - - - - - - - - - - 100.00%
Educomp Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. * usb - - - - - - - - - - 100.00%
The Learning Internet, Inc. USA * usb - - - - - - - - - - 58.32%
Educomp Professional Educational Ltd. * INR | 1.00 | 4,28,40,950 | 84,77,89,369 | 89,37,52,431( 31,22,112 - - - - - 100.00%
Savvica Inc. canada * CAD - - - - - - - - - - 79.55%

Educomp Intelliprop Ventures Pte. Ltd.

(Formerly known as Educomp Intelprop

Ventures Pte. Ltd.) * EURO - - - - - - - - - - 100.00%
Educomp Online Supplemental Services Ltd. * INR | 1.00 3,65,76,595 | (14,20,52,951) | 1,16,04,540]11,70,80,896 - - - - - 95.15%
Educomp Learning Hour Pvt.Ltd. * INR | 1.00 95.90%
Educomp Software Ltd. * INR | 1.00 | 456,96,710 [ (20,57,21,034) | 1,41,26,21617,41,50,540 - - - - - 95.15%
Educomp Investment Managmentt Ltd. * INR | 1.00 68,90,450 (90,05,575) 3,93968| 25,09,093 10,000 - - - - 100.00%
Educomp Global FZE * AED - - - - - - - - - - 100.00%
Educomp Global Holding W.L.L. * BHD - - - - - - - - - - 100.00%
Educomp Infrastructure & School Management Ltd * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.61%
BOSTON Realtech Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.31%
Crosshome Developers Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.33%
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Name of the subsidiary Reporting | Exchange Share Reserves Total Total Investments Turnover Profit Provision Profit  |Proposed % of

currency | Rateasat capital & surplus assets Liabilities before for after | Dividend | shareholding

31.03.18 taxation taxation taxation

Evergreen Realtech Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.29%
Falcate Builders Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.43%
Good Luck Structure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.24%
Grider Infratech Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.41%
Growzone Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.42%
Herold Infra pvt.td. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.44%
Hidream Constructions Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.44%
Knowledge Vista Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 40.31%
Laservision Estates Pvt. Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.26%
Leading edge Infratech Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.34%
Markus Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.41%
Modzex Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.27%
Newzone Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.31%
Orlando Builders Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.53%
Onega Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.37%
Reverie Infratech Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.42%
Rockstrong Infratech Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.38%
Strotech Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.44%
Virtual Buildtech Pvt Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.21%
ZETA Buildcon Pvt.Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.44%
Educomp APAC Services Pvt.BVI * usD - - - - - - - - - - 83.61%
Eucomp Infrastructure services pvt Ltd. * INR - - - - - - - - - - 83.61%
Educomp Childcare Pvt.Itd. * INR_ | 1.00 ]33,36,02,390 | (11,22,83,390) | 34,12,59,00011,99,40,000 | 6,85,00,000 )23,19,41,000 |(1,70,61,000)] 5,29,000 | (1,75,90,000) 48.29%

* ceased to be a subsidiary due to loss of control as per IND AS 110. Also refer note 6.1.7 of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Annexure-lll

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or Programmes.

Educomp Solutions Limited as the largest education solution provider of the country determined to align its
corporate goals with greater societal needs. Educomp Solutions Limited through Educomp Foundation engages
itselfin the welfare of the under privileged sections of the society. Educomp Foundation strives to play a catalytic
role in bringing a paradigm shift in Education, health, awareness and employability potential levels of the rural
community.

CSRPOLICY

The policy is to empower the disadvantaged people and marginalized sections of society by facilitating quality
education, skill development and provide access to alternative livelihood opportunities in order to bring about a long
term, sustainable impact on the life of people in the community. The primary objective of the policy is to focus on the
key areas whichinclude Education, Health care, skill development and Inclusive Growth. Details are as under:

I.  Topromote primary education with active involvement in teaching and creating learning environment

Il.  Tofacilitate awareness campaign related to health and hygiene and organize relevant workshops

Ill.  Toreach outtomasseswithrealinterventionin the fields of women empowerment and senior citizen care.
IV. Todevelopandanalyse case studies and research materials related to pressing global challenges

V. Toengage withyouth/studentsto develop them into real empathetic leaders.

As specified above the Company is present under CIRP w.e.f May 30, 2017 and all the powers of the management are
vested to the Interim Resolution Professional followed by the Resolution Professional. Accordingly, during the
financial year no programme was conducted by the Educomp Foundation i.e. the implementing agency for the CSR
Activities of the Company, as the Company does not contributed any amount for the CSR activities due to lack of
profits orinsufficient Fundsin the Company.

The CSR Policy of the Company can be assessed at the company's website through the link:
http://educomp.com/content/policies

2. TheComposition of the CSR Committee.
There is Committee with no member as thereis no director on the board of the company.
3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years
Average Net Loss is Rs. 818.34 Million.
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. Of the amount asinitem 3 above)
NIL
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
a) Totalamountto be spent for the financial year;- NIL
b) Amountunspent,ifany—Not Applicable

c) Mannerinwhich the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below
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S.No. | CSR Sector in Locations Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
Projects which the outlay spent expenditure | spent:
or project Districts (budget) on the upto to the Direct or
Activities is covered | (State) project or | projects reporting through
programs | or period implementing
wise Programs agency*
- - - - NIL - -

*Give details of implementing agency, if any: Educomp Foundation

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial

years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board
report.

Not Applicable

As the Company is presently in CIRP and all powers of Boards are delegated to Resolution Professional.

For Educomp Solutions Limited
(Under CIRP)

Sd/-

Date: 09/10/2023 Mahender Khandelwal
Resolution Professional

Taken on record

IBBI Reg. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/ 10086

Place : New Delhi
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Annexure-IV

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31st March, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Educomp Solutions Limited

(Company under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
1211, Padma Tower |, 5 Rajendra Place

New Delhi-110008

Dear Members,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by M/s Educomp Solutions Limited having CIN: L74999DL1994PLC061353 (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2021-22 was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Pursuant to an order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench (“NCLT”) on May 30,
2017 for the initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of the Company as per the provisions of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, Hon'ble NCLT vide its order dated September 12, 2017 appointed Mr.
Mahender Khandelwal having IP Registration no. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/10086 as the Resolution
Professional (“RP”) of the Company. As per the provisions of the Section 17 and 18 of the IBC, the powers of the
Board of Directors and the Management of the Company stand suspended from the date of initiation of the CIRP
and vest with the RP.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has not,
during the audit period under the financial year ended on 31" March, 2022 (“Audit Period”) properly complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has not proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made thereunder.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company forthe financial year ended on March 31,2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'):-

(a) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021; (Not applicable for the period under review)

(c) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,
2018; (Not applicable for the period under review)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable
for the period under review)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable for
the period under review)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable for the period under review)

(I)  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011; (Notapplicable for the period under review)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards, asamended from time to time, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We report that:

(a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
isto express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

(b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed,
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

(c) We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the company.

(d) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(e) TheSecretarial Audit reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations :-

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(i) The Company has not appointed Key Managerial Personnel till 04/05/2021 as required to be appointed by the
company in terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the company appointed KMP namely -
CFO and Company Secretary on 05/05/2021.

(ii) The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as per Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
did not comprise the sufficient number of Independent Directors including Woman Director as the Company is
under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016.
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(iii) During the period under review, no Board meeting was conducted as The Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (NCLT) has admitted the application filed by the Company and commenced
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 on May 30, 2017 and, therefore, the powers of Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and
the said powers are being exercised by the RP. As a result thereof, Committee of Creditors was formed and 3
meetings of COC were held dated 21/06/2021, 11/08/2021 and 17/09/2021 during the period under review.

(iv) The composition of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee was not in
accordance with the requirement of Section 177 and Section 178 respectively of Companies Act, 2013 as the
company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, therefore the power of BOD and Management of
the company stands suspended.

(v) The Company has not convened the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year as on 31/03/2021 on or
before 30"September 2021 under Section 96 of the Companies Act 2013. However the Annual General
Meeting for the Financial Year as on 31/03/2021 was held on Friday, 25/08/2023.

(vi) The Company has not carried out Internal Audit for the period under review as per Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) We have not been shared any record pertaining to the declaration by director(s) under Section 164(2) of the
Act. In view of the same, we are unable to comment whether the director(s) of the company are still not
disqualified to be appointed as a director.

(viii) The Company has not filled e-forms and returns as required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies in
terms of various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 except delayed filing of Form GNL-2 (Appointment of
CFOand CS).

(ix) The Company was not required to conduct separate meeting of Independent Directors in terms of Clause VIl of
Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013 as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as
per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(x) The Company has not complied the clauses of the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors
and General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India as the Company is under
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(xi) The Company has not updated Statutory Registers during the period under review.
SEBILAWS

(xii) The Company has prepared the Quarterly and Annual Results for the year ended as on 31" March 2022 as
required under Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 after the period under review.

(xiii) The Company was not required to obtain the Compliance Certificate under the terms of Regulation 17(8) from
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer as specified in Part B of Schedule Il of Listing
Regulations as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process pursuant to the provisions of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(xiv) The performance of the Independent Director (s) for the financial year 2021-22 of the company were not
evaluated by the Board of Directors of the Company as required under Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process as per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(xv) The Company was unable to get the Compliance report for the year ended 31" March 2022 from the Board
members and senior management of the Company regarding the compliance of all the provisions of the code
of conduct and also, during the course of audit, the copies of the affirmation(s) from the Board of Directors
and senior management personnel, for the compliance with code of conduct are not available.
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(xvi) The company has not filled/ filled delayed various disclosures with the stock exchanges, as required to be
made in terms of various applicable Regulations of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

(xvii)The company has not complied with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations), 2015
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the period under review
as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the provisions of Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(xviii)The company has not filled Annual Performance Report to the Authorized Dealer in respect of its financial
commitments in its overseas subsidiaries/ joint venture for the period under review.

OTHER LAWS

(xix) We have not received any documents pertaining to the compliance in terms of filing of Annual returns on
Foreign Liabilities and Assets as notified and required to be filled in terms of FEMA Act, 1999.Therefore we are
unable to make any comment on the compliance of FEMA Act 1999 in this respect.

(xx) The website of the company is not properly updated.

(xxi) The company has complied with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

We further report that the Company affairs are currently under the investigation by Serious Fraud Investigations
Office (SFIO) and the Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI).

We further report that Compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax Laws by the
Company has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and
accordingly, we rely on Statutory Auditors reportin relation to the financial statements, qualifications and accuracy of
financial figures for Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Related Party Transactions, Provident Fund, ESIC etc. as discussed
under financial statements.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the company which are not commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines, which needs to be further strengthened.

We further report that

(i)  As per sub-regulation 2A & 2B of Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015, Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 were not applicable during the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process dealing with the
requirements of, composition of board of directors including that of independent director, constitution,
meeting and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

(i) During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company was not duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Board also did not have
awomandirector.

(iii) We further report that, during the audit period, the Company had following events which had bearing on the
Company's affairsin pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards, guidelines etc.

a) Asonthe date of this report, the company has received several notices for penalties against the violations
of SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines etc. from both the Stock Exchangesi.e. BSE and NSE.

b) The Company has not created Debenture Redemption Reserve in relation to the earlier issue of debentures
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since the companyisin losses.

c) Asinformed by the Management/ RP, as on date of this Report, pursuant to the provisions of the IBC, the
Committee of Creditors (“COC”) had approved the resolution plan received from the Ebix Singapore Pte.
Ltd. (“Resolution Applicant”/ “Ebix”). Accordingly, the Corporate Debtor has submitted the Resolution Plan
for final approval with the Hon'ble NCLT under Section 30(6) of the IBC vide application dated March 03,
2018 (“Resolution Plan”) and the matter was under consideration before the NCLT. Subsequently, the
Resolution Applicant filled an application under Section 60(5) of the IBC seeking withdrawal of its
Resolution Plan. Vide NCLT's order dated January 02, 2020, the withdrawal application of Ebix was allowed,
to the extent of granting leave to the said Resolution Applicant to withdraw the Resolution Plan pending
approval u/s 30 (6) before the NCLT by payment of cost of INR 1 Lakh by the Resolution Applicant into the
corpus of the Corporate Debtor. Further, Hon'ble NCLT vide the same order also granted 90 days time
commencing from November, 16 2019 to the Resolution Professional and the COC to seek/ expedite the
possibility of achieving the resolution of the stressed assets of the Corporate Debtor within such time of 90
days. Thereafter, the NCLT vide its order dated January 03, 2020 dismissed the approval application as
infructuous as a consequence of its order date January 02, 2020 which allowed the withdrawal of
Resolution plan by Ebix. Thereafter, an appeal under section 61 of the IBC against the NCLT order dated
January 02, 2020 (allowing withdrawal of Resolution Plan) and order dated January 03, 2020 was filled with
the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (“NCLAT”) by the COC's legal counsel. On July 29,
2020, the Hon'ble NCLAT has allowed the appeal and has set aside the Hon'ble NCLT order dated January
02,2020in CA No. 1816(PB)/2019 in C.P. (IB) No. 101(PB) 2017. Thereafter, Ebix challenged the final order
and judgement dated July 29, 2020 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India by way of a civil appeal. The
Hon'ble Supreme Court after hearing the parties vide its judgement dated 13" September, 2021 dismissed
the appeal on the ground that “The existing insolvency framework in India provides no scope for effecting
further modifications or withdrawals of COC approved Resolution Plans, at the behest of the successful
Resolution Applicant, once the plan has been submitted to the Adjudicating authority. The Hon'ble court
further held that “A submitted Resolution Plan is binding and irrevocable as between the COC and the
successful Resolution Applicantin terms of the provisions of the IBCand the CIRP Regulations”.

Accordingly, the Hon'ble Supreme Court dismissed the Ebix's appeal. Presently the petition is pending with
the Hon'ble NCLT as per the order of Hon'ble NCLAT.

Place : Faridabad For P. C. Jain & Co.
Date : 01/09/2023 Company Secretaries
UDIN: FO04103E000906466 (FRN: P2016HR051300)

Sd/-

(P CJain)
Managing Partner
CP No.3349
M.No. 4103
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'Annexure A'

To,

The Members,

Educomp Solutions Limited

(Company under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
1211, Padma Tower |, 5 Rajendra Place

New Delhi-110008

Sir,

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended as on 31st March, 2022 of even date is to be read along with this
letter

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
Responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based on our inspection of records
produced before us for Audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company and our report is not covering observations/ comments/ weaknesses already pointed out by the
other Auditors.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulation and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis
and to give our opinion whether Company has proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place
ornot.

6. The Secretarial Audit Reportis neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Faridabad For P. C. Jain & Co.
Date : 01/09/2023 Company Secretaries
UDIN: FOO04103E000906466 (FRN: P2016HR051300)

Sd/-

(P CJain)
Managing Partner
CP No.3349
M.No. 4103
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Annexure V

INFORMATION RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS' REPORT IN
TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014.

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) thestepstakenorimpacton conservation of energy;:- Though energy does not form a significant
portion of the cost for the Company yet
wherever possible and feasible, continuous
efforts are being put for conservation of
energy and minimize power cost

(ii) thestepstaken by the company for utilizing alternate

sources of energy;:- NIL

(iii) the capitalinvestment on energy conservation
equipments; :- NIL

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D) -

Specific area in which R&D was carried out by the Company NIL
Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D NIL.
Future plan of action

To add more technical skills to provide better educational solutions to clients.

Expenditure on R&D

Capital :NIL
Recurring :NIL
Total :NIL
Total R&D expenditure as a Percentage of total turnover :NIL




TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

The efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

We at Educomp Solutions Limited are well aware of latest technology being available in our field of operation.
Necessary training is imparted to the relevant people from time to time to make them well acquainted with the

latest technology.

The Benefit derived as a result of above efforts e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product development,
import substitution etc. :

We are able to provide educational services in more innovative form & maintain a high standard of quality.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial
year), following information may be furnished:

Technology imported. :N.A.
Year ofimport. :N.A.
Has technology been fully absorbed :N.A.
If not fully absorbed, areas where this :N.A.

has not taken place, reasons there for and future plans of action.

c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Activities relating to export, initiatives to increase exports, Developments of New export markets for
products and Services and Export plan

The Company has continued to maintain focus on and avail of export opportunities based on economic
considerations.

Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo details are as follows:

(Rs. in Millions)

Foreign Exchange details * Ason31*March,2022 | Ason31*March,2021

Foreign Exchange Earnings (A)
(Including deemed exports & sales through export houses) - -

Foreign Exchange Outgo (B) - R

Net Foreign Exchange Earnings (A-B) - -
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Annexure - VI

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year:

Name & Designation Ratio to Median Remuneration

Mr. Shantanu Prakash, Non- Executive Director -

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Name & Designation % increase in remuneration in
the financial year

Mr. Shantanu Prakash , Non — Executive Director -

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employeesin the financial year- Not Available
(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31st March, 2021: 43 Employees

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for the
increase;

N.A

(vi) Thekeyparametersforany variable component of remuneration availed by the directors
NIL

(vii) Affirmation thatthe remunerationis as perthe remuneration policy of the company.
The Company hereby affirms that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the company.
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Annexure- VIl

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULES 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014, A STATEMENT SHOWING THE NAME OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS
OF REMUNERATION DRAWN

S. No. Employee Name Designation Nature of Duties | Qualification | Joining date | Age | Experience Remuneration Previous
(In (Yrs) Received (considering Employment-
Years) the Cost to the designation
company OR actual
amount received,
whichever is higher)
(InRs.)
1. Anil Kumar Singh Senior Manager Direct & Graduate 03-Jan-2008 46 N.A 1,123,980 N.A.
- Taxation Indirect tax
2. Manoj Garg Chief Financial Finance & Chartered 17-June-2020 45 N.A 2,999,973 N.A.
Officer Accounts Accountant
3. Ruchika Kapoor Sales Head Smart class Graduate 24-Aug-2020 46 N.A 2,383,332 N.A
sale
4. Meenu Sachdeva Regional Head - Smart class Graduate 20-Nov-2020 45 N.A 1,500,005 N.A
Sales sale
5. Manish Kumar Assistant Finance & Chartered 02-Jan-2020 46 16 2,430,096 N.A.
Jaiswal General Accounts Accountant
Manager
6. Surender Singh Deputy Manager Finance & Graduate 01-Aug-2020 47 N.A 919,988 N.A.
- Accounts Accounts
7 Santosh Kumar Senior Manager Finance & Graduate 12-Sep-2013 43 20 2,828,040 N.A
Tiwari Accounts
8 Lakshay Vaid Company Finance & Companv 28-Apr-2021 29 N.A 935,000 N.A.
Secretary Accounts Secretary
9 Bishwajit Panigrahi Senior System Information Graduate 19-Nov-2020 40 N.A 600,000 N.A.
Engineer Technology
10 Priya Singh Front Office Administration Graduate 18-Nov-2020 | 28 N.A 432,000 N.A
Cum Admin
Assistant
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Notes:

1. The remuneration received shown as above comprises of salary, bonus, allowances, cash incentives and
monetary value of perquisites (excluding ESOP Perquisites) as per income tax rules, Provident Fund and
professional tax.

2. Noneoftheemployeesshown above s related to any Directors of The Company.

3.  None of employees mentioned above is holding more than 2% of outstanding equity shares of the
Company ason 31st March 2022.

4. Allthe employeesshown above are in full-time employment with the Company.

5. In addition to the above remuneration, employees are entitled to gratuity in accordance with the
Company'srules.

6. The appointment of the above employees is non-contractual and are governed by the company's policy
andrules.

7. Theaforesaid employees were in receipt of remuneration which in the aggregate is in excess of that drawn
by Managing Director of the Company and but does not hold by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, more than 2% of the equity shares of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (“MDA”) focuses on significant factors that affected Educomp Solutions
Limited from FY 2021-22 till date. It contains a review and analysis of the financial results for the relevant period,
identifies business risks that the Company faces.

The Company had been facing significant challenges in servicing its debt obligations over the years and debt
restructuring efforts could not succeed. The Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi, (“Adjudicating Authority”) vide its order dated
May 30, 2017, initiated corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”). Thereafter, in accordance with the provisions of the
Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and Dr. Sanjeev Aggarwal was appointed as interim resolution
professional of the Company. The IRP carried out his duties from May 30, 2017 till Mr. Mahender Khandelwal was
appointed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) vide the order of NCLT dated September 12, 2017 and took over the
management of the affairs of the Company. Please refer to the discussion on revival plan of the Company for further
details.

a) Industrystructure and developments for FY 2021-22.

India is a significant participant in the global education market and has one of the largest networks of higher
education institutions globally. However, prolonged shutdown of educational institutes in 2020, due to the Covid-
19 pandemic, has largely impacted the sector. It has not only affected the educational institutes but, has also
impacted students across the country. The sector was estimated to be worth US$ 117 billion in FY 20 and is
expected to reach US$ 225 billion by FY 25. India has over 250 million school-going students, more than any other
country inthe world. Alongside, the number of colleges in India has touched 42,343 in FY 20.

With 218 million students and 1.55 million K-12 schools, India is a significant player in the global education sector.
School education in India has traditionally been associated with overcrowded classrooms and ineffective learning
methods for students. However, due to increased private and public investment in education, improvement of
educational facilities and technological advancements, schools have been modernised and are continuously
aiming for better infrastructure facilities for students. Moreover, schools are consistently adopting formats for
digital learning and smart classrooms. It has not only enhanced academic performance of students but, has also
made teaching effective.

India is the most populous country in the world, after China, with a steadily growing population. As a result,
millions of students are being enrolled in the formal education system every year. But, the shortage of educational
facilities and inadequate number of schools continue to affect the delivery of quality education. In recent times,
however, government support has enabled a rapid development of the education sector in urban as well as rural
areas. Along with a focus on improving the infrastructure of schools, adoption of advanced methods of learning
have introduced smarter ways of imparting education. Smart classes, digital libraries and augmented reality has
also made learning more participatory for students, demonstrating an immense opportunity landscape for the
Indian school market.

COVID Challenge & Growth Acceleration

Education was one of the most-affected sectors due to COVID. Education institutes, such as, schools, colleges,
universities, and test-preparation centers were the first to shut down to control the rapid rise in COVID cases; and
were the last to reopen, post limited relaxations in the lockdown measures. The sector continued to face
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challenges, as the consequent waves and variants of COVID kept reappearing. Consequently, for the most part of
2021-22, educationinstitutes remained closed.

As specified in the previous report that, this led to a sudden surge in the EdTech segment, which saw a steep
increase in the number of users. The key development drivers propelling EdTech in India are the capacity to serve a
large audience at essentially lower costs (compared to traditional classroom learning), critical growth in Internet &
smartphone infiltration across India, and steady rise in disposable income of Indian families.

Present-day classrooms have moved beyond the clunky computers that were once the norm; and are now tech-
infused with tablets, interactive digital courses, and even Al that can take notes and record lectures for students,
who are unable to attend due toillness, etc.

A lot of innovations have been tested within the Indian EdTech industry to balance the dynamics of teachers &
students from a traditional classroom to a virtual one. Technology is turning teacher-driven education into a more
teacher student arrangement. Smart classrooms are making teaching transparent and equivalent for every
studentin away close to the genuine classroom-like experience.

b) Opportunities, Risks and areas of concerns
Opportunitiesin Indian Education industry

° Favourable Demographics: A major proportion of India's population is below the age of 30, as per the 2011
census. With literacy rates at about 74% (as per the 2011 census) and relatively favourable demographics,
demand for quality education is expected to continuously rise.

o Urbanisation: Rapid urbanisation continues to expand opportunities for income generation and this in turn
hasincreased affordability and higher investment on education.

. Demand-supply gap: While the demand for quality education within the country continues to rise, thereis a
shortage of institutes offering higher education and vocational training. It is estimated that India requires an
additional 200,000 schools, 35,000 colleges, 700 universities and 40 million seats in vocational training
centres to adequately fulfil the demand for educational facilities.

. Favourable Government Policies: - The government has made the various favourable policies for the
education sector. Some of the favourable policies made by the government are given below:-

(i) In February 2022, the central government approved the 'New India Literacy Programme' for the period FY
2022- 2027 to cover all aspects of adult education and align it to the National Education Policy 2020 and
Budget Announcements of FY2022-23.

(i) The Unnat Bharat Abhiyan aims to meet the educational needs of rural communities by encouraging reputed
higher education institutions (both publicand private) to expand operationsin rural areas.

(iii) NIPUN Bharat Mission: On July 5, 2021, the government launched a National Mission on Foundational
Literacy and Numeracy, 'National Initiative for Proficiency in Reading with Understanding and Numeracy'
(NIPUN Bharat). It outlines priorities and actionable agenda for States/UTs to meet the objective of increasing
proficiency in foundational literacy and numeracy for every child by grade 3.
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(iv) As per the Union Budget 2022-23, allocation towards the Samagra Shiksha Scheme increased by around
20.3%, from Rs. 31,050.16 crore (USS$ 4.16 billion) in FY22 to Rs. 37,383.36 crore (USS 5.01 billion) in FY23.

Challenges and area of concern

. Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process:-Due to financial crisis, as a result of business related issues faced
by the Company arising out of the Company's inability to service its customers (schools) spread across the
length and breadth of the country because of delinquencies by many customers. This coupled by delays in
receiving money under government contracts lead to a situation where the Company was not able to
services its debts leading the Bankers to take the Company to Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) in July
2013. The CDR of the Company was approved with effect from April 1 2013. However, CDR was not
successful and the Company filed application for CIRP under Section 10 of Code on May 12, 2017. Pursuant
to said application made by the Company, Adjudicating Authority, vide its order dated 30th May 2017, had
ordered the commencement of CIRP in respect of the Company under the provisions of the Code.
Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and Dr.
Sanjeev Aggarwal was appointed as interim resolution professional of the Company. The IRP carried out his
duties from May 30,2017 till Mahender Khandelwal was appointed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) vide
the order of NCLT dated September 12, 2017 and took over the management of the affairs of the Company.
Pursuant to CIRP, Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd.(“Ebix”), Singapore submitted the resolution plan of the Company
which was approved by the Committee of Creditors (“COC”), consisting of all bankers of the Company on
February 17, 2018. Subsequent to submission of Resolution Plan with Adjudicating Authority for approval
on March 07, 2018, application was filed by Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd under Section 60(5) of the Code seeking
withdrawal of their Resolution Plan. The Withdrawal Application matter (briefly explained in the Resolution
Professional's Report) went all the way to Hon'ble Supreme Court the EBIX Appeal against was dismissed.
Presently, EBIX's plan approval application is pending before the NCLT.

In the worst case scenario, if the NCLT rejects the EBIX plan approval application and where no resolution is
achieved then the Company may be liquidated upon the order of the Adjudicating Authority /Appellate
Tribunal/subsequent appellate authority.

o Lack of awareness about preschools- In India, not many parents are aware of the benefits of preschool
education. Moreover, the concept of preschools appeal to a targeted population staying in close proximity
tothe school. These factors often appear as a challenge for this segment.

. Quality of education: Government run schools, especially those in the rural areas, lack basic educational
infrastructure. It not only impacts the quality of education but, also limits the introduction of modern
methods of teaching and learning.

° Preference for going abroad for higher studies: More and more students are travelling abroad for higher
studies and this remains a challenge for the domestic higher education industry.

. Dismal enrolment rates for higher education: Student enrolment rates for higher education are quite dismal
across the country due to numerous factors ranging from regional to gender disparities.

Financial Risk

The large debt burden and rising interest cost caused defaults in payment of its obligations leading to the Company
being admitted under the CIRP on 30th May, 2017 vide an order of the Adjudicating Authority. In the event, any
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resolution of stressed assets of the Company is achieved, the capital structure and the associated risk profile of the
Company is expected to significantly change and therefore at the moment, the management is not able to
comment on the future capital structuring of the Company and the resultant change in the risk profile.

c) Outlook

Subject to the adjudication of the Adjudicating Authority and other appellate authorities in relation to the
receipt and approval of any resolution plan and with the support of the resolution applicant submitting such
resolution plan, the Company may be in a position in terms of capacities, capabilities and customer
relationships to capitalise on market opportunities. Approval of any resolution plan would enable the
Company to progressively ramp up operations.

However, in the event, no resolution is achieved of stressed assets of the Company, the Company may be
liquidated upon the order of the Adjudicating Authority /Appellate Tribunal/subsequent appellate authority.
Further, for better explanation refer to the Resolution Professional's Report.

Internal control systems and their adequacy.

The Company has established Internal Financial Control System for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the business including adherence to Company's Policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable Financial Statements.

As specified above the Company is present under CIRP w.e.f. May 30, 2017 and all the powers of the
management are vested to the Interim Resolution Professional followed by the Resolution Professional.
Resolution Professional, in accordance with the provisions of the code, is performing his best efforts to
mitigate all risks associated with the company along with the internal financial control and internal control
system.

d) Financial performance.
Financial performance (Standalone)
The total revenues of Educomp aggregated Rs. 40.16 millionin FY22 as compared to Rs. 14.73 millionin FY21.

In fiscal 2022, the Company's profit/(loss) before prior period items, exceptional items and taxes aggregated
Rs. (435.36) million as against Rs (505.98) million in fiscal 2021.

In fiscal 2022, the Company's profit/(loss) after taxes, prior period, exceptional items and other
comprehensive income aggregated Rs. (435.51) million as against Rs (506.38) million in fiscal 2021.

Infiscal 2022, the Company's earnings/(loss) per share (basic) is Rs (3.55) as against Rs (4.13) in fiscal 2021.
Financial performance summary (Consolidated)

Infiscal 2022, the total consolidated revenues of Educomp group aggregated Rs. 40.16 million as compared to
Rs 14.73 millionin fiscal 2021.

The consolidated profit/(loss) before taxes aggregated Rs (443.85) million in fiscal 2022 as against Rs (511.87)
million Infiscal 2021.
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Infiscal 2022, the Company's consolidated profit after taxes, prior period and minority interest aggregated Rs
(443.27) million asagainst Rs (512.14) million in fiscal 2021.

In fiscal 2022, the Company's consolidated earnings/(loss) per share (basic) is Rs (3.62) as against Rs (4.18) in

fiscal 2021.

Key Ratios (Standalone)

Ratio FY22 FY21
EBIDTA/Net Sales -962.08% -3098.10%
Profit/(loss) after Tax and prior period items/ Net Sales -1084.06% -3435.03%
Total Expenditure/ Net Sales 1184.06% 3535.03%

Cost of Goods Sold/ Net Sales - -

Staff Cost/Net Sales 52.89% 146.98%
Selling, Distribution & Administration

expenses (including Miscellaneous Expenses)/ Net Sales 1008.09% 3051.12%
Debtors Turnover 0.01 0.01
Inventory Turnover 0.25 -
Interest Coverage Ratio -8.71 -11.58
Current Ratio 0.05 0.05
Debt Equity Ratio -0.88 -0.88
Net Profit Margin (%) -1084.06% -3435.03%

Segment Results

Segment Revenue & Expenses (External) (Rs in millions)

For the year ended March 31, 2022 | For the year ended March 31, 2021
Revenue | Expenses Results | Revenue | Expenses Results
Higher Learning
Solutions ) ) ) ) ) )
School Learning
. 13.81 47.40 (33.59) 9.66 151.41 (141.75)
Solutions
K-12 Schools ) i i i ) )
Online, Supplementary
& Global i ] ] ) i i
Total 13.81 47.40 (33.59) 9.66 151.41 (141.75)
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Cash Flows:

The cash generated/(used) from operations stands at Rs. (26.18) million as on March 31, 2022 as against Rs. (93.35)
millionason March 31, 2021.

The cash generated/ (used) in on account of investing activities stands at by Rs. 24.08 million as on March 31,2022
asagainst Rs. 2.62 millionason March 31,2021.

The net cash generated/ (used) in financing activity were Rs. Nil as on March 31, 2022 as against Rs. Nil as on March
31,2021.

e) Revival Plans for the Company and admission under the corporate insolvency resolution process defined under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

The Company was admitted under the CIR process in terms of the Code vide an order of Adjudicating Authority
dated 30 May, 2017 (“Order”).

Subsequently, the RP published Expression of Interest (“Eol”) \ inviting resolution plans for the revival and
restructuring of the Corporate Debtor. Further to the issuance of the Eol, the resolution plans were received from
one Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“Ebix”) and one Boundary Holdings SARL SPF. Pursuant to the discussions and
deliberations with the CoC, the Resolution plan submitted by the Ebix was put to vote. Ebix's resolution plan, in
terms of Section 30(4) of the Code, was finally approved by the CoC with 75.35% majority voting share on 22nd
February 2018 including vote of Chhattisgarh State Electricity Board (“CSEB”) whose vote was received
subsequently due to a technical glitch. Pursuant thereto, the Resolution Professional submitted the Ebix's
Resolution Plan for the approval of the Adjudicating Authority by way of an application under Section 30(6) and 31
of the Code (CA 195 of 2018) (“Plan Approval Application”).

The future of the Company depends on the outcome of the pending Application for approval of Resolution Plan
C.ANo. 195(PB) of 2018 before Bench Il of the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi

f)  HumanResources

The Company is having no new operations and servicing only to old customers and hence comprises of very limited
staff. The Company had been operating with 38 employees during FY 2021-22.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company's objectives, projections and
estimates may be forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.
Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied, depending upon economic conditions, Government
policies and otherincidental / related factors. Please also note that as mentioned elsewhere also the Company isin
insolvency under IBC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is based on the principles of integrity, transparency, accountability and commitment to
values. The framework is driven by the objective of enhancing long term stakeholder value without
compromising on ethical standards and corporate social responsibilities. The Company believes in
transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity in its operations having duly delegated authority to
the various functional heads who are responsible for attaining the corporate plans with the ultimate purpose of
enhancement of “stakeholder value”.

A report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by SEBI in Chapter IV read
with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter
referred to as “Listing Regulations”) is given below:

2. CORPORATEINSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP)

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Educomp Solutions Limited (“Company/
Corporate Debtor”) was initiated by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at New Delhi
(“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 10 of the Code vide its order dated 30th May 2017. The Adjudicating
Authority vide the order of the same date appointed Dr. Sanjeev Aggarwal as the Interim Resolution
Professional (“IRP”) to conduct the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor. Later, in the third CoC Meeting of the
Corporate Debtor held on 12th September 2017, Mr. Mahender Kumar Khandelwal was appointed as the
Resolution Professional (“RP”) to run the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor.

Pursuant to the appointment, the RP published an Expression of Interest (“Eol”) in terms of the code and
applicable Regulations thereby inviting resolution plans for the revival and restructuring of the Corporate
Debtor. Further to the issuance of the Eol, the resolution plans were received from one Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd.
(“Ebix”) and one Boundary Holdings SARL SPF. Pursuant to the discussions and deliberations with the CoC, the
Resolution plan submitted by Ebix was put to vote. Ebix's resolution plan, in terms of Section 30( 4) of the Code,
was finally approved by the CoC with 75.35% majority voting share on 22nd February 2018 including vote of
Chhattisgarh State Electricity Board (“CSEB”) whose vote was received subsequently due to a technical glitch.
Pursuant thereto, the Resolution Professional submitted Ebix's Resolution Plan for the approval of the
Adjudicating Authority by way of an application under Section 30(6) and 31 of the Code (CA 195 of 2018) (“Plan
Approval Application”).

Around July 2019, while the Plan Approval Application was pending adjudication before the Adjudicating
Authority, Ebix filed its first application seeking withdrawal of the Resolution Plan on account of the purported
inordinate delay in approval of resolution plan by the Adjudicating Authority, and ongoing investigations into
the affairs of the Corporate Debtor. The said application was dismissed by the Adjudicating Authority.
Thereafter, Ebix filed another withdrawal application in August 2019 on the similar cause of action. The second
application was also dismissed by the Adjudicating Authority. However, the third withdrawal application filed by
Ebix (IA 1816 of 2019) after having been heard at length on 25th November 2019 was allowed by the
Adjudicating Authority vide its order dated 02nd January 2020 ('Order dated 02 January 2020”). Thereby Ebix
was permitted to withdraw its plan despite the same having been approved by the Committee of Creditors of
Educomp (“CoC”). The Adjudicating Authority also imposed a cost of Rs. 1 lakh on Ebix and extended the CIRP of
the Corporate Debtor by 90 days to begin from 16th November 2019. The Adjudicating Authority directed the
Resolution Professional to expedite the possibility of achieving the resolution of the stressed assets within such
extended period.

As a consequence of the Order dated 02 January 2020 passed by the Adjudicating Authority in third withdrawal
application filed by Ebix (1A 1816 of 2019), the Adjudicating Authority dismissed the Plan Approval Application
filed by the Resolution Professional vide its another order dated 3" January 2020(“Order dated 03 January
2020").

Thereafter, the Committee of Creditors of Educomp (“CoC”) challenged the order dated 02 January 2020 passed
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by the Adjudicating Authority allowing the withdrawal before the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate
Tribunal (“NCLAT”) on 28 January 2020 by way of an Appeal bearing number Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency)
No. 203 of 2020 (“First Appeal”). The First Appeal was listed for consideration before the NCLAT on 03 February
2020 wherein, the Appellate Tribunal was pleased to issue notice in the appeal and further stayed the operation
ofthe order dated 2nd January 2020.

On 22nd June 2020, the CoC filed another Appeal i.e. Company Appeal (AT)(Ins) No. 587 of 2020 (“Second
Appeal”) before the NCLAT against the Order dated 3rd January 2020 passed by the Adjudicating Authority
thereby dismissing the application of the RP seeking approval of the Resolution Plan filed by Ebix. It may be
noted that the CoC gained knowledge of the order dated 3rd January 2020 only during the hearing in the First
Appeal and therefore, could not challenge the same atan earlier date.

The NCLAT allowed the First Appeal filed by the CoC vide its judgment dated 29th July 2020 and set aside the
order dated 2nd January 2020 passed by the Adjudicating Authority inter alia holding that the Adjudicating
Authority did not have the power to allow Ebix (RA) to withdraw its resolution plan after it was approved by the
CoC.

Thereafter Ebix filed a Civil Appeal No. 3224 of 2020 (“Ebix Appeal/Appeal”) before the Hon'ble Supreme Court
of India (“Hon'ble Supreme Court”) challenging the NCLAT Judgment dated 29 July 2020 passed in the First
Appeal on the ground that (a) Ebix is not bound by the Resolution Plan until the same is approved by the
Adjudicating Authority; (b) inordinate delay in the approval of the application under Section 31 and (c) pending
SFIO and CBlinvestigations into the affairs of Educomp called for withdrawal.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court was pleased to issue notice in the Ebix Appeal on 07th October 2020 and vide the
same order stayed the proceedings under Second Appeal before the NCLAT. The question of law involved in
Ebix's Appeal was “Whether the withdrawal of Resolution Plan is permitted after it has been approved by the
CoC”.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court after hearing the parties vide its judgment dated 13th September 2021 dismissed
the Appeal on the ground that “The existing insolvency framework in India provides no scope for effecting
further modifications or withdrawals of CoC-approved Resolution Plans, at the behest of the Successful
Resolution Applicant, once the plan has been submitted to the Adjudicating Authority. The Hon'ble Court
further held that “A submitted Resolution Plan is binding and irrevocable as between the CoC and the successful
Resolution Applicantin terms of the provisions of the IBC and the CIRP Regulations.”

Accordingly, the Hon'ble Supreme Court dismissed Ebix's Appeal.

Consequent to the Supreme Court's order the NCLT allowed the Second appeal, on 12th November 2021, dated
against the NCLT Order dated 3rd January 2020, and immediately thereafter the certified copy of NCLAT order
dated 12th November 2021 along with the certified copy of Hon'ble Supreme Court Order were filed with the
Registry of the NCLT. However, despite filing the said orders with the NCLT, the NCLT did not list the matter in
time. Therefore, to escalate the matter an application for restoration was (RA 39 of 2021) filed. Finally, the RA 39
of 2021 came up before the NCLT on 3rd December 2021, where the Hon'ble NCLT remarked that 'it's a shame
that this matter couldn't be taken up on its own' and vide its order dated 03rd December 2021it was said that
there was no requirement of filing restoration application, nevertheless this application has been filed in the
deference of the Hon'ble Supreme Court and NCLT Order. The NCLT thereafter listed the Plan Approval
Application for hearingon 22nd December 2021.

On 22nd December 2021, the matter was listed for hearing and part argument took place. The matter was then
adjourned to 25th January 2022. However, before the matter could be taken up on the said adjourned date i.e.,
25th January 2022, an application (IA 187 of 2022) Ex-Director's Application was filed by the Ex-Director- Mr
Shantanu Prakash, also the promoter of Corporate Debtor, seeking direction from the NCLT to direct Resolution
Professional to take action w.r.t the transaction which concerns the insolvency of Corporate Debtor's subsidiary
based out of Singapore. The NCLT has not issued any notice in this application so far.

Thereafter, the application for plan approval was listed for 25th January 2022, but was simpliciter adjourned to
15th March 2022. Meanwhile, the Resolution Applicant filed another application IA 397/2022, which came up
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for hearing on 27th January 2022, and in the said application the Resolution Applicant sought certain
information from the Resolution Professional regarding the annual returns, financial statement and status of
affairs of the Corporate Debtor. RP's Counsel opposed |IA 397 of 2022 and also filed a reply to IA397 of 2022.

On 14th February 2022, 1A 397/2022 was listed before the NCLT, however, the reply filed by RP was not available
onrecord. The NCLT on that date granted liberty to RA to file Rejoinder to IA397 of 2022 and adjourned it to 28th
February 2022. On 28th February 2022, IA 397 of 2022 got listed before the Special Bench, therefore, again it
was adjourned to 08th March 2022 for it to be heard by the Regular Bench, the matter was adjourned to 8th
March 2022. The IA 397 of 2022 was finally taken up on 8th March 2022, where the RP Counsel opposed the
application extensively and the same was dismissed on the ground of being premature.

On 11th April 2022, fresh application IA 1611 of 2022 was filed by the Resolution Applicant seekingissuance of a
direction to the Resolution Professional to take steps to protect the assets owned by Corporate Debtor's Wholly
Owned Subsidiary (“EPEL”) attached by the Enforcement Directorate which was dismissed by the Adjudicating
Authority the same day since the attached asset(s) were owned by EPEL and not the Corporate Debtor. The
Adjudicating Authority adjourned the Plan Approval Application for hearing on 19 April 2022.

On 19th April 2022, the Adjudicating Authority directed the Resolution Professional to file the soft copy of the
complete order sheets along with the list of dates of events in the form of an Additional Affidavit along with the
soft copy of the Order(s) dated 02 January 2020 and 03rd January 2020 as also the judgments passed by the
Hon'ble Supreme Court and Hon'ble NCLAT dated 12 November 2021. Thereafter, the matter was adjourned to
06 May 2022 for further hearing.

On 06 May 2022, the NCLAT heard the Co. Appeal (Ins.) No. 507 of 2022 filed by the Resolution Applicant
challenging the order dated 08 March 2022 passed by the NCLT dismissing IA 397 of 2022. The NCLAT dismissed
the appeal on the direction to RP that on the approval of the Resolution Plan, all of the required information
which is available with the Resolution Professional shall be provided to the Resolution Applicant.

On 06 May 2022, the Plan Approval Application was also listed before the Adjudicating Authority for hearing,
however, the same could not be taken up due to non-availability of Technical Member constituting the Bench
hearing the matter. The matter was adjourned to 24.05.2022 accordingly.

Thereafter on 19 May 2022, Co. Appeal (Ins.) No. 550 of 2022 preferred by Resolution Applicant against order
dated 11.04.2022 passed by the Adjudicating Authority n IA 1611 of 2022 was listed. The Hon'ble NCLAT
pursuant to the submissions made by respective parties disposed of the appeal by directing the Resolution
Professional to share the Provisional Attachment Order passed by Directorate of Enforcement with the
Resolution Applicant.

On 24 May 2022, the Plan Approval Application was again listed for hearing before the Adjudicating Authority
however, the matter could not be taken up due to non-availability of the Bench to hear the matter post the lunch
hours. Accordingly, matter was adjourned to 01 June 2022.

On 01 June 2022, when the Plan Approval Application was taken up, the Judicial Member stated that since both
him and the technical member constituting the present Bench are retiring in June 2022, all pending matters
would only now be heard in the month of July. Accordingly, a short date of 08 July 2022 was given by the Registry
for listing the Plan Approval Application.

On 05 September 2022, the following applications were listed- C.A No. 195(PB) of 2018 — Plan Approval
Application, I.A No. 187 of 2022 — Application by Mr. Shantanu Prakash seeking directions and I.A. No. 3112 of
2022- Application filed by Sri Guru trust claiming to be an Operational Creditor. However, the matter could not
be taken up since the Judicial Member had to sit in another Bench post-lunch and the matter was adjourned to
29 September 2022.

In order to ensure hearing of the Plan Approval Application on 29.09.2022, I.A 4377 of 2022 (listed on 14

September 2022) was filed by the Resolution Professional, seeking listing of the Plan Approval Application high

on board on the scheduled date of listing i.e. 29 September 2022 or to have the matter set down for a fixed time

on that date for expeditious disposal. The Bench acknowledged the request and disposed of the application

directing the Registry to list the Plan Approval Apption at the top of the Board for the matters listed on 29
93
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September 2022, after the supplementary and admission matters.

On 29 September 2022, the matter comprising the pending applications before the Adjudicating Authority were
listed before a Special Bench rather than the usual Bench to which the matter is assigned. The Bench stated that
since the Regular Bench was not available, the Bench adjourned the matter to 03 October 2022.

On 03 October 2022, the Senior Counsel representing the Resolution Professional submitted before the Bench
that apart from the Plan Approval Application, there are two applications pending, one filed by the ex -promoter
and the second by an operational creditor, both of which do not have any bearing on the Plan Approval
Application. Further, a request was also made to the Bench to decide the Plan Approval Application. The Bench
noted the submissions but expressed its inability to take up the matter as the Judicial Member had to take up the
matters of another Bench after lunch hours and accordingly adjourned the matter to 09 November 2022.

On 09 November 2022, the Bench again expressed its inability to take up the matter as the Judicial Member had
to take up the matters of another Bench and accordingly adjourned the matter to 06 December 2022.

On 06 December 2022, the Bench considered the Plan Approval Application at length and heard the
submissions made by Senior Counsel representing Resolution Professional up till 2 pm. Thereafter, the Bench
adjourned the matter to 07 December 2022 (the next day) for the resumption of arguments on the Plan
Approval Application.

On 07 December 2022, the Bench directed the Resolution Professional's Counsel to resume arguments on the
Plan Approval Application. The Senior Counsel representing RP presented submissions on the contents of the
Resolution Plan while simultaneously taking the Bench through the relevant clauses of the Plan. On this date,
the Bench for its understanding and reference directed the RP to file the Compliance Certificate dated
26.09.2018 in the form of FORM-H. The matter was accordingly adjourned to 14 December 2022 for the
purpose of bringing Form H on record.

On 14 December 2022, in compliance with the order dated 07 December 2022, Form H was filed by the
Resolution Professional by way of an Additional Affidavit. However, the Bench stated that since the Ld. Technical
Member has to preside in another Bench after lunch and the Additional Affidavit so filed is also not yet reflecting
on the DMS (online portal) of the NCLT, the matter (all the pending applications) was accordingly adjourned to
03.01.2023.

On03January 2023, the following applications were listed:

l. I.ANo.195 of 2018 —Plan Approval Application by RP

Il I.ANo 20 0f 2023 —Application to file Revised Form H by RP

M. I.ANo.3112 0f 2022-Sri Guru Trust Application

IV. I.ANo. 187 of 2022- Ex- Director Application
At first, the Bench took up (I.A. 20 of 2023) filed by the Resolution Professional to bring on record the revised
Form H to bring out greater clarity in respect of certain issues/ provisions under the Resolution Plan. The NCLT
allowed1.A20of 2023 and took the revised Form H on record.

Thereafter, the Bench called out1.A 3112 of 2022 (Sri Guru Trust Application). The Bench took a brief overview of
the Sri Guru Trust Application filed by Sri Guru Trust claiming to be an Operational Creditor of the Corporate
Debtor. The Senior Counsel appearing for the Resolution Professional vehemently denied the maintainability of
the present application. The Bench then noted that they will take up the application after hearing the Plan
Approval application.

Thereafter, the Bench took up I.A. 187 of 2022 (Ex-Directors Application) and enquired about the issue involved
in the Application. After much elucidation on the Application by the Counsels representing respective parties,
the NCLT directed the Applicant and the RP Counsels to file a detailed chart of the entities involved and the
transaction under the Ex-Directors' Application for its understanding. Thereafter, all applications including the
Plan Approval Application were adjourned to 06 February 2022.

On 06 February 2023, the Bench took I.A 187 of 2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
gave background about the application filed by Mr. Shantanu Prakash and issues involved. In response, the

counsel appearing on behalf of the RP inter alia challenged the maintainability of the application filed by Mr.
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Shantanu Prakash under Section 45 and 47 of the Code. After hearing the submissions, the Hon'ble Bench
determined six questions and directed all parties to file short written synopsis. All the applications were
directed to be listed on 01 March 2023 including I.A 195 of 2018 (Plan Approval Application) and I.A No. 3112 of
2022 (SriGuru Trust Application).

Thereafter, all the three applications were listed on 01 March 2023. When the matter was called out, the Bench
took I.A 187 of 2022. The Bench enquired about the status of the written synopsis as directed by the Bench by its
order dated 06 February 2023. The counsel appearing on behalf of the RP, Mr. Shantanu Prakash and SBI
Singapore informed the Bench that they have filed the written synopsis. The counsel appearing on behalf of the
COC informed that they could not e-file the written synopsis because of a technical fault in the filing system.
Meanwhile, Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash in IA No.
187/2022 joined the hearing via video conference. The bench was not inclined to hear Mr. Kirpal on video
conference and directed him to appear in person. Mr. Kirpal sought accommodation to appear and make
submissions in IA No. 187/2022 after a week. After hearing the brief submissions of all parties, the Bench listed
IANo. 187 on 22 March 2023.

The Bench thentook|.ANo.3112 0f2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Shri Guru Trust gave a background
of the application. The counsel informed the Bench that the RP has admitted and acknowledged to pay INR
31,26,000 to the Applicant. Counsel appearing on behalf of the RP in response submitted that no claim form
was filed by the Applicant during the corporate insolvency resolution process and secondly no bifurcation is
provided by the Applicant to show which part of the claim belongs to post-CIRP and pre-CIRP period. The
counsel also submitted that any dues for post-CIRP period will become part of the CIRP and the dues pertaining
to pre-CIRP period cannot be accepted by the RP at this stage as the resolution plan is already pending approval
before the bench. After hearing the submissions, the Bench directed that upon the Applicant furnishing a break-
up of its claim INR 31,26,000, the RP would examine and verifying the same in accordance with the provisions of
the Code.

Thereafter, C.A 195 (Plan approval application) was mentioned by Mr. P Nagesh. He submitted that there is great
urgency in the matter as also the long wait through which the lenders have been put through on account of the
delay. He also traced the background of the matter and prayed that the application be taken up and disposed of
atthe earliest. Pursuant to his request, the Bench listed CA 195 along with IANo. 187/2022 on 22 March 2023.

Thereafter, the matter was listed on 22 March 2023. However, due to paucity of time, the two remaining
applicationsi.e., IANo. 187/2022 and C.A 195 (Plan approval application) were adjourned to 24 April 2023.

On 24 April 2023, both the applications were listed. When the matter was called out, the Bench took IA No.
187/2022. During the hearing, the counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash sought for a pass over
since Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate leading them in the matter was held up in a constitution bench matter
before the Supreme Court. The Bench expressed its inability to pass over the matter and intended to give a short
date. The counsel appearing on behalf of the COC and the RP pressed listing of CA 195 (Plan Approval
Application). Upon the request, the Bench have a short date and now listed the matter on 08 May 2023.

On 08 May 2023, the Bench first called out I.A 187/2022. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu
Prakash sought for a pass over on the ground that Mr. Saurabh Kirpal was on his legs before another court. The
Bench expressed its inability to pass over the matter and requested Mr. P Nagesh to proceed with his
submissions on C.A No. 195 (PB) of 2018. The Bench accordingly took C.A No. 195 (PB) of 2018. Mr. P Nagesh,
appearing on behalf of the RP took the Bench through Form H and explained the amount payable to various
creditors under the Resolution Plan along with relevant clauses. Mr. P Nagesh also took the Bench through
various compliances of the Resolution Plan with the provisions of Code and CIRP Regulations. During the
hearing, the Bench enquired about fair value, Section 29A affidavit by the Successful Resolution Applicant,
performance bank guarantee etc. In response, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that the concept of fair value was
inserted by IBBI by its notification dated 06.02.2018 and therefore, the same was not applicable. Further, P
Nagesh referred to the referred to the undertaking dated 28.11.2017 by the Successful Resolution Applicant
giving its declaration cum undertaking that there is no violation of Section 29A. The Bench on observing the
multiplicity of pleadings that have been filed in C.A No. 195 (PB) of 2018, directed the RP and the COC to comply
with the following directions, within 1 (One) week: -
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(i)  Filing of the Resolution Plan along with all the annexures and addendums;

(ii) Since the proposed Resolution Plan did not contain any provision for the Performance Bank Guarantee
("PBG”), the RP was directed to place the same on record. The Bench also stated that in case the same has not
been deposited, then the Successful Resolution Applicant must take steps to file the PBG;

(iii)Filing of a detailed table indicating the size of the plan and distribution of funds; The RP and COC were
directed tofile this as a joint affidavit with reconciled figures, dates, pages etc.

(iv)To point out source of funds and implementation of the Resolution Plan duly approved by the COC

Mr. P Nagesh, on the direction of the Bench with respect to submission of PBG point, submitted that the RP
cannot place on record the PBG. Mr. P Nagesh referred to  Regulation 36B of the CIRP Regulations and
submitted that the requirement of submitting a PBG in terms of Section 36B of CIRP Regulations came into effect
only on 24.01.2019, whereas the plan was approved on 22.02.2018. The Bench noted the observations of Mr.
Nagesh and stated that they will look into thisissue on the next date of hearing.

Thereafter, I.A 187 was once taken up by the Bench. The counsel appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
informed the Bench that Mr. Saurabh Kirpal is still on his legs and will be unable to appear before the Bench
today and accordingly requested for a date. In response, the Bench noted that an adjournment is being sought
for the second time on the ground of unavailability of Mr. Saurabh Kirpal and stated that they are of the opinion
that the Application by ex-director should be dismissed on the grounds of non-prosecution. The counsel
appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash requested for a last opportunity. The Bench allowed the request
with the remark that last opportunity is given to the ex-director to make submissions in support of his
application, failing which the application of the ex-director will be dismissed on grounds of non-prosecution on
the next date of hearing. After hearing the submissions, the Bench posted the matter on 25.05.2023.

In compliance of the directions given by the Bench, the RP filed its affidavit on 23.05.2023. On the next date of
the hearing i.e., 25.05.2023, both the applications were listed i.e., I.A 187/2022 and C.A 195 (PB)/2019. The
Benchtook I.A 187/2022 first. Mr. Saurabh Kirpal, Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of Mr. Shantanu Prakash
proceeded with hisarguments. Mr. Saurabh Kirpalinter alia submitted that: -

e actualvaluation of the shares that have been sold amounts to USD 250 Million and that it has been sold at a
highly undervalued price and in a non-transparent way.

e exceptionunder explanation to Section 18 (i.e. assets of the Corporate Debtor shall not include assets of its
Indian or foreign subsidiary) has no bearing on the moratorium imposed under Section 14 of the IBC and
that the value of the shares of Educomp Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd. should have been protected by the RP in light
of Section 20 of IBC.

Thereafter, Mr. P Nagesh inter alia made the following submissions: -

e sharesof Educomp Asia could not have been part of the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor first because they are
not owned by the Corporate Debtor and second in light of the exception under Section 18 of the IBC.

e shareshave been sold under the liquidation proceedings pursuant to order of the High Court of Singapore
andthat no suchissue was raised by the ex-director before the liquidator of Educomp Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd.

e there are various judicial precedents on this position of the NCLT and the NCLAT that the assets of the
subsidiary cannot be made part of the CIRP proceedings of the holding company.

The counsel appearing on behalf of SBI Singapore, and COC supplemented and supported the submissions of
Mr. P Nagesh. In response, the Bench enquired about the difference and definition of asset and property. In
response, the counsel for SBI Singapore submitted that property has been defined under Section 3(27) of the
IBC. The counsel for SBI Singapore by way of relying on the provisions of the Income Tax Act and stated that
property forms part of asset, which is a bigger genus, and both the definitions cannot be distinguished and read
independentlyinIBC.

The Bench after hearing the submissions, reserved the orders in I.A 187/2022 with the direction to the counsel
of Mr. Shantanu Prakash, to file a written synopsis regarding the alleged valuation of the shares on
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03.09.2021(date on which the shares of Educomp Asia were sold). The Bench also directed the counsel of SBI
Singapore to file a written synopsis regarding the valuation of the shares of the Educomp Asia (Pte) Ltd. The
Bench also directed the counsel for SBI Singapore and ex-Director to submit the details regarding all the
valuation of shares carried out by both parties. RP was also directed to file compilation of judgements
distinguishing definition of asset and property under the law. After hearing the submissions, the Bench posted
the matter on 08 June 2023.

On 08 June 2023, a special bench comprising of Sh. Mahendra Khandelwal (J) and Sh. L.N. Gupta (T) presided in
Court No. 2. P. Nagesh appearing on behalf of the RP apprised the special bench that IA 195/2019 is already part
heard before the Regular Bench comprising of Shri Ashok Bhardwaj (J) and Sh. L.N. Gupta (T) and therefore
requested that IA 195/2019 be immediately posted after the vacations. The counsel appearing on behalf of the
Resolution Applicant also requested the Special Bench that the matter be posted on the top of the board on the
next date of hearing.

Thereafter, the Plan Approval Application - CA 195(PB) of 2018 filed by the Resolution Professional was listed on
05 July 2023. On that date, the matter could not be heard and the same was posted for 10 July 2023. On the next
date i.e., 10 July 2023, due to torrential rains, the basement of the NCLT building was waterlogged and was
inspected by CPWD for civil and electric faults. Accordingly, the NCLT officials informed that the Bench would
preside at 12 Noon to hear the matters through video conference. However, at 12 Noon, the NCLT issued
another notice informing that the hearing for all the matters listed on 10.07.2023 stands suspended.

The Plan Approval Application - CA 195(PB) of 2018 was then listed on 31 July 2023. During the hearing, Mr.
Abhishek Sharma informed and submitted to the Bench that in compliance of the order dated 08 May 2023, an
affidavit has already been filed by the RP responding to the queries raised by the Bench. However, it was
informed by the court master that the same is not showing on record (DMS). In response, Mr. Abhishek Sharma
informed the Bench that we had checked with the registry and noted that the affidavit was showing on the DMS
and is on record. However, since the court master could not locate the affidavit filed by the RP, the Bench
directed the counsel of the RP to ensure that the same is showing on the DMS (on record) and listed the matter
atashortdateon 07 August 2023.

On the next date i.e., 07 August 2023, Mr. P Nagesh Senior Advocate appearing on behalf of the RP made the
following submissions:

In terms of the order dated 08 May 2023, the Bench raised certain queries with respect to the Resolution Plan
and directed the RP to respond to the queries by way of an affidavit. in compliance of the order, an affidavit was
filed by the RP on 23 May 2023.

Mr. P Nagesh took the Bench through the queries and the responses. First, he referred to query no. 1 and
submitted that a copy of the entire Resolution Plan has been annexed as Annexure- 2 to the affidavit.

He referred to query no. 2 with respect to non-submission of performance bank guarantee by Resolution
Applicant and submitted that Regulation 36B (4A) of the CIRP Regulations which requires the successful
resolution applicant to submit the performance bank guarantee came into force on 24.01.2019. However, the
request for resolution plan and the resolution plan was approved by the Committee of Creditors prior to the
amendmenti.e.,intheyear 2017 and 2018. Therefore, Regulation 36B (4A) was not applicable.

Hu further submitted that the NCLT, Chandigarh Bench in Phoenix ARC Pvt. Ltd. v. Sarbat Cotfab Private Limited
having similar facts asin our case, approved the resolution plan.

The counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant by referring to the order dated 13 September 2021
submitted that that in terms of the RFRP, SRA/Resolution Applicant was required to replace its EMD with a PBG
equivalent to 10% of the Resolution Plan value, if it were to be declared as the successful resolution applicant
which is also recorded in the said order. Accordingly, the counsel submitted that the RP did not seek any PBG
from the Resolution Applicant. On an inquiry by the Bench as to what remedies are available in case the
Resolution Applicant fails to implement the Resolution Plan, Mr. P Nagesh informed that a recourse is available
under Section 74 of the Code. The Bench noted the same, however, insisted that it is necessary to get the PBG
from the Resolution Applicant to secure implementation of the Resolution Plan as the Resolution Applicant had
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filed three applications in the past for withdrawal of the Resolution Plan. Thereafter, the counsel appearing on
behalf of the Resolution Applicant submitted the other objections to the Resolution Plan. The counsel
submitted that the RP has unilaterally modified the Resolution Plan by inserting Para No. 19 in the Plan Approval
Application. The Bench enquired whether such modification was placed before the COC for their approval and
consideration. In response, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that there is no modification in the Resolution Plan and Para
No. 19 stated in the Plan Approval Application is nothing but a clarification in terms of the addendum dated 21
February 2018 issued by the Resolution Applicant. Mr. P Nagesh further took the Bench through various key
dates and submitted that after the addendum was received from the Resolution Applicant, the RP re-opened
the e-voting and accordingly the Resolution Plan along with the addendum was approved by the COC. Since,
Para No. 19 was inserted only for clarification, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that the same is not pressed by the RP
and may be disregarded in order to avoid confusion. The Bench allowed the request of Mr. P Nagesh and
considered the final Resolution Plan dated 19 February 2018 along with addendum dated 21 February 2018.

Thereafter, the counsel appearing on behalf of the Resolution Applicant referred and submitted other
objections including but not limited to going concern issue, financial statements not being prepared etc. In
response, Mr. P Nagesh submitted that all these issues have already been dealt by the Hon'ble Supreme in its
order dated 13 September2021. The Hon'ble Bench took note of the same.

After hearing the submissions, the Bench directed the Resolution Applicant to submit the PBG within 4 weeks.
Further, the Bench directed the RP to be present on the next date of hearing. Mr. P Nagesh and counsel of the
COC submitted that 4 weeks will further delay the adjudication of the Plan Approval Application and accordingly
requested for a short time period. In response, the Bench granted 3 weeks' period to the Resolution Applicant to
submit the PBG. The Bench also noted the submissions and undertaking of the Resolution Applicant that the
Resolution Applicant will not withdraw the Resolution Plan for any reason related to PBG and accordingly listed
the matter on 29 August 2023.

Meanwhile, the application filed by the RP before the Hon'ble Supreme Court seeking expeditious disposal of
the Plan Approval Application was listed on 18 August 2023. Mr. Abhishek Sharma appeared on behalf of the RP
and made submissions. After hearing the submissions, the Hon'ble Supreme Court by its order dated
18.08.2023 directed the NCLT to dispose of the Plan Approval Application as expeditiously as possible or within
2 months from the date of the order.

Meanwhile, on 25.08.2023, the Hon'ble Bench passed the final orderin|.A 187 and directed as follows: -

RP to approach IBBI within one week for appointment of registered valuers to conduct the valuation of shares of
Learning Internet Inc. owned by Educomp Asia and pledged with SBI, Singapore as on 03.09.2021 subject to
payment of fees by Mr. Shantanu Prakash.

Valuers to submit the report within one month of their appointment in accordance with internationally
accepted valuation standards.

If the valuation is found more than the value of USD 7.1 million for which the shares were sold on 03.09.2021,
the claim of SBI Singapore against the Corporate Debtor would stand reduced to the equal or that extent.

The CIRP qua the Corporate Debtor would continue unhindered and uninfluenced by the aforementioned
direction. The secured financial claim of the State Bank of India (Singapore) qua the Corporate Debtor would be
subject to the outcome of the valuation result/report.

0On 29.08.2023, Mr. Abhishek Sharma appearing on behalf of the RP made the following submissions: -

In terms of the last order, SRA was required to submit PBG within a period of 3 weeks, however, the SRA has till
date not complied with the said directions.

Referred to the affidavit filed by the RP and took the bench through various queries raised by the Bench and RP's
response to the said queries.

SRA is eligible under Section 29A of the Code and in this an undertaking has also been submitted by the SRA.
Further, a letter has also been issued by the RP to the COC confirming the eligibility of SRA under Section 29A of




EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

the Code.

Referred and took the Hon'ble Bench to various clauses of the Resolution Plan such as terms, implementation,
distribution, waiver etc.

During the hearing, the counsel appearing on behalf of the SRA reiterated its objections to the Plan Approval
Application which were submitted on the last date of the hearing. In response, Mr. Abhishek Sharma submitted
that the issues regarding erosion of commercial substratum of the Corporate Debtor were already argued by
the SRA before the Supreme Court. In addition to the same he had also filed an application bearing 1A 397/2022
praying for similar reliefs which was dismissed by the Bench vide its Order dated 08.03.2022 and subsequently
reaffirmed by the NCLAT vide its Order dated 06.05.2022.

The Hon'ble Bench after hearing the submissions of the parties reserved the matter for orders and permitted
SRA/RP/COCto file brief written synopsis.

The members are further apprised that in terms of the provisions of Regulation 15(2A) & (2B) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR Regulations or Listing Regulations
2015”), provisions of Regulation 17,18,19,20 and 21 are not applicable to the Company during insolvency
resolution process period. Further, this Corporate Governance Report has been prepared by the Resolution
Professional on the best efforts basis based on whatever information available and provided to him since the
Companyis under IBCand most of the employees has left the organization.

3. SIZEAND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

On the Application by the Company on May 12, 2017 under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (“the Code”), Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Delhi (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order
dated May 30, 2017, had ordered the commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”)
in respect of your Company and Since from the initiation of the CIRP, under the provisions of Code and pursuant
to Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended, and such
powers are vested with the Resolution Professional, Dr. Sanjeev Aggarwal who was appointed as interim
resolution professional of the Company. The IRP carried out his duties from May 30, 2017 till Mr. Mahender
Khandelwal who was appointed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) vide the order of NCLT dated September 12,
2017 and took over the management of the affairs of the Company.

As on March 31, 2022, the Board of Directors of your comprises no Director. The details of Directors appointed/
resigned during the financial year 2021-22, if any, are provided in the Directors Report, forming part of this
Annual Report.

The provisions as specified in Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 related to “Composition of Board
of Directors” shall not be applicable during the Insolvency Resolution Process period in respect of a listed entity,
whichisundergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process.

A. The particulars regarding composition of the Board of Directors and its Meetings held during the year
are given hereunder:-

Name of Category | Designation |Number of Board| Whether | Directorships | Committees Position | Name of the Listed

Director meetings during | attended "I‘n%'fgr?r in é)ther Indian Ent&ﬁire:cmse ;ighe
| last AGM ompanies

the year 2021-22 boid on %&rngmg; (other than Educomp d|;ecetg;§emocludmg

March | Educomp | Solutions Limited) dlrectorshlpsr(other

Held | Attended | 25, 2023 fﬁ:,‘:tt'e%r)'i Member [Chairman| " than Educomp)

Shantanu Promoter [ Chairman 0 0 Yes - - - -
Prakash & &
DIN:- Executive | Managing

00983057 | Director |Director***
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*That includes the directorship held as on March 31, 2022 as obtained from the website of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

*** ceased to be Managing Director of the company w.e.f. 31st July 2017 due to expiry of term of Managing Director
and due to non-reappointment for further term. Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
November 08, 2021, the resolution for the reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the
shareholders.

****** No Board Meeting was held during 2021-22, as Company was in CIRP and power of Board of Directors stood
suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional.

B. Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se

None of the Directors of the Company are related with the other Directors in any manner as per the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations.

C. Number of Shares & Convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Shantanu Prakash whose term as Managing Director expired on July 31, 2017 and due to non-re-appointment he
automatically become the non-executive director. Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
November 08, 2021, the resolution for the reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the
shareholders. Accordingly, ason March 31,2022, there is no director on the board of the Company.

Furthermore, during the part of year 2021-22 i.e. upto November 08, 2021 Mr. Shantanu Prakash, being the non-
executive director of the company, he holds 4,43,15,205 shares in the Company. Further, none of the other Non-
Executive Directors holds any Shares and Convertible instruments, in the company, during the year under review.

D. Separate Meeting of Independent Director's & Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

During Financial Year 2021-22, no Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held as the
company is under CIRP with w.e.f. May 30, 2017 and as per Section 17 of the Code the powers of the board has been
suspended from the commencement of CIRP. Further, No Familiarization program has been carried out by the
company during the period under review as the company is under CIRP with w.e.f. May 30, 2017. Details of the
familiarization programme for the Independent Directors of the Company for enabling them to acquaint with the
nature of business of the company are provided on the website of the Company
http://www.educomp.com/content/familiarisation-programme.

E. Details of Board Meetings held during the year

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, Board Meetings were not held as the Company has been
admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code w.e.f. 30th May 2017. Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the
Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until
replaced by Resolution Professional.

F. Confirmation with respect to the Independent Directors

As Specified above that the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code w.e.f. 30th May 2017.
Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by
the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Moreover, as on March 31, 2022, there
isnoIndependentdirector onthe Board.

G. Reasonsforthe Resignation of Independent Director
Duringthe Financial Year 2021-22 there were no resignation from the Independent Directors of the company.
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H. KeyBoard Skills, Expertise and Competencies

The Board comprises qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise to enable them
to effectively contribute in deliberations at Board and Committee meetings. The below matrix summarizes a mix of
skills, expertise and competencies expected to be possessed by our individual Directors, which are key to corporate
governance and Board effectiveness

Name of the Director Entrepreneur, Financial Global Diversity Board Service
Leadership Expertise Exposure & Governance|
Shantanu Prakash* Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

*in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the reappointment
of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders.

Key Board Skills/ Expertise/ Competencies

Entrepreneur/Leadership :- Extended entrepreneurial / leadership experience for a significant enterprise,
resulting in a practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic
planning, and risk Management. Demonstrated strengths in developing talent,
planning succession, and driving change and long term-growth.

Financial Expertise:- Education and experience as an Auditor or Public Accountant or a principal
financial officer, comptroller or principal accounting officer or holding a position
involving performance of similar functions.

Global Exposure:- Experience in driving business success in markets around the world, with an
understanding of diverse business environments, economic conditions, cultures,
and regulatory frameworks, and a broad perspective on global market
opportunities.

Diversity:- Representation of gender, ethnic, geographic, cultural, or other perspectives that
expand the Board's understanding of the needs and viewpoints of our customers,
partners, employees, governments, and other stakeholders worldwide.

Board Service and Governance:- Service on other public Company Boards, to develop insights about maintaining
Board and Management accountability, protecting shareholder interests, and
observing appropriate governance practices.

1. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The provisions as specified in Regulations 18 (Audit Committee), Regulation 19 (Nomination and Remuneration
Committee), Regulation 20 (Stakeholder's Relationship Committee) and Regulation 21 (Risk Management
Committee) under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 shall not be applicable during the Insolvency Resolution Process in
respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency Code and
subsequent to resignation of the Independent Directors as on March 28th, 2017 no committee meeting(s) were held
during the financial year 2021-22.

A. AuditCommittee

B. Nominationand Remuneration Committee
C. Stakeholder Relationship Committee

D. Corporate Social responsibility Committee
E. Finance Committee

F.  Debenture Committee
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G. Fundraisingcum Allotment Committee
H. Corporate Management Committee
A. AuditCommittee

As on 30th May 2017 i.e. the day when the CIRP has been imitated with respect to the Company, Audit Committee
comprised of three Directors, namely Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary, Mr. Vinod Kumar Dandona and Mr. Shantanu
Prakash. The terms of the reference of Audit Committee include inter alia the following:

Powers of Audit Committee

i.  Toinvestigate any activity withinits terms of reference.

ii. Toseekinformationfromanyemployee.

iii. Toobtain outside legal or other professional advice.

iv. Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
Key responsibilities of Audit Committee

1. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement s correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommendingtothe Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of
the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual/Quarterly financial statements before submission to the board
forapproval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's
reportinterms of clause (c) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

b. Changes,ifany,inaccounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

c.  Majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management
d. Significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

e. Compliance with listingand other legal requirements relating to financial statements

f.  Disclosure of any related party transactions

g. Qualificationsinthe draftauditreport.

h.  The quality and acceptability of:

i.  the accounting policies and practices, including without limitation critical accounting policies and
practices, all alternative accounting treatments within generally accepted accounting principles for
policies and procedures related to material items that have been discussed with management,
ramifications of the use of such alternative treatments and the treatment preferred by the external
auditors; and

ii. financial reporting disclosures and changes thereto, including a review of any material items of
correspondence between the Company and the external auditors;

i.  The extent to which the financial statements are affected by any unusual transactions or any off-balance
sheet arrangements, including any disclosable guarantees, indemnification agreements or interests in
unconsolidated special purpose entities, in the year and how they are disclosed;
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j.  thepoliciesand process foridentifying and assessing business risks and the management of these risks;

k. material misstatements detected by the auditors that individually or in aggregate have not been corrected
and management's explanations as to why they have not been adjusted;

I. possibleimpairments of the Group's assets;

m. compliance with financial reporting standards and relevant financial and governance reporting
requirements;

5. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up stepsin this matter.

6. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems.

7. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

8. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

9. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.

10. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

11. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

12. Toreviewthe functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, in case the same is existing.
13. Mandatory review the followinginformation:
i.  Managementdiscussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;

iii. Managementletters/letters of internal control weaknessesissued by the statutory auditors;
iv. Internalauditreportsrelating tointernal control weaknesses; and
v.  Theappointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor

14. Overseeingthe relationships with the external auditors as follows:

i.  To consider the appointment of the external auditors and provide the Board with its recommendation to
the shareholders on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, approve the
audit engagement fees and terms and review annually their activities, findings, conclusions and
recommendations. The external auditors shall report directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee shall be responsible for ensuring the resolution of any disagreements between management
and the external auditors regarding financial reporting;

ii.  Todiscuss with the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit (including any significant ventures,
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investments or operations which are not subject to audit) and ensure co-ordination if more than one audit
firmisinvolved;

iii. Toreviewand monitorthe independence of the external auditors and the objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process including reviewing and monitoring the external auditors' quality control procedures
and steps taken by the external auditors to respond to changes in regulatory and other requirements. This
review will include a review of the experience and qualifications of the senior members of the audit team,
including rotational procedures;

iv. To pre-approve the scope and extent of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by any third
party in the case of audit services and by the external auditors in the case of audit and permitted non-audit
services. The Audit Committee may delegate to the Chairman of the Audit Committee (and in his absence
another member) the authority to pre-approve any audit or permitted non-audit service to be provided by
the external auditors provided such approvals are presented to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled
meeting;

v.  To consider communications from the external auditors on audit planning and findings and on material
weaknesses in accounting and internal control systems that came to the auditors' attention, including a
review of material items of correspondence between the Company and the external auditors; and

vi. Toensurethatthereare norestrictions on the scope of the statutory audit;
14A The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
14B Review and monitor the auditor'sindependence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;
14C Examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon;
14D Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
14E Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
14F Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever itis necessary;
14G Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
14H Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

141 Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

15 such other functions, as may be assigned by the Board of directors from time to time or as may be stipulated
under any law, rule or regulation including listing agreement and the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time beingin force)

Meetings & Attendance of the Committee

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 10th May, 2017 had duly reconstituted the Audit Committee. At the
beginning of the Financial Year, the Audit Committee consists of only one Director as members, which is Non-
Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2022,
the Audit Committee comprises of no director/ members.

No meeting of the audit committee was held during the year under review. As specified above that w.e.f 30th May
2017 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code. Thereafter, in accordance with Section
17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional
until replaced by Resolution Professional.
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Internal Auditors
Duringthe FY 2021-22, the Company had not appointed the Internal Auditors of the Company.
B. Nomination And Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 10th May, 2017 had duly reconstituted the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. At the beginning of the Financial Year, the consists of one Director as member, which
is Non-Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March,
2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of no director/ members.

The Broad terms of reference of the Committee includes the following:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel
and otheremployees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
3. Devisingapolicy on Board diversity;

4. ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior managementin
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

5. Toreview performance and recommend remuneration of Executive Directors' to the board;
6. Toformulate ESOP plansand decide on future grants;

7. To formulate terms and conditions on followings under the present Employee Stock Option Schemes of the
Company:

i.  thequantum of optionsto be granted under ESOP scheme(s) per employee and in aggregate;

ii.  The conditions under which options vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment for
misconduct;

iii. The exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and that option would lapse on
failure to exercise the option within the exercise period;

iv. The specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of
termination or resignation of an employee;

v.  Theright of an employee to exercise all the options vested in him at one time or at various points of time within
the exercise period;

vi. Theprocedure for making a fairand reasonable adjustment to the number of options and to the exercise price in
case of rightsissues, bonusissues and other corporate actions;

vii. Thegrant, vestand exercise of optionin case of employees who are on long leave; and
viii. The procedure for cashless exercise of options.
ix.  Anyother matter, which may be relevant for administration of ESOP schemes from time to time.

8. such other functions, as may be assigned by the Board of directors from time to time or as may be stipulated
under any law, rule or regulation including listing regulations and the companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time beingin force)

105



EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Meetings and Attendance of Committee:

No meeting of Nomination and remuneration Committee was held during the year under review. As specified above
that w.e.f 30th May 2017 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code. Thereafter, in
accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim
Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for the Independent Directors

The Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 has enabled an evaluation mechanism to appraise the
performance of the Independent Directors. In terms of that, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the
Company has laid down the criteria for the evaluation of the Independent Directors of the Company. The
performance of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the Director being
evaluated) and on the basis of evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the Independent Director.

The criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors maybe on the following parameters and further, the
Committee/Board shall also be authorised to modify the criteria as it may deem fit and necessary:

General Criteria:

. Highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;

. Inquisitive and objective perspective, practical wisdom and mature judgment;

3 Demonstrated intelligence, maturity, wisdom and independent Judgment;

. Self-confidence to contribute to board deliberations and stature such that other board members will respect

hisor herview;
Remuneration to Directors
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has a credible and transparent policy in determining, identifying and recommending the criteria for the
appointment and remuneration of Director's, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The remuneration
policy is aimed at attracting and retaining high caliber professionals/individuals. The broad objective and purpose of
policy are:

o To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and Key
Managerial positions and to determine their remuneration.

o To determine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial position and trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the education industry.

o To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior Management
Personnel.
o To provide them reward linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to

the Company's operations.

o To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons
and create competitive advantage.

Appointment

Nomination and remuneration committee determines the criteria of appointment to the director, Key Managerial
Personnel and senior management level and is vested with the authority to identify candidates for appointment to
the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or at senior management level. In evaluating the suitability of
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a person for appointment / continuing to hold appointment as a Director, Key Managerial Personnel and/or at senior
management level nomination and remuneration committee evaluates and takes into account apart from others,
Board diversity, person's eligibility, qualification, expertise, track record, general understanding of the business,
professional ethics, integrity, values and other fitand proper criteria's.

Remuneration

The remuneration of Executive / Non-Executive Directors and KMPs will be determined by the committee which is
governed by the external competitive environment, track record, potential, individual performance and
performance of the Company as well as industry standards and approved by nomination and remuneration
committee in accordance of abovementioned policies. It is proposed by nomination and remuneration committee
and subsequently approved by the Board.

a) Remuneration of Executive Director/(s)

Remuneration of Executive Directors is decided based upon their qualification, experience and contribution at the
respective positions in the past and expected future benefits to the company and is consistent with the existing
industry practice. Executive Directors are entitled for the remuneration as follows:

(i) Salary and commission not to exceed limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
(ii) Revised from time to time depending upon the performance of the Company,

(iii) No Sitting Fees is being paid to them

(iv) Eligible for ESOP except Promoter Director

Inthe financial year 2021-22 the company had no Executive Directors.

No remuneration has been paid to the Executive Director during the period under review. For further details of the
remuneration paid to Executive Directors and there shareholding in the company for the year ended March 31, 2022,
if any, please refer to extract of Annual Return MGT-9 which forms part of Director Report.

Details of Service Contract of Executive Director(s)

Name of Director Tenure Notice Period Stock Options Severance Fee

b) Remuneration to Non Executive Director/(s):

Non- Executive Directors are entitled as follows:

(i) Sitting fees not to exceed limits under the Act

(i) Commission not to exceed limits prescribed under the Act

(iii) Eligible for ESOP except Independent Non Executive Director

The Company has not paid any remuneration to any Non-Executive Directors during the year.
Details of the Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions of the Non- Executive Directors

During the period under review there is no Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions of the Non- Executive Directors
with the company.

C. Stakeholder Relationship Committee

As on 30th May 2017 i.e. the day when the CIRP process has been initiated with respect to the Company, the
Stakeholder Relationship Committee (“the Committee”) consist of one Director, namely Mr. Shantanu Prakash,
Promoter and Non-Executive Director.
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At the beginning of Financial year the Stakeholder Relationship Committee has only one Director as member, which is
Non-Executive Director. Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the
resolution for the reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on
31st March, 2022, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of no director/ members.

The broad terms of reference of the Committee includes the following:

. Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints including, but not limiting itself to transfer of shares and
issue of duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, etc.;

. Overseeing and reviewing all matters connected with securities of the Company;

. -Overseeing the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company and recommends measures
for overallimprovementin the quality of Investor services;

. Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization, splitting and consolidation of
sharesissued by the Company, and

. -Such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors and / or
other committees of Directors of the Company or mentioned in the Listing Regulations 2015.

Meetings and Attendance of Committee:

No meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held during the year under review. As specified above that
w.e.f30th May 2017 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code. Thereafter, in accordance
with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution
Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional.

Compliance Officer

As Specified above that the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 10 of the Code w.e.f. 30th May 2017.
Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by
the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Accordingly, Mr. Mahender
Khandelwal, deemed to be the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and was also responsible for complying
with the requirements of Listing Regulations, 2015.

Status of Investor complaints received by the Company during the year under review is as follows:

Particulars Pending as on Received during Disposed during Pending as on
April 1, 2021 the Year the Year March 31, 2022
No of Complaints 0 0 0 0

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Composition

As on 30th May, 2017, i.e at the time of initiation of the CIRP, the Committee consisted of one Executive Directorsi.e.
Mr. Vinod Kumar Dandona; One non-executive Director i.e. Mr. Shantanu Prakash and one Independent Non-
Executive Director Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary. The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Shantanu Prakash.

At the beginning of the Financial Year, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of only one Director as
members, which is Non-Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2022,
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of no director/ members.
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Meeting & Attendance during the year
No meeting was held during the year under review,
E. Other Committees of The Board

The details of the meetings of the other committees of the board, held during the year 2021-22. are given herein
below:-

Finance Committee

As on 30th May 2017 i.e. the day when the CIRP process has been imitated with respect to the company, Finance
Committee consist of three Directors, namely Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary, Mr. Vinod Kumar Dandona and Mr.
Shantanu Prakash.

At the beginning of the Financial Year, the Finance Committee consists of only one Director as members, which is
Non-Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2022,
the Finance Committee comprises of no director/ members.

During the yearended March 31, 2022, No meeting of the Finance Committee was held.
Debenture Committee
There was no meeting held of the Debenture Committee during the Financial Year 2021-22,

As on May 30, 2017, the Committee consisted of three directors namely Mr. Shantanu Prakash, Mr. Vijay Kumar
Choudhary and Mr. Vinod Kumar Dandona.

At the beginning of the Financial Year, the Debenture Committee consists of only one Director as members, which is
Non-Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2022,
the Debenture Committee comprises of no director/ members.

Fund Raising Cum Allotment Committee

There was no meeting held of the Debenture Committee during the Financial Year 2021-22. As on May 30, 2017, the
Committee consisted of three directors namely Mr. Shantanu Prakash, Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary and Mr. Vinod
Kumar Dandona.

At the beginning of the Financial Year, the Fund Raising Cum Allotment Committee consists of only one Director as
members, which is Non-Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2022,
the Fund Raising Cum Allotment Committee comprises of no director/ members.

Corporate Management Committee

There was no meeting held of the Debenture Committee during the Financial Year 2021-22. As on May 30, 2017, the
Committee consisted of three directors namely Mr. Shantanu Prakash, Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary and Mr. Vinod
Kumar Dandona.

At the beginning of the Financial Year, the Corporate Management Committee consists of only one Director as
members, which is Non-Executive Director.

Further, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 08, 2021, the resolution for the
reappointment of Mr. Shantanu Prakash was not approved by the shareholders. Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2022,
the Corporate Management Committee comprises of no director/ members.
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5. General Body Meetings

Details of the AGM/EGM held in the last three years along with special resolutions passed there at:

Financial | Date and Venue Particulars of special resolution passed
Year Time

2018-19 | 25-08-2022 | Held through Video conferencing Nil

(AGM) | 11:30 A.M / other Audio visual means

2019-20 | 27-03-2023 Held through Video conferencing Nil

(AGM) | 11:30 A.M. / other Audio visual means

2020-21 | 25-08-2023 | Held through Video conferencing Nil

(AGM) | 11:30 A.M. / other Audio visual means

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

Details of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held in the last three years along with Special Resolutions passed

there at:
Financial | Date and Venue Particulars of special resolution passed
Year Time
2022-23 | 22-11-2022 | Held through Video conferencing Nil
(AGM) 11:30 A.M / other Audio visual means
Postal Ballot

No Special Resolution was passed by the Company during the year through Postal Ballot.

At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, there is no resolution proposed to be passed by postal Ballot.

Serial No. Procedure

1. After obtaining consent to act as Scrutinizer the Board of Directors appoints Scrutinizer to conduct
Postal Ballot processin true, fairand transparent manner.

2. Cut Off date is fixed for identifying shareholders entitled to receive notice of the postal ballot.

3. Postal Ballot Notice along with explanatory statement and Postal Ballot form with instructions are
dispatched to shareholders. As per requirements of Listing Agreement, e-voting facility was also
provided to Shareholders of the Company

4 Company advertises dispatch of postal ballot in one English Newspaper and one Vernacular
language.

5 The postal ballot form duly completed and signed should be sent to the Scrutinizer appointed by
the Company at the registered office of the Company on or before the close of the Business hours
on specified date.

6 After due scrutiny of all the Postal Ballot forms received & considering the voting through
electronic mode upto the close of working hours scrutinizer submitted his report to the company
onthe specified date

7 Result of the postal ballot is declared at the registered office of the company and the same is
notified to stock exchanges as well as published on the website of the company.
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6. DISCLOSURES

I.  The Company has the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company as approved by the Board. The
Policy Related Party Transactions has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed
on http://educomp.com/content/policies. There is no materially significant related party transactions
during the period under review which may have potential conflict with the interests of the listed entity at
large.

Il.  As specified earlier that pursuant to an application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”)
under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”) on May 12, 2017, Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Delhi (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order dated 30th May 2017, had
ordered the commencement of CIRP in respect of your Company under the provisions of Code. Thereafter,
in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and Dr. Sanjeev
Aggarwal was appointed as interim resolution professional of the Company. The IRP carried out his duties
from May 30, 2017 till Mahender Khandelwal was appointed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) vide the
order of NCLT dated September 12, 2017 and took over the management of the affairs of the Company.
Since the inception of the CIRP, the majority of employees has left the Company due to which the company
is unable to do various compliances, within the stipulated time, under various applicable laws. Such delay
in making the compliances results in non-compliances, under various applicable laws, which leads to
imposition of penalties on the companies.

IIl.  The Company has established and adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle-Blower Policy which is uploaded on
the website and can be access through the link: http://educomp.com/content/policies. Further, the
company has affirmed that no personnel has been dined access to the Interim Resolution Professional/
Resolution Professional. (as specified above that w.e.f 30th May 2017 in accordance with Section 17 of the
Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional
until replaced by Resolution Professional.)

IV.  Company has 'Material non-listed Subsidiary Companies' during the accounting year under review in
terms of the provisions of Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, 2015. The Company formulated a
policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries and such policy uploaded on the Company's website and &
can be accessed through the link http://educomp.com/content/policies.

V.  Asspecified above that w.e.f 30th May 2017 in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the
Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by
Resolution Professional. Accordingly, all the mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate Governance are not being properly
adheredto/complied with.

VI. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all Directors and the Senior Management
Personnel of the Company and the same is available on the website of the Company
http://educomp.com/content/code-conduct.

VII. A certificate from M/s P.C. Jain & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, as stipulated Part C of Schedule V to
the SEBI LODR Regulations for the period April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022 is attached herewith with this
report.

VIIl. The Company follows Indian accounting standards notified under the Act and applicable Accounting
Standard as laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in the preparation of
financial statements, the Company has not adopted a treatment different from that prescribed in any
Accounting Standards. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have been set out
inthe Notes to the Financial Statements.

IX. Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risks, if any, are tracked and managed within the Risk
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Management framework. The foreign exchange market is highly regulated and the Company ensures
compliance with all the regulations.

7. DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As specified above that w.e.f 30th May 2017 in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board
stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution
Professional. Accordingly, the Company is unable to make the compliance with regard to some of the mandatory
requirements pertaining to Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations, 2015.

With reference to observations as provided by M/s P.C. Jain & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, in the
Corporate Governance Certificate, as stipulated Part C of Schedule V to the SEBI LODR Regulations, please note
that the observations are related to the non-compliances pertaining to Corporate Governance under the SEBI
regulations. Asthe members are aware that the Company is under CIRP and most of the officials of the company
including the top management has left. The Company is making its best efforts to make all compliances under all
applicable laws to the extent possible.

8. CODEOFCONDUCT

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all Directors and the Senior Management Personnel
of the Company and the same is available on the website of the Company http://educomp.com/content/code-
conduct.

As specified above that w.e.f 30th May, 2017 in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board
stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution
Professional. Accordingly, the Company is unable to get the compliance Report for the year ended 31st March,
2022 from the Board members and senior management of the Company regarding the compliance of all the
provisions of Code of Conduct.

9. GENERALSHAREHOLDERINFORMATION

I.  Ensuing Annual General Meeting Date, Time and Venue:

Location Day and Date Time
In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry Tuesday, 11:30 A.M (IST)
of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') has vide its circular dated May Novemt;er
5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 07 2073

2020, January 13, 2021 and December 28, 2022 and
General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023
(collectively referred to as 'MICA Circulars') and SEBI Circular
No. Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167
dated October 7, 2023 read with circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023,
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May13, 2022
and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12,
2020 (collectively referred to as 'SEBI Circulars') permitted
the holding of the Annual General Meeting through video-
conferencing / other audio visual means ('VC / OAVM'),
without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Act, MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC / OAVM. For

details please refer to the Notice this AGM.
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Il.  Financial Year: 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022
lll. Dividend Payment Date:- The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year under review.
IV. Date of Book Closure: NA

V. Listing on Stock Exchanges:-

Name of Exchange and Address Securities DEMAT ISIN NO Stock/Scrip
Code

National Stock Exchange of India Limited | Equity NSDL and CDSL EDUCOMP

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, INE216H01027

Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051

BSE Limited, Equity NSDL and CDSL 532696

PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, INE216H01027

Mumbai-400001

BSE Limited, Debentures NSDL and CDSL 948029

PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai-400001 INE216H07016

VI. Listing Fee:-Thelistingfee forthe financial year 2021-22 has not been paid to NSE and BSE.
VIl. Stock Market Data:-

The Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year are as under:-

Month BSE NSE

High Low Close Volume High Low Close Volume
Apr
2021 3.16 2.34 2.34 9,15,389 | 2.70 2.55 2.65 60,347
May
2021 2.99 2.28 2.56 5,70,825 | 3.10 3.00 3.05 45,926
June
2001 3.32 2.57 3.03 7,28,335 | 3.95 3.75 3.75 55,987
Jul
001 4.04 2.9 3.82 19,28,943 | 4.00 3.75 3.95 1,22,690
Aug
ool 421 3.22 3.92 13,56,515 | 3.10 2.95 3.00 30,260
e 404 | 285 | 3.5 558,663 | 3.00 2.85 2.90 26,438
Oct
2021 3.18 2.8 2.9 6,20,956 | 2.90 2.75 2.85 12,645
oy, 3.15 28 | 291 7,21,607 | 3.00 2.90 2.90 53,447
5851 3.08 2.83 2.96 7,64,903 | 6.05 6.05 6.05 32,429
’2%"22 6.37 2.8 6.37 39,86,927 | 5.95 5.85 5.95 2,00,844
5‘332 8.48 5.06 5.85 52,85,070 | 4.65 4.40 4.45 47,093
g’(')azrz 7.3 4.28 4.43 9,49,768 | 3.80 3.50 3.50 1,42,630
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VIII. Stock Performance chart in comparison to broad- based indices:-

BSE SENSEX
Chart Title
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EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED 32.08
Nifty 50 19.37
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IX. Details relating to Suspension of Securities and reasons thereof

As specified above that w.e.f 30th May 2017 in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board
stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution
Professional. Due to the ongoing CIRP company is unable to make timely compliances of various clauses of SEBI
Listing Regulation, 2015 which results into the trading suspension of the shareholding of the promoters.

X. Registrarand Share Transfer Agents:
The Company has appointed Link Intime India Private Limited having its office at Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot
No. NH 2, LSC, C-1 Block, Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058 as Registrar and Transfer Agent for
physical transfer.

XI. Share Transfer System:
Share Transfers are registered and returned within a period of fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt, if the
documents are clear in all respects. The authority for transfer of shares has been delegated to the Managing
Director for transfer of shares up to a fixed number beyond which the matters are placed before the
shareholders Committee, which meets as and when required. As reported by Company's RTA all valid requests
for transfer during the year under review were transferred within stipulated time limit.

XIl. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2022:

a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2022

SR.NO. | SHARES RANGE NUMBER OF % OF TOTAL TOTAL SHARES | % OF ISSUED

SHAREHOLDERS | SHAREHOLDERS | FOR THE RANGE CAPITAL
1 1-500 87456 83.3121 8837911 7.2166
2 501 - 1000 7828 7.4571 6556384 5.3536
3 1001 - 2000 4559 4.343 7018752 5.7311
4 2001 - 3000 1642 1.5642 4240388 3.4625
5 3001 - 4000 776 0.7392 2786973 2.2757
6 4001 - 5000 837 0.7973 3997426 3.2641
7 5001 - 10000 1092 1.0403 8187983 6.6859
8 10001 - above 784 0.7469 80841351 66.0106
Total 104974 100 122467168 100




EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

b) Categories of Equity Shareholding as on 31st March, 2022

Category No. of Shares held | %age of shareholding
Promoters 5,48,38,245 44.78 %
FlIl / Foreign Portfolio Investors/ Banks/NBFC & Insurance Companies 569545 0.46 %
Body Corporate/Foreign Companies 3598277 2.94 %
Others 6,3461101 51.81%
Total 12,24,67,168 100 %

Xlll. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

About 99.99% of the Equity Shares of the Company have been dematerialized as on 31st March 2022 The
Company's Shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialization form.

Relevant data for the monthly turnover for the period starting from 01st April, 2021 till 31st March, 2022 is
provided in point VIl above pertaining to Stock Market Data.

XIV. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on equity:

No GDRs/ ADRs/Warrants have been issued by the Company.

In Year 2012-13, the Company had raised USS$ 10 million, Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
("FCCB") for redemption of outstanding Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds. The Bond holders, as
per the agreement, have the option to convert these bonds into Equity Shares, at a price of Rs.188.62 per share
with in 5 years and 1 day from the date of disbursement. The FCCB are redeemable at a premium of 33.15 % on
principal after 5 years and 1 day. The FCCB were raised for the purposes of redemption of earlier FCCB of the
Company. As on March, 31, 2022 USS 10 million (previous year USS 10 million) FCCB were outstanding for
conversion into equity shares of Rs. 2 each.

The Company was not able to redeem these FCCB and thus has defaulted on redemption. In this regard, please
note that the Company is CIRP since May 30, 2017 and a moratorium period is in effect since 30th May 2017

wherein no judicial proceedings for recovery, enforcement of security interest, sale or transfer of assets, or
termination of essential contracts can be instituted or continued against the Company.

Further, Details of outstanding Stock Options are being uploaded on the website of the Company and same can
be accessed through web link: http://www.educomp.com/content/investors-home.

XV. DISCLOSURE OF COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risks, if any, are tracked and managed within the Risk Management
framework. The foreign exchange market is highly regulated and the Company ensures compliance with all the

regulations.

XVI. OFFICES TILLMARCH 31, 2022: New Delhi, Gurgaon (Haryana), Noida (U.P), Chennai (Tamil Nadu), Parwanoo
(Himachal Pradesh).

Addresses of Major Business Offices till March 31, 2022:
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1.KhasaraNo. 701, 2nd Floor, Vill-Taksal, Sec-2, Kasauli Road, Parawnoo (HP) 173220;
2.Plotno 85, Special EconomicZone, Phase Il, Sector 82, Noida;

3.PlotNo 514, Udyog Vihar, Phase lll, Gurgaon—122 001.

Address for Correspondence:

Investor Correspondence: For transfer/ Dematerialization of Shares, Payment of dividend on shares, change of
address, transmissions, and any other query relating to shares and debentures of the Company.

. For securities held in physical form: Please contact Registrar & Transfer Agent at address given below.
o For securities held in Demat Form: To the Depository Participant
o Any query on Annual Report: To the Company address.
Company Address Debenture Trustee Address Registrar & transfer Agent Address

Educomp Solutions Limited

Plot No 514, Udyog Vihar, Phase-

1, Gurgaon-122001, (Haryana)
Telephone: 0124-4529000

Fax: 0124 - 4529039
Email:investor.services@educomp.com

Axis Trustee Services Limited,

Axis House, 2nd Floor, Bombay
Dyeing Mills Compound,

Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli,
Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400025
Ph:-022-24255215/5216;
email:-complaints@axistrustee.com
debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com

Link Intime India Private limited
Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot No.
NH 2, LSC, C-1 Block, Near Savitri
Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-
110058

Telephone: 011-41410592-94
Fax: 011-41410591

Email : delhi@linkintime.co.in

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Annual Report forthe F. Y. 2021-22 of the Company and the annual results of the Company are placed on the
Company's website i.e. www.educomp.com and also on the website of NSE and BSE and can be downloaded.
There is a separate dedicated section under "Investors Relations” on the Company's website which gives
information on unclaimed dividends, quarterly compliance reports and other relevant information of interest to
theinvestors /public.

As specified above that w.e.f May 30, 2017 the company is under CIRP and the powers of the board has been
suspended and also most of the employees has left the company due to that company is unable to approve and
adopt the quarterly results, as per SEBI Listing Regulations 2015, post the initiation of the CIRP.

However, the complete set of the financial results for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 are displayed on
the website of the Companyi.e. www.educomp.com.

Further, the company has also approved and adopted the standalone quarterly financial results, for the
Financial Year 2021-22, as per the format specified in SEBI (LODR), 2015 and the same were submitted with stock
exchange and available on the website of the Company i.e. www.educomp.com and also on the website of NSE
and BSE and can be downloaded.

The standalone quarterly financial results, for the Financial Year 2021-22, as per the format specified in SEBI
(LODR), 2015 were also published in Business Standard (English Edition) and also in Business Standard ( Hindi
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Edition).

11. PROCEDURES FOR FAIR DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION AND PREVENTION
OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information and Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to deal with
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and trading in securities by Directors, employees of the Company,
Designated Employees and Connected Persons. The said Code is available on the website of the Company and
can be access through the link http://www.educomp.com/Data/Code-of-Fair-Practices-Procedures-V1.pdf.

12. DETAILS OF THE CREDIT RATINGS

The details of the credit ratings are provided in the resolution professional's report on working & affairs of the
company forming the part of Corporate Governance Report.

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
a. Quarterly Results and Newspaper wherein results normally published

As specified earlier that pursuant to an application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under
Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”) on May 12, 2017, Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Delhi (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order dated 30th May 2017, had ordered the
commencement of CIRP in respect of your Company under the provisions of Code. Thereafter, in accordance
with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and Dr. Sanjeev Aggarwal was appointed
as interim resolution professional of the Company. The IRP carried out his duties from May 30, 2017 ftill
Mahender Khandelwal was appointed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) vide the order of NCLT dated
September 12, 2017 and took over the management of the affairs of the Company. Since the inception of the
CIRP, the majority of employees has left the Company due to which the company is unable to do various
compliances, within the stipulated time, under various appliable laws including preparation and submission of
quarterly results and newspaper publication of the same thereof.

Further, the company has also approved and adopted the standalone quarterly financial results, for the
Financial Year 2021-22, as per the format specified in SEBI (LODR), 2015 and the same were submitted with stock
exchange and available on the website of the Company i.e. www.educomp.com and also on the website of NSE
and BSE and can be downloaded.

The standalone quarterly financial results, for the Financial Year 2021-22, as per the format specified in SEBI
(LODR), 2015 were also published in Business Standard (English Edition) and also in Business Standard (Hindi
Edition).

b. Website details where Results; official News Releases and presentation made to Institutional Investors or to
analyst, if any are displayed:- www.educomp.com

14. DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OR QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONS PLACEMENT AS SPECIFIED UNDER REGULATION 32 (7A):- Not Applicable

15. DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO THE CERTIFICATE FROM A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE THAT NONE OF THE
DIRECTORS ON THE BOARD OF THE COMPANY HAVE BEEN DEBARRED OR DISQUALIFIED FROM BEING
APPOINTED OR CONTINUING AS DIRECTORS OF COMPANIES BY THE BOARD/MINISTRY OF CORPORATE
AFFAIRS ORANY SUCH STATUTORY AUTHORITY:-

As specified earlier that pursuant to an application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under
Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”) on May 12, 2017, Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Delhi (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order dated 30th May 2017, had ordered the
commencement of CIRP in respect of your Company under the provisions of Code. Thereafter, in accordance
with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended.
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The Company has not received any written representation from any of the director of the company. In the
absence of written representation received, we are unable to comment whether the director is disqualified
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. In the absence of such information the
company is unable to obtain any certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on
the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

16. OTHER DISCLOSURES:-

(i) The Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis have paid Rs. 14,50,000/- to the Statutory Auditors
andto all entities in their network firm.

(i) The Company has established an appropriate mechanism for dealing with complaints in relation to Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace, in accordance with its Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace ('POSH'). For disclosure regarding the number of complaints filed, disposed of and pending, please
refertothe Board's Report.

17. DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REGARD TO CAPITAL MARKET

During the Financial Year 2021-22 there were instances of non-compliances by the Company on various matter
related to capital markets. However, please note the following:

a) The Company has not appointed Woman Director after March 28, 2017 as required by the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations.

b) Due toinitiation of CIRP since 30th May 2017, the powers of the Board of Directors & committees thereof
have been suspended.

c) There were frequent resignations of Directors as well as Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer.
Further, since March 28, 2017 there is no proper composition of the Board. Most of the senior employees
and other staff has also resigned.

d) Since CIRP date, the Company is not complying with the various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Regulations of the SEBI (LODR), 2015 and BSE & NSE has imposed penalties under various Regulations
which are still pending for payment. The Company is making efforts to comply with pending compliances.

e) The Company along with Directors/Ex-Directors, Employees/Ex-Employees has been facing issues and
investigations such as investigation by SFIO, CBI.

f)  Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company for the 2022-2023 are also not held. The Company is
making efforts to hold the AGM at the earliest possible.

Note: The Company is undergoing CIRP and the powers of Board are suspended. Hence this report has been prepared
on best efforts basis based on whatever information available and initialed by RP in order to meet the
compliance.

For Educomp Solutions Limited
(Under CIRP)

Sd/-

Mahender Khandelwal

Resolution Professional

Taken on record

1BBI Reg. No I1BBI/IPA-001/1P-P00033/2016-17/ 10086
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members

Educomp Solutions Limited

(Company under the Corporoate Insolvency Resolution Process)
(CIN:L74999DL1994PLC061353)

1211, Padma Tower-l, 5, Rajendra Place

New Delhi-110008

Sir,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to the good
Corporate Governance practices by Educomp Solutions Limited (“the Company”) on the basis of limited information
and documents available, for the financial yearended March 31,2022 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and

clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

Please take note that pursuant to an order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench
(“NCLT”) on May 30,2017 for the initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP) of the Company as
per the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,2016 (“Code”), NCLT vide its order dated September 12,
2017 appointed Mr. Mahender Khandelwal having IP Registration No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/10086 as
Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company. As per the provision of the section 17 and 18 of the Code, the
powers of the Board of Directors and the Management of the Company stands remain suspended from the date of
initiation of the CIRP and vest with the RP.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management / RP of the Company.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company. Further, since the Company is in CIRP, this certificate is being issued on the
request of Resolution Professional and on the basis of very limited information/documents provided.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we hereby certify that
the company has not during the period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2022, properly complied with
the statutory provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 listed
hereunder, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter-

i.  Aspersub-regulation 2A & 2B of Regulation 15 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20
and 21 of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 were not applicable during the insolvency resolution process. The powers,
role and responsibilities of Board of Directors and committees thereof remain suspended from the date of
commencement of CIRP. The powers, role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors & Committees
thereof specified in the respective regulations were fulfilled by the aforesaid Resolution Professional in
respect of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b)
to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations except the following:

(a)  The Company has not complied with the statutory requirements as stipulated in Regulation 17 (Board
of Directors) read with Part A of Schedule-1l and Clause C (2) of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 as
the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process pursuant to the provisions of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(b)  The Company was not required to obtain the Compliance Certificate under the terms of Regulation
17(8) from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer as specified in Part B of Schedule Il
of Listing Regulations as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process pursuant to
the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(c)  The performance of the Independent Director (s) for the financial year 2021-22 of the company were
not evaluated by the Board of Directors of the Company as required under Regulation 17(10) of the
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Listing Regulations as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the
provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(d)  The Company has not complied with the statutory requirements as stipulated in Regulation 18 (Audit
Committee) read with Part C of Schedule-Il and Clause C (3) of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 as
the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the provisions of Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(e)  The Resolution Professional was not required to exercise the power, role and responsibility under
Regulation 19 (Nomination and Remuneration Committee) read with Part D (A) of Schedule Il and
clause (C) (4) of the Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) 2015, as the role & responsibility towards Directors
Nomination and Remuneration were suspended in CIRP Process.

(f)  The company has not complied with the provision of Regulation 20 (Stakeholders Relationship
Committee) read with Part D (B) of Schedule Il and Clause (C) (5) of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) 2015
as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the provisions of Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(g9) The provision of Regulation 21 (Risk Management Committee) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015
read with Part D (C) of Schedule Il and Clause (C) (5A) of Schedule V is not applicable being the
company does not fall under top 1000 listed entities as per market capitalization.

ii. ~ The company has vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy for directors and employees under regulation 22
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and the same is hosted on the website of the company.

iii.  We have not received any documents pertaining to the compliance of the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015 read with Clause (C) (10) (a) of Schedule V with respect to the disclosures on materially
significant related party transaction. In the absence of any documents, we are unable to comment that
whether the related parties transaction, under during the period under review, is in compliance of the
Listing Regulations.

iv.  The Company is notin proper compliance of the Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulation, which relates to the
corporate governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of listed entity, as the company w.e.f. May
30,2017 isin CIRP and in terms of the Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 the powers of
the board, since from the initiation of CIRP has been suspended and the said powers are being exercised by
the RP. As a result thereof, Committee of creditors was formed.

v.  Nomeeting of the independent director(s) has been conducted during the period under review as stipulated
under Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations. The powers of the independent director(s) were also
suspended and vested with RP under CIRP with effect from May 30, 2017.

vi. The company was unable to get the compliance report for the year ended 31* March 2022 from the Board
members and senior management of the Company regarding the compliance of all the provisions of the
Code of Conduct and also the copies of the affirmation (s) from the Board of Directors and senior
management personnel for the compliance with code of conduct are not available as the company is under
as per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

vii. We were unable to get the quarterly compliance report on corporate governance and proof of filing with
the stock exchange as required under Regulation 27 (2) (a) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. Therefore,
the company has not complied with the provision of Regulation 27 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulation,
2015

viii. The web-site of the Company is not properly updated.

ix. Thecompany has not carried out Internal Audit for the period under Review.

x.  Thecompany has not properly updated Statutory Registers during the period under review.

xi. The Company has not convened the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year as on 31/03/2021 on or
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before 30" September 2021. However the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year as on 31/03/2021
was held on Friday, 25/08/2023.

xii. The Company has not intimated to the Stock Exchanges regarding non-payment of interest on any of its
borrowings (including External Commercial Borrowings) and repayment thereof [Regulation 51(2) read
with Part B of Schedule Ill of Listing Regulations.

xiii. The Company has not created Debenture Redemption Reserve in relation to the earlier issue of debentures
since the company is in losses.

xiv. As Regulation 50(1) of Listing Regulations, the listed entity shall give prior intimation to the stock
exchange(s) at least eleven working days before the date on and from which the interest on debentures and
bonds, and redemption amount of redeemable shares or of debentures and bonds shall be payable and as
per Regulation 10(1) of Listing Regulations, the listed entity shall file the reports, statements, documents,
filings and any other information with recognized stock exchange(s) on the electronic platform as specified
by Securities and Exchange Board of India or the recognized stock exchange(s); however, we have not
received any information pertaining to the compliance of the said regulation.

xv. As on date of this Report, the Company has received several notices for Penalties against the violations of
SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations, and Guidelines etc. from both the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE during the
moratorium period under CIRP Process of the Code.

xvi. The Company has prepared the Quarterly/Annual Results/ for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022
as required under Regulation 33 of Listing Regulations after the period under review.

xvii. The company has not filed / filed delayed various disclosures, with the stock exchanges as required to be
made in terms of various applicable Regulations of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

xviii. The company has not complied with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations),
2015 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the period
under review as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as per the provisions of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

xix. Without qualifying our report, we further report that the Company is currently under the investigations
by Serious Fraud Investigation Office (“SFIO”) and Central Bureau of Investigation (“CBI”).

Other Matter

Since the company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) pursuant to the order issued by the
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi (“Adjudicating Authority”), vide its order dated 30th May 2017
under IBC, 2016 and the Company has not complied with various provisions of Listing Regulations since that.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We further state that this certificate has beenissued in order to meet the compliance based on whatever information
has been provided by the Resolution Professional of the Company since most of the employees have left the
Company.

Place: Faridabad For P.C. Jain & Co.
Date : 01/09/2023 Company Secretaries
UDIN: FO04103E000907148 (FRN: P2016HR051300)
Sd/-

(P.C.Jain)

Managing Partner
M No: FCS 4103
COP No: 3349
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Educomp Solutions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Educomp Solutions Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended and notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting
policiesand other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because of the
significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements do not give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the
manner so required and also do not give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indiaincluding the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. As mentioned in Note 3.1 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Management did not conduct
physical verification of Property, plant and equipment at certain locations having a net carrying value of Rs. 5.20
million as at March 31, 2022.In absence of the same, we are unable to comment over existence, valuation, and
the extent of the adjustment, if any, required in respect of these assets as at March 31, 2022 and the resultant
possible impact of the same on the loss for the year ended on that date and on the equity as on that date.

2. Asregardstrade receivable amounting Rs. 1,189.21 million (net of accumulated loss allowance of Rs. 14,684.11
million) as on March 31, 2022, the management is of the view that the same are good and fully recoverable in
due course and hence no further loss allowance is required. Out of the above, trade receivables only to the
extent of Rs. 7.64 million have subsequently been realized/adjusted by the Company till March 31, 2023. In
absence of appropriate audit evidences including balance confirmations, correspondences from parties and
details of subsequent realization post March 31, 2023, we are unable to comment on the recoverability of
balance outstanding trade receivables of Rs. 1,181.57 million and the possible impact of the same on the loss for
theyearended March 31,2022, and on the equity as on that date.

3. As mentioned in Note 12.4 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company has not accrued
interest on borrowing post May 30, 2017, being Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP")
commencement date. The amount of such interest not accrued is estimated to be Rs. 3,643.95 million for the
reporting financial year and Rs. 14,987.48 million till March 31, 2022. This has resulted in understatement of
financial liabilities by Rs. 14,987.48 million as at March 31, 2022; understatement of loss for the year by Rs.
3,643.95 million and overstatement of equity by Rs. 14,987.48 million as on that date.

4. Asdisclosed in Note 14 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the advance from customers includes
amount received from non-corporate entities of Rs. 80.47 million which is deemed to be deposit u/s 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 and thereby in violation of
section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. The impact of the non-compliance on the accompanying
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statementsis presently not ascertainable.

5. Asmentionedin Note 24.2 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company follows Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model for measuring impairment loss allowance of its trade receivables. The ECL allowance or loss
rate is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience.
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However, for the computed loss rate as mentioned in Note 24.2 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,
we have not been provided with any underlying workings of such loss rate computed by the Company.

Further, the Company has not taken effect of aforesaid loss rate in computation of impairment loss allowance, if
any on trade receivables over and above the existing provision in the books of account. In absence of relevant
workings and other details, we are unable to comment on the appropriateness of the loss rate and the possible
impact of not considering the effect of the loss rate in impairment loss allowance on the trade receivables
balance asatMarch 31,2022 and the loss for the year ended on that date and on the equity as on that date.

6. We have neither got the direct confirmations nor provided with the statements for borrowings from banks and
financial institutions amounting to Rs. 12,918.05 million as at March 31, 2022. Further, in case of bank
borrowings amounting to Rs. 5,241.32 million wherein we have received the confirmations or bank statements,
the amount recorded in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is short by Rs. 1,835.92 million in
comparison to amounts reported in the confirmations or bank statements. In the absence of reconciliations and
other alternative audit evidence, we are unable to determine any possible impact thereof on the loss for the
year ended 31st March 2022 and on balance of borrowings and equity as at March 31, 2022.

7. Balanceinborrowings other than bank borrowings mentioned in paragraph 6 above, amounting to Rs. 7,492.17
million as at March 31, 2022 are subject to confirmation. Borrowings other than bank borrowings amounting to
Rs. 10 million wherein we have received the balance confirmation, the amount recorded in the Ind AS Financial
Statements is short by Rs. 4.05 million. In the absence of any alternative audit evidence, we are unable to
comment on any possible impact thereof on the loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 and on balance of
borrowings and equity asat March 31,2022.

8. As disclosed in Note 28 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, financial guarantees aggregating Rs.
13,215.60 million were issued to banks on behalf of its erstwhile subsidiaries. As per Ind AS 109 "Financial
Instruments", the said financial guarantees are required to be initially measured at fair value and subsequently
measured at the higher of (i) the amount of loss allowance in accordance with Expected Credit Loss ("ECL")
method and (ii) amount initially recognized less cumulative amount of income recognized in income statement.
However, no measurement of financial guarantees at fair value and estimation of loss allowances in accordance
with ECL method were performed during the year. In absence of such measurement, we are unable to comment
on the resultant impact thereof on the loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 and corresponding liability and
equity asonthatdate.

9. The Company has not determined the provision for penal interest for defaults on borrowings as per the
contractual terms of the underlying agreements. In absence of such assessment, we are unable to comment on
the possible impact thereof on the loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 and on the balance of borrowings and
equityasonthatdate.

10. As disclosed in Note 6.5 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the balance with banks in current
account amounting to Rs. 7.45 million is not verifiable as the same is not reflected in the bank statement. As per
the bank statement available, the bank has already debited this amount in October, 2017 i.e. during the CIRP
period where moratorium under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 was in force prohibiting such
actions. The company has not recorded this transaction in its books of accounts and therefore, the cash and
bank balance as on March 31, 2022 is overstated by said amount along with overstatement of equity for the
equivalentamount on that date.

11. We have neither got the direct confirmation nor provided with the bank statements for balance with banks in
current accounts, term deposit and margin money with aggregate amount of Rs. 0.20 million. In the absence of
any alternative evidence, we are unable to comment on any possible impact thereof on the loss for the year
ended March 31,2022 and on the balance with banks as at March 31,2022 and on equity as on that date.

12. As mentioned in Note 4(ii) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company has fully amortized its
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intangible assets (which contains software and knowledge based content) as per it's accounting policy but the
same continues to generate revenue for the company. In absence of re-assessment of the useful life of the
intangible assets, we are unable to comment on the resultant impact of amortization on the loss for the year
ended on March 31,2022, carrying value of intangible assets and on the equity as on that date.

13. The Company'sinvestment in its subsidiary companies viz. Educomp Learning Private Limited, Educomp School
Management Limited, and Educomp Professional Education Limited aggregating to Rs. 701.73 million (net of
provision for impairment of Rs. 2,581.30 million) has not been evaluated for any further impairment during the
year. These subsidiary companies have not furnished their audited financial statements nor latest valuation
reports of these companies have been made available. In absence of appropriate audit evidence, we are unable
to comment upon appropriateness of carrying amount of investments and possible impact of the same on the
loss for the year ended March 31,2022 and equity as on that date.

14. Asexplainedin Note 36 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements regarding managerial remuneration paid
to one of the whole time directors of the Company during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 and during the year
ended March 31, 2015 in non-compliance with the requirements of Section 197 and Section 198 read with
Schedule Vto the Companies Act, 2013, and paid during the year ended March 31, 2014 in non-compliance with
the requirements of Section 198, Section 269 and Section 309 read with Schedule XlII to the Companies Act,
1956, for which the Central Government's approval is yet to be obtained.

15. Asdisclosedin Note 39 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, as per the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code
and Regulations issued there under, the RP has received, verified, and admitted the claims submitted by the
creditors (Operational and Financial), employees and workmen of the Company aggregating to Rs. 30,437.72
million as on May 30, 2017. These claims have been taken into cognizance by Committee of the Creditors (CoC)
inits 12th meeting held on February 17, 2018, while approving the Resolution Plan of the Company. The details
of such claims have been disclosed in the said note. As represented by the Management/RP, a reconciliation of
the admitted claims vis-a-vis liabilities outstanding as at March 31, 2022 as per books of accounts has not been
prepared and any impact thereof has not been considered in the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022.

In absence of the above, we are unable to comment upon appropriateness of carrying value of such liabilities as
at March 31, 2022 and any possible impact of the same on the loss for the year ended on that date and equity as
atthat date.

16. As disclosed in Note 40 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company is currently subjected to
the investigations by Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) and the Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI). As
further explained to us, certain information has been requested by them from the Company and the
investigations are currently underway and the Company is yet to get any orders or directions in this respect from
the said Authorities till the date of signing this report. In absence of pending final outcome of the investigations,
we are unable to comment on the consequential impact of these matters on these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022.

17. Asdisclosed in Note 41 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company did not have any internal
audit conducted during the year as required under section 138 of the Act. The impact of the non-compliance on
the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is presently not ascertainable.

18. As disclosed in Note 42 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements are not authenticated by the Company Secretary of the Company which is not in compliance
applicable provisions of the Act. Also, the impact of these non-compliances on the accompanying Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements is presently not ascertainable.

19. As disclosed in Note 43 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements are not approved by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company which is not in compliance with
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section 134 (1) of the Act. The impact of this noncompliance on the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements s presently not ascertainable.

20. Asdisclosedin Note 44 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company has not been in compliance
with various other provisions of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015, Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017. The financial or other impact of these non-
compliances on these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is presently not ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the
Act and Rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2A(c) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, which indicates that the Company
has incurred substantial losses during the year, its net worth has been completely eroded, has defaulted in
repayment of its loans and related interest, and has negative working capital. Further, currently the Company is
under the CIRP. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis as the management is of the view that the Company has been able to discharge its
operational liabilities from its internal accrual of funds till the date of this balance sheet and is also confident that the
Company would have sufficient fund balance to continue as going concern as stated in the said note.

Our opinionis not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Except for the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion
section and Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined that there are no other key
audit matters to communicate in our report.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

(a) Note 2A(a) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, wherein it is stated that CIRP has been initiated in
case of the Company vide an order of the principal bench of the NCLT dated May 30, 2017 under the provisions
of the Insolvency Code. Pursuant to the order, the management of the affairs of the Company and powers of
board of directors of the Company are now vested with the Resolution Professional (RP), who is appointed by
the CoC. Accordingly, these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the
RP.

(b) Note 28 and note 1(c) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, considering the moratorium period, status
of Contingent liabilities disclosed has been updated till the date of admission of insolvency application of the
Company under the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 i.e., May 30, 2017. Further, claims aggregating Rs.
1,659.20 million have been admitted by the RP against guarantees issued on behalf of erstwhile subsidiaries
companies but the same have not been recorded in the books of accounts and continues to be shown under
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contingent liabilities.

(c) Wedraw attention to Note 12.2 & 33 on Trade Payable due to MSME where the company has not made further
provision of interest for the period after commencement of CIRP i.e. May 30, 2017 on unpaid dues of the
MSMEs pertaining to the pre-CIRP period as these dues would be settled in accordance with the provisions of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Our opinionis not modified in respect of these matters.
Other Information

In view of ongoing CIRP, the Resolution Professional (RP) is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report, Report on Corporate Governance
and Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Board's Report, Report on Corporate Governance and Annexures to Board's Report are not made available to us as at
the date of thisauditor's report. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Resolution Professional of the Company appointed by the Committee of Creditors ("CoC") pursuant to the order
passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), with whom the management of the affairs of the
Company and the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company are now vested after the commencement of CIRP
w.e.f. May 30, 2017 under the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("Insolvency Code"), is
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
thatgive atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Further, as per Section 134 of the Act, the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of a company is required to be
authenticated by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors, where authorized by the Board or at least two Directors,
of which one shall be the Managing Director or the CEO (being a Director), the CFO and the Company Secretary where
they are appointed. In view of the pendency of CIRP, as per the Insolvency Code, and pursuant to the order passed by
the Hon'ble NCLT, the powers of the Board of the Directors are now vested with the RP. Accordingly, these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements are approved by the RP [refer note 2A(a) of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
and paragraph (a) under Emphasis of Matter].

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
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concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has norealistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. As
part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statementsin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Company's Directors/management/RP (refer note 2A(a) of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements and paragraph "(a)" under Emphasis of Matter paragraph).

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and eventsinamanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) Asrequired bythe Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 1", a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) Asrequired bysection 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our
report, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our
report, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
itappears from our examination of those books.

c. TheBalance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our
report, in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rulesissued thereunder;

e. The matters described under the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section of our report, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Company;

f.  We have not received written representation from the directors of the company as on March 31, 2022. In
the absence of written representation received, we are unable to comment whether the director is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

g. Thequalification/reservation/adverse remarks relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report.

h.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure 2". Our report expresses a Disclaimer of Opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the reasons stated therein;

i.  Inaccordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by
the Company to its directors during the year and accordingly the provisions of section 197 of the Act are
notapplicable.

Also refer our comment in paragraph 14 of the "Independent Auditors Report - Basis of adverse opinion"
regarding managerial remuneration paid to one of the whole-time director of the Company during the
quarter ended June 30, 2015, year ended March 31,2015 and year ended March 31, 2014 for which Central
Government's approval is yet to be obtained by the Company.
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j.  Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations givento us:

I. Except for the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion paragraph above, the Company has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements - Refer Note 28 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. Also refer paragraph "(b)"
under Emphasis of Matter paragraph on Contingent Liabilities;

ii.  Except for the possible effects of matters described under Basis of Adverse Opinion paragraph, the
Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts and derivative contracts if any;

iii. The company has not transferred an amount of Rs. 0.31 million on account of unpaid dividend
pertaining to FY 2011-12 (declared on 30th May, 2012) which was required to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 05th July,2019;

iv. a.The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in Note
54(A), no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other source or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (‘intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in Note
54(B), no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries')or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation
under clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly, the provision of
section 123 of the Actis not applicable to the company.

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei

Partner

Membership No.: 086329

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.07.2023
UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent Auditor's
Report of even date to the members of Educomp Solutions Limited on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the year ended March 31, 2022]

(A)The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plantand Equipment.

(B)The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have not been physically verified by the
management and hence, we cannot comment on material discrepancies existing, if any.

According to the information and explanation given by the management the title deeds of the immovable properties,
included in property, plant and equipment, have been given as security against borrowings from banks and the
original title deeds are kept with the trustee appointed by the banks. On the basis of copy of title deeds of these
immovable properties, we report that title deeds of the immovable properties, included in property, plant and
equipment, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
duringthe yearended March 31, 2022.

We have been informed that there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedures of such verification by the management is appropriate. As informed, no discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification carried out during the year.

The Company was in the earlier years sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees on the basis of
security of current assets. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Banks have classified such
accounts as Non-Performing Assets on account of continuous defaults committed by the company and further the
Company has not filed any quarterly returns or statements with the Banks and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)b of
the Orderisnotapplicable.

During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)a to 3(iii)f of the Orderis not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, no loan granted, investment made or any guarantee or security given during the year falling under the
provisions of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, based on audit reports of earlier years the
Company has not complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of the following:

Nature of non-compliance Name of Company/party Amount granted during the year | Balance as at March 31, 2022
Interest free Loan given* Edu Smart Services ; illi
Private Limited (ESSPL) il Rs. 258.19 million

*Being amount recoverable from ESSPL on invocation of guarantee.

In our opinion, the Company has accepted deposits through advance from customers which are outstanding for
more than 365 days without appropriating such advance with provision of services and thereby in violation of section
73to 76 of the Actand the rules framed there under. However, we have been informed that these advances pertain to
the pre CIRP period and cannot be repaid by the resolution professional and would be settled in accordance with the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and regulations issued there under. We have been further
informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any court or any other tribunal in this matter.
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(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act and rules there under. We have broadly reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it though there have been
slight delaysin few cases.

No undisputed statutory dues in respect of goods and service tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable except the following: -

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Due Date Date of Payment
statute the dues the amount relates
Punjab Value Added Works Contract Tax 0.83 million 2016-17 Various Not paid
Tax Act, 2005 (PVAT)
Assam VAT Assam-VAT 4.46 million 2013-14 15th July, 2017 Not paid
Act 2005

(b) The statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are disclosed as under:

Name of Nature of Amount Amount paid Period to which _Forum where
the statute the dues Disputed under protest | the amount relates dispute is pending
BVAT Act 2005 Bihar-VAT Rs. 0.34 million Rs. 0.07 million 2011-12 Asstt. Commissioner Trade Tax,
Patna
DVAT Act 2004 Delhi-VAT Rs. 0.07 million NIL 2013-14 Appeal/objection filed before
bjection Hearing Authority
(SOHO) Delhi{DVAT)
DVAT Act 2004 Delhi-VAT Rs. 4.57 million NIL 2014-15 Appeal/objection filed before
bjection Hearing Authority
(SOHO) Delhi{DVAT)
DVAT Act 2004 Delhi-VAT Rs. 1.46 million NIL 2015-16 Appeal/objection filed before
bjection Hearing Authority
(SOHO) Delhi(DVAT)
DVAT Act 2004 Delhi-VAT Rs. 9.56 million NIL 2015-17 Appeal/objection filed before
bjection Hearing Authority
(SOHO) Delhi{DVAT)
DVAT Act 2004 Delhi-VAT Rs. 2.91 million NIL 2017-18 Appeal/objection filed before
bjection Hearing Authority
(SOHO) Delhi{DVAT)
MVAT Act 2002 Maharashtra-VAT | Rs. 8.14 million NIL 2015-16 Rectification application
filed before DC of State
Tax(MVAT) Mumbai
MVAT Act 2002 Maharashtra-VAT | Rs. 0.71 million NIL 2016-17 Rectification application
filed before DC of State
Tax(MVAT) Mumbai
PVAT Act, 2005 Chandigarh-VAT Rs. 0.17 million NIL 2012-13 Apcpeal pending before
(UT Chandigarh) DC Excise, Chandigarh
Finance Act 1994 Ahmedabad Service Tax-209.8 NIL 2014-15 Appeal Pending before
(Service Tax) millionPenalty- ujarat High Court at
104.94 million Ahemdabad. Recovery
(U/s 78) proceedings stayed by
Penalty-0.010 Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat
million (U/s 77) Vide Order dated 06-01-2021
Interest u/s 75
THE EMPLOYEES' Provident Fund 8.78 million NIL March 2008 — An Appeal Pending before
PROVIDENT FUNDS Contributions February 2014 Central Government
AND MISCELLANEOUS | & other charges Industrial Tribunal
PROVISIONS ACT, 1952 Cum Labour Court.
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(viii) We have been informed that the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

in the books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

a. The Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks, and dues to
debenture holders as per details set out in Appendix "A" attached herewith. The amounts of defaults stated in the
Appendixare as per contractual terms.

b.  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared Willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c. The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and the term loans outstanding at the beginning of
the year were not pending for utilization and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)c of the Order is not applicable.

d. Accordingtotheinformation and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company
has not raised any funds on short term basis during the current or previous financial year and hence reporting
under clause 3(ix)d of the Orderis notapplicable.

e. During the year, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f.  The Company has not raised loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies. Hence the requirement to report on clause (ix) f of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

a. The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause on 3x(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

b. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially, optionally convertible) during the year and hence, the requirement to report on clause on 3x(b) of the
Orderis notapplicable to the Company.

a. No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. However, we
have been informed that the Company is currently subjected to the investigations by Serious Fraud Investigation
Office (SFIO) and the Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI). As further explained to us, certain information has been
requested by them from the Company and the investigations are currently underway and the Company is yet to get
any orders or directions in this respect from the said Authorities till the date of signing this report.

b. No report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government
during the year up to the date of report.

c. The Company has not set up any whistle blower mechanism as required under SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015.
However, as represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints have been received by the
Companyduring the year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)a to 3(xii)c of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) The transactions with the related parties during the year were not approved by the Audit Committee as required

under section 177 of the Act as the Company did not have an audit committee since suspension of board of directors
afterinitiation of CIRP on May 30,2017

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us by the Management, the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv) As mentioned in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditors Report — Basis of Adverse Opinion, the Company did not
have any internal audit system during the year. Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)a and 3(xiv)b of the
Orderisnotapplicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year.

(xvi) a. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) ais not applicable to the Company.

b.  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities.

c. TheCompanyisnota Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause3 (xvi)c of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us there are no Core Investment Companies within the
group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. Hence, the requirement
toreporton clause 3(xvi)d of the Orderis not applicable.

(xvii)The Company hasincurred cash loss during the year amounting to Rs. 58.02 million and in the immediately preceding
financial year for Rs.79.26 million.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on clause
3(xviii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(xii) On the basis of financial ratios disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, ageing and expected date of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, and as stated in the clause 3(ix)a above and in paragraph on ‘Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern' of our report, in our opinion material uncertainty exists on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. However, the Company, being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process, will discharge its liabilities in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not attract provisions of section 135 of
the Companies Act. Accordingly, requirement to report under clause (xx)a& (xx)b of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei

Partner

Membership No.: 086329

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.07.2023
UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443
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Appendix A Details of Loan Defaults forming part of clause (iii) of CARO report of Educomp Solutions
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022

Default not rectified and existing at year end — Banks

(Amount in Rs. millions)

Total amount
¢ the Lend Nature of Nature of of default as Period of
Name of the Lender Facility Payment on March default Remarks
31,202 2
T L Principal 458.79 To be paid in
erm Loan )
Canara Bank Interest 66.80| More than 4 | accordance with
Principal 32.13| years rovisions of IBC
Cash Credit P y P
Interest 0.67
o Principal 947.83 Négrrg than 4 ;gcg‘redgiigeir\l/ith
Central Bank of India Interest 159.88 | Y provisions of IBC
T L Principal 725.79 To be paid in
erm Loan
Interest 99.44| More than 4 accordance with
ICICI Bank Principal 11.49| years provisions of IBC
Cash Credit P
Interest 1.10
Principal 76.28| More than 4 To be paid in
Indusind Bank Term Loan Interest 9.30| years glc’(c)(\)/{sciii?]geo\flvll'g&
T L Principal 304.51 To be paidin
erm Loan .
State Bank of Bikaner Interest 33.8| More than 4 accordance with
i Principal 4.48| years provisions of IBC
and Jaipur Cash Credit P
Interest 0.37
Principal 369.61 To be paid in
i accordance with
Syndicate Bank Term Loan Interest 54.47 brovisions of 1BC
Principal 4,550.00 To be paidin
Term Loan h/égrrg than 4 accordance with
IDB | Bank Interest 657.49 y provisions of IBC
Principal 1,960.00 To be paid in
Jand K Bank Term Loan More than4 | 5 cordance with
Interest 271.59| Y€ provisions of IBC
Principal 1,171.16 | More than 4 To be paidin
years accordance with
Union Bank Term Loan Interest 168.9 provisions of IBC
Principal 3,237.70 To be paidin
Term Loan Interest 461.39 %oaf,i than 4 accordance with
. : provisions of IBC
Axis Bank ) Principal 175.99
Cash Credit
Interest 18.34
inci 576.98 idi
Standard Chartered Interest 100.09 | years provisions of IBC
Bank Cash Credit | Principal 117.08
Principal 300.00 To be paid in
accordance with
Yes bank Term Loan Interest 27.74 provisions of IBC
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Term Loan Principal 181.42 To be paid in
State Bank of India Interest 25.57| More than 4 | accordance with
inci . isi f IBC
Cash Credit Principal 52.49| years provisions o
Interest 8.28
Term Loan Principal 1,922.45 To be paid in
Interest 163.99| More than 4 | accordance with
State bank of Patiala . Principal 799.16| years provisions of IBC
Cash Credit
Interest 53.64
Principal 359.8 To be paid in
DBS Bank Term Loan 45.6| More than 4 | accordance with
Interest .
years provisions of IBC

Default not rectified and existing at year end - Financial Institutions

(Amount in Rs. millions)

Nat § Nature of Total amount .
Name of the Lender Taree Payment of default as | Period of
il on March Remarks
Facility 31,2022 default
External Commercial Principal 5,313.03 To be paid in
. Term Loan More than 4| accordance with
Borrowings o
Interest 1,126.60 years provisions of IBC
Foreign Currency Term Loan brincival 101061 More than 4 To be paid in
Convertible Bonds P e years accordance with
provisions of IBC
) . Unsecured Principal 12.00 More than 4 To be paid in
Reliance Capital Itd accordance with
Loan Interest 2.69 years provisions of IBC
Unsecured More than 4 To be paid in
IBM Global Financing Principal 132.58 accordance with
Loan years provisions of IBC
HP Financial Services Unsecured Principal 220.62 More than 4 To be paid in
. accordance with
(India) Pvt Itd Loan Interest 52.99 years provisions of 1BC

Defaults not rectified and existing as on March 31, 2022 in respect of Debentures

(Amount in Rs. millions)

Total amount of

default as on March
Particulars 31,2021 Period of default

Principal on Debentures 450.00
More than 4 year

Interest on Debentures 75.85

Defaults in respect of guarantees invoked and not rectified as at March 31, 2022

(Amount in Rs. millions)

Total amount of
default as on
March 31, 2022

Period of default
Particulars

Corporate guarantee invoked - given on behalf of

Edu Smart Services Private Limited 258.19 More than 4 year
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(h) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Educomp Solutions Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements forthe yearended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Educomp
Solutions Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
underthe Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI.

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not established its internal financial
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controls with reference to financial statements on criteria based on or considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

Because of this reason, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our
opinion whether the Company had adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
appliedin our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer does not affect
ouropinion onthe standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei

Partner

Membership No.: 086329

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.07.2023
UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443
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Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022 (All Amount in Rs. Million)
. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 53.36 55.42
Other intangible assets 4 - -
Capital work-in-progress 5 - -

Financial assets

1) Investments 6.1 813.21 813.21
ii) Loans 6.2 3.11 3.68
iii) Other financial Assets 6.3 - 1.07
Income tax assets 3.77 35.08
Other non-current assets 7 0.13 0.02
Total 873.58 908.48
Current assets
Inventories 8 2.01 2.46

Financial assets

1) Loans 6.2 25.76 25.00
ii) Trade receivables 6.4 1,189.21 1,234.49
iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 6.5 50.38 52.48
iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 6.5A 147.97 180.15
v) Other Financial Assets 6.3 8.27 25.23
Other current assets 9 77.47 48.37
Total 1,501.07 1,568.18
Total Assets 2,374.65 2,476.66

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
a) Equity Share capital 10 244.93 244.93
b) Other equity 11
i) Equity component of compound financial instruments 524.45 524.45
ii) Reserves and surplus (30,237.33) (29,801.82)
Total Equity (29,467.95) (29,032.44)
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

1) Borrowings 121 363.33 318.69
Provisions 13 1.98 1.66
Total 365.31 320.35

Contd.....
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 (All Amount in Rs. Million)
. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

1) Borrowings 12.1 25,473.99 25,246.19
i) Trade payables 12.2

-due to micro and small enterprises 11.54 11.54

-due to others 1,384.01 1,340.60
iii) other financial liabilities 12.3 4,309.32 4,270.49

Provisions 13 0.09 0.23
Other current liabilities 14 298.34 319.70
Total 31,477.29 31,188.75
Total liabilities 31,842.60 31,509.10
Total Equity and liabilities 2,374.65 2,476.66
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 1 to 58

As per our report of even date.

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Educomp Solutions Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/- Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei Mahender Kumar Khandelwal

Partner Resolution Professional

Membership No.: 086329 Regn. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/10086
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date : 17-07-2023 Date : 17-07-2023

UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443
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Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 (All Amount in Rs. Million)
Particulars Notes March 1. ,dfgzz Mareh 31 ,dfgm
Revenue from operations 15 13.81 9.66
Other Income 16 26.35 5.07
Total Income 40.16 14.73
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 17 - -
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 18 0.44 -
Employee benefit expense 19 21.24 21.65
Finance cost 20 44.82 40.23
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 4.17 9.40
Other expense 21 404.85 449.43
Total expenses 475.52 520.71
Loss before exceptional items and tax (435.36) (505.98)

Exceptional items - -
Loss before tax (435.36) (505.98)

Tax expense 22

a) Current tax - -

b) Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year (435.36) (505.98)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurment of the defined benefit plan (0.15) (0.40)
Income tax related to above item - -

Total comprehensive income for the year (0.15) (0.40)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (435.51) (506.38)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Nominal value Rs. 2 per share)

a) Basic (in Rs.) 31 (3.55) (4.13)
b) Diluted (in Rs.) (3.55) (4.13)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 1 to 58

As per our report of even date.

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Educomp Solutions Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/- Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei Mahender Kumar Khandelwal

Partner Resolution Professional

Membership No.: 086329 Regn. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/10086
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date : 17-07-2023 Date : 17-07-2023

UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443
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Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A.) Equity share capital (All amount in Rs. million)
As at March 31, 2020 244.93
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2021 244.93
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2022 244.93

(B.) Other equity Reserves & Surplus Other Reserve

Equity
Component of Other . Security
Particulars Compounded | Comprehensive Capital premium General reserve

financial h Reserve
instruments income reserve

Retained FCMITDA Total
earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2021 524.45 33.68 411.66 10,240.32 1,124.24 (41,611.72) - (29,277.37)
Loss for the year - - - - - (435.36) - (435.36)
Opening diffrence/ adjustment - - - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income - (0.15) - - - - - (0.15)

Total comprehensive loss during the year - (0.15) - - - (435.36) - (435.51)

Foreign currency monetary item translation

difference created during the year (Gain) - - - - - R - R

Foreign currency monetary item translation

difference amortised during the year - - - - - - - R

Total Additions/(Deletions) during the year. - (0.15) - - - (435.36) - (435.51)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 524.45 33.53 411.66 10,240.32 1,124.24 (42,047.08) - (29,712.88)
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Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

(B.) Other equity Reserves & Surplus Other Reserve
Equity
Component of Other Security Retained
Particulars Cofr_npoundled Comprehensive Capital premium General reserve earnings FCMITDA Total
nancia .
inotraments income Reserve reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2020 524.45 34.08 411.66 10,240.32 1,124.24  (41,105.74) (493.42) (29,264.41)
Loss for the year - - - - - (505.98) - (505.98)

Opening diffrence/ adjustment - - - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income - (0.40) - - - - - (0.40)
Total comprehensive loss during the year - (0.40) - - - (505.98) - (506.38)
Foreign currency monetary item translation

difference created during the year (Gain) - - - - - - 176.12 176.12
Foreign currency monetary item translation

difference amortised during the year - - - - - - 317.30 317.30
Total Additions/(Deletions) during the year - (0.40) - - - (505.98) 493.42 (12.96)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 524.45 33.68 411.66 10,240.32 1,124.24 (41,611.72) - (29,277.37)
For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Educomp Solutions Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/- Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei Mahender Kumar Khandelwal

Partner Resolution Professional

Membership No.: 086329 Regn. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/10086
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date : 17-07-2023 Date : 17-07-2023

UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022 (All amount in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (435.36) (505.98)
Adjustment for:

Provision for bad and doubtfull debts 26.35 123.13
Provision for sundry advances - 2.99
Provision for Inventory (1.46) -
Liabilities/provision no longer required written back - (0.43)
Bad debts written off 2.33 0.43
Provisions for employee benefits 0.40 0.44
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4.17 9.40
Net foreign exchange effects 300.74 250.56
Interest income (26.29) (4.02)
Finance costs 44.82 40.23
Operating loss before working capital changes (84.30) (83.25)
Decrease in trade receivables, loans, other financial assets and other assets 5.59 101.17
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 191 -
(Increase) in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (restricted bank deposits) 32.97 (145.75)
(Decrease) in trade and other payables, other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions (13.65) 16.17
Net Cash used in operations (57.48) (111.66)
Taxes (paid)/refund received, net 31.30 18.31
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (26.18) (93.35)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2.11) (0.57)
Interest received 26.19 3.19
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 24.08 2.62

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of dividend (including dividend tax) - -
Interest on borrowings - -

Proceeds of current borrowings (net of repayment) - -

Net cash used in financing activities © - -

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2.10) (90.73)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 52.48 143.21
Closing cash and cash equivalents 50.38 52.48




EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022 (All amount in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Notes:

Reconciliation of components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks-on current accounts (Refer note 6.5) 19.81 52.48

Cash on hand (Refer note 6.5) - -

Term deposit with bank less than 3 months maturity (Refer note 6.5) 30.57 -
50.38 52.48

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
pursuant to Ind AS 7 Cash flows.

Net debt including interest accrued - Opening balance 29,212.50 29,388.15
Non cash adjustments 311.43 (175.65)
Net debt including interest accrued - closing balance 29,523.93 29,212.50

Note: Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect
method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

As per our report of even date.

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Educomp Solutions Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 007814N

Sd/- Sd/-

Rajneesh Ghei Mahender Kumar Khandelwal

Partner Resolution Professional

Membership No.: 086329 Regn. No IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00033/2016-17/10086
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date : 17-07-2023 Date : 17-07-2023

UDIN : 23086329BGXTCT7443




EDUCOMP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

1. Background

(a) Educomp Solutions Limited (the Company) was founded in September, 1994. The Company is engaged in
providing end-to-end solutions in the education technology domain through licensing of digital content,
solutions for bridging the digital divide (a government initiative to enhance computer literacy),
professional development and retail & consulting initiatives. The Company's business can be categorized
into four strategic business units namely School Learning Solutions (comprising of Smart Class & Edureach
(ICT) business), K-12 Schools (comprising preschools & high schools), Higher Learning Solutions
(comprising of vocational, higher education and professional development) and Online, Supplemental &
Global business (comprising of internet based educational services and coaching) spreading education
ecosystem. The Company is listed on the BSE and the NSE Stock Exchanges.

(b) On May 30, 2017, the Company's application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under
the provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”), has been approved by the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), and accordingly CIRP proceedings have been initiated (for details refer
note 2(a)). As per the provisions of the IBC, under CIRP, the RP is required to manage the operations of the
Company as a going concern and accordingly, a resolution plan needs to be presented to and approved by
the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) by a requisite majority (as per applicable provisions of the IBC at that
time), and thereafter submission of the duly approved Resolution Plan to the Hon'ble NCLT for its approval.

Pursuant to initiation of CIRP, Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd., submitted the resolution plan which was approved
by the CoC consisting of all bankers of the Company on February 17, 2018 and accordingly the same was
submitted with Hon'ble NCLT on March 07, 2018.

Subsequently, Ebix has filed an application under Section 60(5) of IBC seeking withdrawal of its Resolution
Plan. After multiple hearings, the application seeking withdrawal of Ebix's resolution plan was listed before
the Principal Bench, the Hon'ble NCLT for the pronouncement of order on January 02, 2020. Vide Order
dated January 02, 2020 passed by the Hon'ble NCLT, the withdrawal application of Ebix was allowed to the
extent of granting leave to Resolution Applicant to withdraw the Resolution Plan pending approval u/s
30(6) before the Hon'ble NCLT with cost of Rs. 1 lakh to be paid by the Resolution Applicant into the corpus
of the Corporate Debtor. Further, the Hon'ble NCLT, vide the same order, also granted 90 days-time
commencing from November 16, 2019 to the RP and CoC to seek/expedite the possibility of achieving
resolution of the stressed assets of the Corporate Debtor within such time of 90 days. Thereafter, the
Hon'ble NCLT vide its Order dated January 03, 2020, dismissed the approval application as infructuous as a
consequence of its order dated January 02, 2020 which allowed the withdrawal of the Resolution Plan by
Ebix.

Thereafter, after discussions and deliberation in the CoC meetings, an appeal under Section 61 of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against the Order of the Hon'ble NCLT dated January 02, 2020
(allowing withdrawal of Resolution Plan) and Order dated January 03, 2020 was filed with the Hon'ble
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (“NCLAT”) by CoC's legal Counsel. Multiple hearings took place
in the Hon'ble NCLAT in the said matter. Further, due to lockdowns imposed by government authorities in
view of the prevailing situation due to Covid-19, the Courts remained suspended till the month of May,
2020. The appeal was heard by the Hon'ble NCLAT on June 15, 2020 wherein the arguments made by CoC
Counsel were heard in part and thereafter, the matter was adjourned to June 22, 2020 wherein the
remaining submissions were made by the respective parties. OnJuly 29, 2020, the appeal filed by COC was
listed before Hon'ble NCLAT for the pronouncement of order. The Hon'ble NCLAT has allowed the appeal
and has set aside the Hon'ble NCLT order dated January 02, 2020 vide CA No. 1816(PB)/2019 in C.P.(IB)No.
101 (PB)2017.

Thereafter, Ebix challenged the NCLAT's final order and judgment dated July 29, 2020 before the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India by way of a civil appeal.

The question of law involved in Ebix's appeal is “Whether the withdrawal of Resolution Plan is permitted
after it has been approved by the CoC”. Considering the issues similar to those involved in Ebix's Appeal
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have also been raised in the matters of Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd vs. Amit Gupta and Ors. (Civil Appeal
No. 9241 0f 2020) and Kundan Care Products Limited vs. Amit Gupta (Civil Appeal No. 3560 of 2020), all the
three matters have been kept together for hearing. The Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd. matter was being
heard first and arguments in the said matter (to be followed by the other two matters) which were part-
heard as on February 03, 2021, February 04, 2021 and February 9, 2021. Subsequently, on February 10,
2021, the Hon'ble Court heard the Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd. matter and wherein the order was
pronounced on March 08, 2021 in the Gujarat Urja matter. Later, the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide order
dated September 13,2021, dismissed the civil appeal preferred by Ebix.

The CoC's Appeal bearing No. 587 of 2020 assailing NCLT's order dated January 3, 2020 (in IA 195 of 2018)
was further listed for pronouncement of the judgment before the Hon'ble National Company Law
Appellate Tribunal, Bench-lll at New Delhi (“Bench”) on November 12,2021 allowing the CoC's appeal and
setting aside the Impugned Order. The Hon'ble Bench also directed the Adjudicating Authority to restore
CANo. 195(PB)/2018 and proceed in accordance with law.

On November 29, 2021, an application for the restoration of Plan Approval Application has been filed by
before the NCLT, Principal Bench at New Delhi. The Restoration Application has been registered as RA 39 of
2021 and after various hearings the matter is listed for next hearing on July 31, 2023. Further a
Miscellaneous Application has been filed on November 18, 2022 before Horn able Supreme Court seeking
appropriate direction for expeditious disposal of Plan Approval Application and the matter is pending for
listing.

(c) Moratorium period

The Hon'ble NCLT vide its letter dated May 30, 2017 has declared the moratorium period as per the
provision of section 13 (1) (a) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Insolvency Code”) which is
further extended to February 24, 2018. As the Resolution Plan is under consideration by Hon'ble NCLT
therefore the moratorium period continue to be in effect till conclusion of the CIRP process.

As per section 14 of the IBC, declaration of moratorium period, prohibits the following activities:

(a)the institution of suits or continuation of pending suits or proceedings against the corporate debtor
including execution of any judgment, decree or order in any court of law, tribunal, arbitration panel or
other authority; (b) transferring, encumbering, alienating or disposing of by the corporate debtor any of its
assets or any legal right or beneficial interest therein; (c) any action to foreclose, recover or enforce any
security interest created by the corporate debtor in respect of its property including any action under the
Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002; (d)
the recovery of any property by an owner or lessor where such property is occupied by or in the possession
of the corporate debtor.

2A. Basis for preparation
(a) Statementofcompliance

The standalone Ind AS financial statements (“financial statements”) of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 are the financial statements that are
preparedin accordance with Ind AS.

A corporateinsolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) has been initiated in case of the Company vide an Order
of the Principal Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) dated May 30, 2017 under the
provisions of the Insolvency Code. (for details refer note 1(b)). Pursuant to the Order, the management of
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the affairs of the Company and powers of board of directors of the Company are now vested with the
Resolution Professional (“RP”), who is appointed by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). These standalone
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been prepared by the RP and his team.
Accordingly, these standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022
have been approved by the RPon July 17,2023.

(b) Historical cost convection

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basisof
accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.

(c) The Company, hasincurred substantial losses, its net worth has been completely eroded, has defaulted in
repayment of its loans and related interest, has negative working capital and has applied under the IBC for
CIRP. All these conditions has raised substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

The management is of the view that the Company has been able to fund its operational liabilities from its
internal accrual of funds till the date of this balance sheet and is also confident that the Company would
have sufficient fund balance to continue as going concern. Further, the management is also confident to
agree on a resolution plan/business revival plan for the Company during this ongoing CIRP process.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or to amounts and
classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the entity is unable to continue as a going concern.

(d) Functional currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the functional currency of the
Company as functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates.

(e) Rounding off

Allthe amounts have been rounded off to nearest millions or decimal thereof, unless otherwise indicated.
The sign '0.00' in these financial statements indicates that the amounts involved are below INR ten
thousand and the sign '-'indicates that amounts are nil.

(f) Current/Non-current classification of assets/liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the
Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2B. Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Segmentreporting
Identification of segments:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately in
according to the nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical
segments is based on the areasin which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

The board of directors of the Company through RP assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions. The RP been identified as being the chief operating decision
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maker.

Intersegment transfers:

The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost.
Allocation of common cost

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment and include interest expense and income tax.

Segment accounting policy

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the company as a whole.

b) Property, Plantand Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of
acquisition net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use.

Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the asset and the useful life of the part is
different from the remaining asset, then useful life of that part is determined separately and accounted as
separate component.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of tangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and
recognised asincome or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Intangible assets

Anintangible asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the
asset will flow to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Cost of an internally generated asset comprises of all expenditure that can be directly attributed, or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to create, produce and make the asset ready for its
intended use.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and
recognised asincome or expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment loss.

d) Capital work-in-progress
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Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects are carried at cost.
Costincludes related acquisition expenses, development costs, borrowing costs (wherever applicable) and
other direct expenditure.

e) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit and loss on a
straight line basis, except certain items of PPE which are depreciated using diminishing basis. The
depreciation is charged upto 95% of the total cost of the asset over the useful life of assets as estimated by
the management.

Pursuant to the notification of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
effective 1 April 2014, the management has reassessed and revised, wherever necessary, the useful lives of
the assets, so as to align them with the ones prescribed under schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
Management reviews the method and estimations of residual values at each financial yearend.

The useful lives estimated by the management are as follows:

Particulars Useful life
(years)

Building* 60
Furniture and fixtures 5-10
Office equipment 5
Vehicle 8
Computer equipment 3
Computer software 6

*The Management has assessed the estimate of useful life of the Electrical and External work 24 year and
15yearrespectively.

Depreciation on addition to PPE is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready to use.
Depreciation on sale / deduction from assets is provided for upto the date of sale, deduction, discernment
asthe case may be.

Cost of leasehold improvements depreciation on a straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life
of the underlying assets, whichever is shorter.

Amortization on the intangible assets is provided on pro-rata basis on straight-line method based on
management's estimate of useful life, i.e. 3 years for software and 4 years for knowledge-based content.
Licensed intangible assets are amortised over the period of license or expected useful life, whichever is
shorter.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.

f) Revenuerecognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires
apportioning revenue earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis, using a five step model. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and
Ind AS 11 Construction Contract. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect
method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognized at the date of initial application (i.e. April
1, 2018) and the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated — i.e. the
comparative information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company
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and revenue can be reliably measured.

The Company derives its revenue from sale, supply and installation of educational products and rendering
of educational services.

Revenue from sale of educational products including technology equipments are recognised as and when
significant risk and rewards of the ownership of goods get transferred to the buyer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third
parties, if any.

Revenue under Build, Own, Operate and Transfer (“BOOT model”) contracts is recognized on upfront basis
in the statement of profit and loss on the initiation of the contracts. These contracts are considered and
evaluated as per Appendix “C” to IND AS 17. Also, refer note 2B.1 of the significant accounting policies.

Revenue from educational support services are recognised in the accounting period in which services are
rendered.

Interestincome

Interestincome from debtinstruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses.

g) Investmentand otherfinancial assets
g.1. Classification
The Company classifiesits financial assets in the following measurement categories:

i.  those to be measured at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profitorloss),

ii. those measuredatamortized cost; and

iii. Investment in equity of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted and carried at
costlessimpairmentinaccordance with Ind AS 27.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

g.2. Initial Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
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loss are expensed in the statement of profitand loss.
g.3.Subsequent Measurement:
g.3.1Debtinstruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows with specified dates and where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit
and loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
otherincome using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
statement of profit and loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which
itarises. Interestincome from these financial assetsisincluded in otherincome.

g.3.2 Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The
classificationis made on initial recognition and isirrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured
atfairvalue with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in subsidiaries/ joint ventures/associates

Investments are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
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carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
g.4.Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carries at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 25 details how the Company determines
whether there has been asignificantincrease in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected
credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit
loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

g.5. Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

h) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan.

The fair value of the liability portion of optionally convertible bonds is determined using a market interest
rate for equivalent non-convertible bonds. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is
attributable to the equity portion of the compound instrument. This is recognised and included in
shareholders' equity, net ofincome tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

Borrowings, where there isan change in the terms of the agreements whether monetary, non-monetary or
both shall be accounted for as an modification or an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or
part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, shall be recognised in the statement of
profitand loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
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effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements forissue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the operating
cycle of the business. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, if any.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
inaccordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as
a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of impairment loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

i)  Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost of inventories comprises all
cost of purchases inclusive of custom duty (except the refundable component) and other incidental
expenses incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition. In determining the
cost, moving weighted average cost method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on item by item basis.

j)  Tradereceivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision forimpairment.

k) Incometaxes

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in 'Other
comprehensive income' or directly in equity and Regulatory Assets, in which case the tax is recognized in
'Other comprehensive income' or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities arising on
the temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current tax

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates applicable for the respective years on the basis of tax law
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enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period. Current income tax assets and/or
liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting periods, that are unpaid/un-recovered at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable
profit, which differs from the profit or loss in the financial statements. Current tax is charged to statement
of profit and loss. Provision for current tax is made after taking in to consideration benefits admissible
under Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated, without discounting using the balance sheet method on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases using the tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. However, deferred tax is not
provided on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a business
combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Tax losses available to be carried forward and other income
tax credits available to the entity are assessed for recognition as deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that they will be able to be utilized against future taxable income. Deferred tax arising during
the holiday period is not recognised to the extent that the management expects its reversal during holiday
period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or
deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on
the Company's forecast of future operating income at each reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the entity has a right and intention to set off current
tax assets and liabilities from the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement paid in accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future
economic benefit in form of adjustment to future tax liability, is considered as an asset to the extent
management estimatesits recovery in future years.

) Leases
Operating lease

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases.

Where the Company is lessee:

Lease rentals in respect of operating lease arrangements including assets taken on operating lease are
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss on straight line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is lessor:

Lease income on an operating lease arrangement is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
straight line basis over the lease term.

Finance lease
Where the Companyis lessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments Lease payments are
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apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of
lease are capitalised.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as determined by the
management or the useful life envisaged in Schedule Il to the Act, whichever is lower. However, if there is
no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the
capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset, the lease term and the useful life envisaged in Schedule Il to the Act.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor:

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Company apportions lease rentals
between the principal repayment and interestincome so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of return on
the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

m) Foreign exchange transactions
Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of
transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary item, which are measured in terms of historical cost denomination in a foreign currency,
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Except for non-monetary items measured
atfairvalue which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at Balance Sheet date are restated at the rate of exchange
ruling atthe reporting date.

Exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year or
reported in previous Financial Statements (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term
monetary assets) are recognised asincome or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

n) Impairmentof non-financial assets

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a
non-financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite-life intangibles are subject to a review for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
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inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of
assets is considered as a cash generating unit. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the company's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units.

If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash
generating unit is made. Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable
amount are written down to the recoverable amount by recognizing the impairment loss as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if any) allocated to the cash generating unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash
generating unit's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods
may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

o) Offsettingfinancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is
alegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

p) Share-based payment

The Company operates equity-settled share-based remuneration plans for its employees, where persons
are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair values of services rendered by employees and others
are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is
appraised using the Black Scholes model.

Inthe case of employees and others providing similar services, the fair value is measured at the grant date.
In the case of franchisees, consultants and investors the fair value is determined as services are received,
using average fair values during each year. The fair value excludes the impact of non-market vesting
conditions.

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received up to the nominal value of the shares issued are
allocated to share capital with any excess being recorded as additional paid-in capital.

q) BorrowingCost

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
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expensed inthe period they occur.
r) Contingentliabilities, contingent assets and provisions
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.

Contingent Assets

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the entity that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset
are considered contingent assets.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation or constructive obligation as a result
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

All repairs and maintenance cost of hardware sold under the contracts during the remaining contract
period is borne by the Company on the basis of experience of actual cost incurred in servicing such
hardware during the previous financial year. Provision are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required
to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted toreflect the current best estimates.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized
as aseparate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain and the amount of recovery can be
measured reliably. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss
netofany reimbursement.

s) Equity and Reserves
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have beenissued.

Proceeds received in addition to the nominal value of the shares issued during the year have been included
in “additional paid-in capital”.

t) Earningspershare

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, are adjusted for events of bonus
issued to existing shareholders.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

u) Cashand cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
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original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowingsin current liabilities in the balance sheet.

v) Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short term benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonuses, and accumulated absents are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligationsin the balance sheet.
Other long term employee benefits

The liabilities for accumulated absents are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using
the market yields of Indian Government at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
tothe terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes
inactuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension, post-employment medical plans; and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Pension and gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected
unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profitand loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
Theyareincluded in retained earnings in the statement of changesin equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into an
independent fund administered by the government. The entity has no legal or constructive obligations to
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pay further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution.

Contributions to Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employee State Insurance are deposited with
the appropriate authorities and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis. The Company
has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

w) Exceptionalitems

Items of income or expense from ordinary activities which are of such size, nature or incidence that, their
disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprises for the period, are disclosed separately
inthe Statement of Profit and Loss.

X) Measurement of fairvalues

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the levelin the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fairvalue hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values used in preparing these financial statementsisincluded in the respective notes.

y) Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to
be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected lineitemin the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgments
The areasinvolving critical estimates or judgments are:

. Estimated useful life of property, plantand equipmentand intangible asset
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The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability
of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The Company reviews, at the end of each reporting date, the useful life of property, plant and
equipmentand intangible asset and changes, if any, are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

. Recoverable amount of property, plantand equipment

The recoverable amount of plantand equipment is based on estimates and assumptions regardingin
particular the expected market outlook and future cash flows. Any changes in these assumptions
may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in
impairment.

o Estimation of defined benefit obligation

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount
rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the
assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any
changesin these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

. Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax losses and current tax expenses

The Company review carrying amount of deferred tax assets and Liabilities at the end of each
reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained under Note No 2(k).

. Goingconcern

When preparing financial statements, management make an assessment of an entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. Financial statements prepared on a going concern basis unless
management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so. When management is aware, in making its assessment, of material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability to continue as
agoing concern, those uncertainties shall be disclosed.

. Impairment of trade receivables

The Company review carrying amount of Trade receivable at the end of each reporting period and
Provide for Expected Credit Loss. The policy for the same explained in the Note No.2 (g) (4).

. Fairvalue measurement

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where
active market quotes are not available. Details of the assumptions used are given in the notes
regarding financial assets and liabilities. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes
maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible,
consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument.
Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions
that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be
achievedinanarm'slength transaction at the reporting date.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 3 Property plant and equipment Current year (All amount in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Net Carrying
- Amount
Particular Balance as at | Additions | Disposals/ | Balance as at || Balance as at | Depreciation Impalrmer]t Loss/| On disposals| Balance as at Balance as at
April 01,2021 Adjustment| March 31, 2022 || April 01,2021 for the year Assets written off| / Adjustment | March 31, 2022 March 31. 2022
Freehold land 8.93 - - 8.93 - - - - 8.93
Building 52.17 - - 52.17 15.05 1.99 - - 17.04 35.13
Leasehold improvements 0.77 - - 0.77 0.77 - - - 0.77 -
Office equipment 18.80 0.96 0.17 19.59 14.86 1.16 - 0.17 15.85 3.74
Furniture and fixtures 11.07 - - 11.07 8.19 0.26 - - 8.45 2.62
Computers and equipment 21.74 0.15 - 22.89 19.40 0.76 - - 20.16 2.73
Vehicles 0.51 - - 0.51 0.30 - - - 0.30 0.21
Sub total 113.99 2.11 0.17 115.93 58.57 4.17 - 0.17 62.57 53.36
Previous Year
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Net Carrying
: Amount
Particular Balance as at | Additions | Disposals | Balance as at || Balance as at | Depreciation Impalrmel?t Loss/| On disposals| Balance as at Bal i
April 01, 2020 March 31,2021 || April 01,2020 for the year | Assets written off| / Adjustment | March 31, 2021) [ ;::csj azso‘; ’
Freehold land 8.93 - - 8.93 - - - - 8.93
Building 52.17 - - 52.17 12.92 2.13 - - 15.05 37.12
Leasehold improvements 0.77 - - 0.77 0.77 - - - 0.77 -
Office equipment 18.36 0.44 - 18.80 13.87 0.99 - - 14.86 3.94
Furniture and fixtures 11.07 - - 11.07 7.84 0.35 - - 8.19 2.88
Computers and equipment 21.61 0.13 - 21.74 18.98 0.42 - - 19.40 2.34
Vehicles 0.51 - - 0.51 0.30 - - - 0.30 0.21
Sub total 113.42 0.57 - 113.99 54.68 3.89 - - 58.57 55.42

3.1 The management has physically verified the fixed assets lying only at Corporate Office location Gurgaon on October 23, 2020 and bihar skills project location on March 31, 2021.
The offices at other locations of the company have been shutdown due to liquidity and business constraints, and the assets lying at these locations having a carrying value of Rs.
5.20 million (March 31, 2021 Rs. 5.83 million), have been shifted to the warehouse at Mahipalpur (New Delhi) and Chennai which could not be physically verified by the

management.
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 4 Other intangible assets Current year (All amount in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation N% Carryting
T moun
Particular Balance as at| Additions | Disposals | Balance as at || Balance as at| Amortisation Ilmpalrment On Disposals | Balance as at | ["Bzjance as at
- : oss/ Assets
April 01, 2021 March 31, 2022| [ April 01,2021 for the year | “y itten off March 31, 2022| | march 31, 2022
Software 3.09 - - 3.09 3.09 - - - 3.09 -
Knowledge-based content (refer note i & ii) 831.85 - - 831.85 831.85 - - - 831.85 -
Total 834.94 - - 834.94 834.94 - - - 834.94 -
Previous Year
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Ns\t Carryting
T moun
Particular Balance as at| Additions | Disposals | Balance as at || Balance as at| Amortisation I{mpalrment On Disposals | Balance as at | [ Balance as at
. ’ oss/ Assets
April 01, 2020 March 31, 2021 [ April 01,2020 for the year | “yitten off March 31, 2021| | March 31, 2021
Software 3.09 - - 3.09 3.09 - - - 3.09 -
Knowledge-based content (refer note i & ii) 831.85 - - 831.85 826.34 5.51 - - 831.85 -
Total 834.94 - - 834.94 829.43 5.51 - - 834.94 -

Note (i) Knowledge based content includes internally generated asset:

Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation N% Carryting
moun
: ; e ; ; ; i eati Impairment ; i -
Particular ggrar:::g Additions | Disposals gITsmg gprnlng P;mc;l;ltlsatlon Loss/ Assets On Disposals glc:smg Closing
alance alance orthe year | “ritten off alance balance
For the year ended March 31, 2022 447.31 - - 447.31 447.31 - - - 447.31 -
For the year ended March 31, 2021 447.31 - - 447.31 447.31 - - - 447.31 -

(ii) The intangible assets have been fully amortized during the year in accordance with the accounting policy of the company. However the intangible assets are still in use and
continue to generate revenue.

Note 5 Capital work in progress

2021-22 2020-21
Particular Balance as at [ Aqgitions Du(r:iipittahljesega ;| Balance as at | Balanceasat | Additions Impairment Loss/ Ducr:iip“tahlisega ;| Balanceasat
April 01, 2021 Wriken o [ March 31, 2022 [ | April 01, 2020 Assets written off |~ Wriken off | March 31,2021
Capital work-in-progress 49.15 - - 49.15 49.15 - - - 49.15
Provision for Capital work-in-progress (49.15) - - (49.15) (49.15) - - - (49.15)

Net block - - - - - - - - -
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The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 (All amount in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)
Particular Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of
Less than 1-2 years 23 years More than 3 years Total
1year
Projects temporarily suspended - - - 49.15 49.15
Provision for Capital work-in-progress (49.15)

The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of

Particular
Less than 1-2